
 
1 of  4 

 

 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2018 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 
 

 
 

A. Call to Order by the Mayor. 
 

B. Roll Call. 
 

C. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 15, 2018. 
 

D. Agenda Revisions. 
 

E. Administration of Oath to Public Safety Officers. 
 

F. Special Order of Business: 
 
1. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 

2018 Street Construction Project. 
 
a. Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published January 19, 

2018) 
 

b. Written objections filed with the City Clerk. 
 

c. Oral comments. 
 

2. Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for 
the 2018 Street Construction Project. 
 

3. Public hearing on a proposal to undertake a public improvement project for the West 1st Street 
Reconstruction Project and to authorize acquisition of private property for said project. 
 
a. Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published January 19, 

2018) 
 

b. Written objections filed with the City Clerk. 
 

c. Oral comments. 
 

4. Resolution approving a public improvement for the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project and 
authorizing acquisition of private property for said project. 
 

G. Old Business: 
 
1. Pass Ordinance #2917, amending Chapter 26, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of 

Ordinances relative to changing the speed limit on University Avenue from Hudson Road to the 
east city limits from 45 miles per hour to 35 miles per hour, upon its second consideration. 
 



 
2 of  4 

 

H. New Business: 
 
1. Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without 

separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be 
considered separately.) 
 
a. Receive and file the resignation of Paul Gray as a member of the Library Board of Trustees. 

 
b. Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Kim Kranz to the 

Board of Rental Housing Appeals, term ending 05/01/2018. 
 

c. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of January 15, 2018 relative to the 
following items: 
(1) Capital Improvements Program (CIP) – Joint Meeting with Planning & Zoning 
Commission. 
(2) Bills & Payroll. 
 

d. Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to a certified 
list for the position of Traffic Operations Supervisor. 
 

e. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of December 2017. 
 

f. Receive and file the 2017 Annual Reports of the Planning & Zoning Commission, Board of 
Adjustment, Historic Preservation Commission, Group Rental Committee/Board of Rental 
Housing Appeals, and the Bicycle & Pedestrian Advisory Committee. 
 

g. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
(1) Hy-Vee Gas, 6527 University Avenue, Class C beer - renewal. 
(2) AmericInn Lodge and Suites, 5818 Nordic Drive, Class B beer - renewal. 
(3) Second State Brewing Company, 203 State Street, Class B beer - renewal. 
(4) Cottonwood Canyon, 419 Washington Street, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 
(5) Hy-Vee Tasting Room, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 
(6) The Hydrant Firehouse Grill, 2002 College Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
 

2. Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion 
without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific 
item be considered separately.) 
 
a. Resolution deleting the pay for an employee in the position of Land Surveyor in the 

Engineering Services Division. 
 

b. Resolution deleting the pay for an employee in the position of Inspector in the Inspection 
Services Division. 
 

c. Resolution deleting the pay for an employee in the position of Equipment Mechanic in the 
Public Works & Parks Division. 
 

d. Resolution deleting the pay for an employee in the position of Firefighter in the Fire 
Operations Division. 
 

e. Resolution establishing the pay for a new employee hired in the position of PT-Laborer in the 
Public Works & Parks Division. 
 

f. Resolution establishing the pay for three new employees hired in the position of Public 
Safety Officer in the Police Operations Division. 



 
3 of  4 

 

 
g. Resolution establishing the pay for an employee assigned to the position of Acting Police 

Lieutenant-Public Safety Officer in the Police Operations Division. 
 

h. Resolution establishing the pay for an employee reclassified to the position of Maintenance 
Worker in the Public Works & Parks Division. 
 

i. Resolution establishing the pay for an employee reclassified to the position of Public Safety 
Officer in the Police Operations Division. 
 

j. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of the renewal of an Advertising Agreement 
with Lee Enterprises, Incorporated, d/b/a Courier Communications, relative to recruitment 
advertising. 
 

k. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an extension of a three-year Agreement 
for Audit Services with Eide Bailly, LLP. 
 

l. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a contract for CLEAR for Law 
Enforcement Plus with West Publishing Corporation relative to investigations and 
background checks conducted by the Public Safety Services Department. 
 

m. Resolution approving and authorizing the purchase of a fire rescue pumper apparatus from 
Toyne, Inc. 
 

n. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Farm Lease Agreement with Luhring & 
Luhring Farms relative to agricultural land known as the Belz Farm. 
 

o. Resolution approving and accepting a Temporary Easement, in conjunction with the 2017 
Levee/Floodwall System Improvements Project. 
 

p. Resolution approving and accepting completion of public improvements in Prairie West 7th 
Addition. 
 

q. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Feldman 
Concrete for the 2017 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 8. 
 

r. Resolution approving the Final Statement of Expenditures for the 2017 Sidewalk 
Assessment Project, Zone 8. 
 

s. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Peterson 
Contractors, Inc. for the 2017 Street Reconstruction Project. 
 

t. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Mike Dolan 
Concrete & Masonry, Inc. for the 2016 Public Sidewalk Repair, Pedestrian Ramp and 
Patching Project. 
 

u. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Mike Dolan 
Concrete & Masonry, Inc. for the 2016 Permeable Alley Project. 
 

v. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Mike Dolan 
Concrete & Masonry, Inc. for the Cedar Falls Industrial Park Street Patching Project. 
 

w. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 2 to the 
Standard Consultant Contract with IIW, P.C. for construction engineering services relative to 
the West 20th Street Bridge Replacement Project. 
 



 
4 of  4 

 

x. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 4 to the 
Professional Services Agreement with Foth Infrastructure & Environmental, LLC relative to 
the 2018 Bridge Inspection Project. 
 

y. Resolution approving the partial release of retainage funds to K. Cunningham Construction 
Company, Inc. for the University Avenue Reconstruction Project, Phase I. 
 

z. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Cooperative Agreement for Primary 
Road Project with the Iowa Department of Transportation for reconstruction of ramp 
terminals relative to the University Avenue Reconstruction Project, Phase 3. 
 

aa. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Assignment and Assumption 
Agreement relative to an Agreement for Private Development and conveyance of 
development property by CV Properties Housing Cooperative Association to CV Properties 
2, LLC. 
 

ab. Resolution approving a College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District site plan for a 
commercial/residential mixed use development at 2119 College Street. 
 

ac. Resolution setting February 19, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the proposed FY19 
Budget for the City of Cedar Falls. 
 

ad. Resolution setting February 19, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the proposed vacation 
and dedication of utility easements on Lots 32, 33 & 34 of Pinnacle Prairie Business Center 
North. 
 

I. Allow Bills and Payroll. 
 

J. City Council Referrals. 
 

K. City Council Updates. 
 

L. Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to 
City business.) 
 

M. Adjournment. 
 

 
 



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, JANUARY 15, 2018 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, pursuant to 
law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member thereof, in the City 
Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Absent: None. 

 
51692 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of January 2, 2018 be approved as presented and ordered of record. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
51693 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of January 3, 2018, 

this was the time and place for a public hearing on a proposed FY2018-FY2023 
Capital Improvements Program (CIP). It was then moved by Miller and seconded by 
Darrah that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
51694 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written objections filed to the proposed 

Capital Improvements Program. Upon being advised that there were no written 
objections on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Finance & Business 
Operations Director Rodenbeck commented briefly. Community Development Director 
Sheetz and City Engineer Resler responded to questions by Rosemary Beach, 5018 
Sage Road, and Penny Popp, 4805 South Main Street. There being no one else 
present wishing to speak either for or against the proposed Capital Improvements 
Program, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of 
business. 

 
51695 -  It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #20,904, approving 

and adopting the FY2018-FY2023 Capital Improvements Program (CIP), be adopted. 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion 
and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The 
Mayor then declared Resolution #20,904 duly passed and adopted. 

 
51696 -  It was moved by Miller and seconded by Wieland that Resolution #20,905, declaring 

an official intent under Treasury Regulation 1.150-2 to issue debt to reimburse the City 
for certain original expenditures paid in connection with specified projects, be 
adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on 
the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolution #20,905 duly passed and adopted. 

 
51697 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Wieland that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

Receive and file the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 
2018 Street Construction Project. 
 

-1-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

Approve the following applications for liquor licenses: 
 (1) Fraternal Order of Eagles, 2125 West Lone Tree Road, Class C liquor &    

outdoor service - renewal. 
 (2) Panther Lounge, 210 East 18th Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
  (3) Hillstreet News & Tobacco, 2217 College Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 

 
 Motion carried unanimously. 
 
51698 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller to receive and file the plans, 

specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the Highway 58 & Viking Road 
Project. Following comments by Larry Wyckoff, 4241 Eastpark Road, the motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
51699 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution #20,906, deleting the pay for two employees in the position of PT-
Community Service Officer II in the Police Operations Division. 
 
Resolution #20,907, deleting the pay for an employee in the position of PT-Assistant 
Equipment Mechanic in the Public Works & Parks Division. 
 
Resolution #20,908, establishing the pay for a new employee hired in the position of 
PT-Fitness Coordinator in the Recreation & Community Programs Division. 
 
Resolution #20,909, establishing the pay for an employee reclassified to the position 
of Maintenance Worker in the Public Works & Parks Division. 
 
Resolution #20,910, approving and authorizing Engagement with PFM Financial 
Advisors LLC to perform financial advisory services. 
 
Resolution #20,911, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service 
Agreement with Kucera International, Inc. for digital aerial imagery services relative to 
the 2018 Aerial Mapping Project. 
 
Resolution #20,912, approving and authorizing the purchase of a video production 
vehicle from Gerling and Associates, Inc. relative to cable television production 
activities. 

 
Resolution #20,913, approving and authorizing execution of a contract for Asphalt 
Shingle Grinding Services with J. Pettiecord, Inc. relative to asphalt shingle recycling. 
 
Resolution #20,914, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for 
Painting Services with Mongon Painting Co., Inc. relative to the Water Reclamation 
Primary Clarifier Painting Project. 
 

  Resolution #20,915, approving and authorizing execution of sixteen Releases of 
Temporary Easements, in conjunction with the 2016 Street Reconstruction Project, 
1622/1710 Mandalay Drive Slope Repair Project and Dry Run Creek Watershed 
Improvement Project. 
 

-2-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

Resolution #20,916, approving and adopting the plans, specifications & estimate of 
cost for the Highway 58 & Viking Road Project. 
 
Resolution #20,917, approving and authorizing execution of a Grant-in-Aid Agreement 
with the State Historical Society of Iowa relative to a Certified Local Government Grant 
Project for nomination of the Wild Historic District to the National Register of Historic 
Places. 
 
Resolution #20,918, approving and authorizing execution of a Grant-in-Aid Agreement 
with the State Historical Society of Iowa relative to a Certified Local Government Grant 
Project for scholarships to attend the National Historic Preservation Caucus - FORUM 
2018. 
 
Resolution #20,919, approving a Central Business District Overlay Zoning District site 
plan for signage at 115 East 4th Street. 
 
Resolution #20,920, approving a College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District 
site plan for installation of a drive-through at 2128 College Street. 
 

 Resolution #20,921, setting February 5, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 Street 
Construction Project. 
 
Resolution #20,922, setting February 5, 2018 as the date of public hearing on a 
proposal to undertake a public improvement project for the West 1st Street 
Reconstruction Project and to authorize acquisition of private property for said project. 

 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion 
and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The 
Mayor then declared Resolutions #20,906 through #20,922 duly passed and adopted. 

 
51700 -   It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Green that Resolution #20,923, approving 

and authorizing execution of an Employee Assistance Services 
Agreement with Covenant Medical Center, Inc. d/b/a Covenant Clinic EAP relative to 
the City’s Employee Assistance Program (EAP), be adopted. Following questions by 
Councilmembers Green and Wieland and responses by Finance & Business 
Operations Director Rodenbeck, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #20,923 duly passed and adopted. 
 

51701 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #20,924, approving 
a revised concept of adding pickle ball courts at Orchard Hill Park, as recommended 
by the Parks & Recreation Commission, be adopted. Following comments by 
Councilmember deBuhr, questions by Councilmembers Green and Darrah, and 
responses by Director of Municipal Operations & Programs Ripplinger, the Mayor put 
the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. 
Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #20,924 duly passed 
and adopted.  

-3-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

 
51702 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Wieland that Resolution #20,925, approving 

the University Avenue/Highway 58 Interchange Reconstruction Project in the Cedar 
Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, be adopted. Following 
questions by Councilmember deBuhr and response by Community Development 
Director Sheetz, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, 
Wieland, Green. Nay: deBuhr. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#20,925 duly passed and adopted. 

 
51703 -   It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that Ordinance #2917, amending 

Chapter 26, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
changing the speed limit on University Avenue from Hudson Road to the east city 
limits from 45 miles per hour to 35 miles per hour, be passed upon its first 
consideration. Following questions by Councilmembers deBuhr, Darrah and Green, 
and responses by City Engineer Resler, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
51704 -     It was moved by Miller and seconded by deBuhr that the bills and payroll be allowed 

as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be authorized to issue City 
checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in payment of the same. Upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried.  

 
51705 - It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Green to refer to the Committee of the 

Whole the speed limit on South Main Street from University Avenue to Greenhill Road. 
 Motion carried unanimously. 

 
51706 - Northern Iowa Student Liaison Cade Olmstead and Councilmember Green 

commented about a recent coordinated effort by University of Northern Iowa students, 
faculty and staff to pack meals at the Northeast Iowa Food Bank. 

 
51707 - Penny Popp, 4805 South Main Street, requested that a misspelled word on the 

Eldorado Park sign near the trail system be corrected. 
 
 Larry Wyckoff, 4241 Eastpark Road, expressed concerns with roundabouts, cost of 

the University Avenue Reconstruction Project, and traffic on Greenhill Road. 
Community Development Director Sheetz responded to questions by Councilmember 
Miller regarding costs of the University Avenue Reconstruction Project. 

 
 Bob Manning, 2908 West 3rd Street, and spokesperson for the Cedar Trails 

Partnership, provided clarification of the Partnership’s support for the City’s plan for 
proposed bike lanes on Main Street and announced grant funds available for trail 
projects. 

 
51708 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Wieland that the meeting be adjourned at 

7:40 P.M. Motion carried unanimously. 
   
  _______________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC, City Clerk 

-4-

Item C. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 
 
 DATE: January 9, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: 2018 Street Construction Project 
   Project No. RC-000-3141 
   Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs 
and Quantities for the 2018 Street Construction Project. 
 
I recommend setting Monday, February 5, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time for the public 
hearing on this project and Tuesday, February 13, 2018 at 2:00 p.m. as the date and time for 
receiving and opening bids. I would also request that the Notice to Bidders be published by 
January 19, 2018. The Plans and Specifications will be ready for distribution to contractors on 
January 19, 2018, allowing more than three (3) weeks of review before contract letting. 
 
This project involves the construction of sixteen (16) City streets (see attached Exhibit A) 
totaling 4.60 miles. Work will include removal and replacement of the existing pavement, HMA 
overlays, subgrade compaction, storm sewer, subdrain, intake construction and replacement of 
driveway approaches and handicap ramps. Complete streets components were considered in 
the design of each roadway and checklists are on file with the City Engineer. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $4,799,159.55. The majority of the 
project will be funded with the Local Option Sales Tax funds. The only exception is new water 
main on 4th Street, 12th Street, East Street, and Iowa Street will be funded by Cedar Falls 
Utilities. 
 
This project meets the Organizational Goal #4 of the City Council goals for fiscal year 2018 by 
using Local Option Sales Tax for our annual Construction program. 
 
The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your review at 
the City Clerk's office or the Engineering Division of the Community Development Department. 
 
att 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E, City Engineer 

-5-

Item F.1. 



 



 

 

Exhibit A 

 

-7-

Item F.1. 



 



2018 Street Construction Project 
 

Jon Resler, PE, City Engineer 

-9-

Item
 F.1. 



2018 Street Reconstruction 

•  W. 12th Street from College Street to East of Clark Drive 

•  W. 4th Street from Angie Drive to Hudson Road 

•  W. 4th Street from College Street to Franklin Street 

•  East Street from Newman Avenue to Grand Boulevard 

•  Clearview Drive from Primrose Drive to Valley High Drive 

•  Veralta Drive from Primrose Drive to Orchard Drive 

•  Iowa Street from Seerley Blvd to W. 22nd Street 
 

-10-

Item
 F.1. 



2018 Street Restoration 

•  Hudson Road from W. 23rd Street to W. 18th Street 

•  River Bluff Drive from Westwood Drive to Forrest Road 

•  Minnetonka Drive from 2814 Minnetonka Drive though loop 

•  East Park Road from Elmridge Drive to Briarwood Drive 

•  Chapman Court from Orchard Place to cu-de-sac 

•  Briarwood Drive from Elmridge Drive to East Park Road 

•  Irving Street from Utility Parkway to Dead End 

•  Main Street from W. 6th Street to Seerley Blvd. 

•  Pheasant Drive from W. 4th Street, west 1600 ft. 

 

-11-

Item
 F.1. 



W 4th Street Reconstruction 

Hu
ds

on
 R

oa
d 

An
gi

e 
Dr

iv
e 

Stage 1 Stage 2 

-12-

Item
 F.1. 



W 4th Street Reconstruction 

• Angie Drive to Hudson Road 
• Two Stages 

–Stage 1 
• 20 Working Days 
• Hudson Road to Middle of Chateau Court 
• Completed Prior to CF Last Day of School  
  (May 31st ) 

–Stage 2 
• 35 Working Days 
• Middle of Chateau Court to Angie Drive 
• Completed Prior to CF First Day of School 
  (August 24th) 

Hu
ds

on
 R

oa
d An

gi
e 

Dr
iv

e 

Stage 1 Stage 2 

 

-13-

Item
 F.1. 



W 12th Street Reconstruction 

Co
lle

ge
 S

tr
ee

t 

Ca
th

er
in

e 
St

re
et

 
Ca

th
er

in
e 

St
re

et
 

Cl
ar

k 
Dr

iv
e 

Stage 3 Stage 2 Stage 1 

-14-

Item
 F.1. 



W 12th Street Reconstruction 

• Clark Street to College Street 
• Three Stages 

– Stage 1  
• 25 Working Days 
• Clark Drive to Division Street 
• Completed Prior to CF Last Day of School 
   (May 31st ) 

– Stage 2 
• 35 Working Day 
• Division Street to Catherine Street 
• Completed Prior to CF First Day of School 
   (August 24th) 

Stage 3 Stage 2 Stage 1 

– Stage 3 
• 25 Working Days 
• Catherine Street to College Street 

  

-15-

Item
 F.1. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

 
City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
Administration Division  Planning & Community Services Division 

Phone: 319-273-8600  Fax: 319-273-8610 
 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
Water Reclamation Division 

Phone: 319-273-8633  Fax: 319-268-5566 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: January 31, 2018 

 SUBJECT: W. 1st Street Corridor Design from Hudson Road to Franklin/Center Street 
  Project #RC-000-3118 
   
The City of Cedar Falls is working with the Iowa Department of Transportation on the 
reconstruction to W. 1st Street from Hudson Road to the Center/Franklin Street intersection. 
The project is in the final design phase, acquisitions of the necessary right of way needs to 
start this spring to meet the DOT and City’s funding years for construction. The utilities and 
other infrastructure will be installed later this year and early next year. The road construction 
will take place in 2019-2020. This project includes a total reconstruction of the roadway from 
a four lane to a five lane facility. The project identifies the need for total acquisitions from four 
(4) properties and partial acquisitions from 65 properties. 
 
This project started in 2013 with the preparation of the Environmental Assessment (EA). The 
EA evaluates the purpose and need for this project. The purpose is to upgrade and 
modernize W. 1st Street between Hudson Road and Franklin/Center Street. The project is 
needed to improve the pavement condition, provide pedestrian access and mobility, upgrade 
the roadway geometry to current design standards, reduce conflicts with through traffic, 
improve access management and update the utility accommodations. This process included 
analyzing several different corridor alternatives such as three lanes, four lanes or five lanes. 
Eventually, the five lane section was recommended as the preferred alternative. The EA was 
approved in 2015 followed by the issuance of the Finding of No Significant Impact in the fall 
of 2016. 
 
The City will use federal funds for the design and right of way portion of this project. Per an 
agreement with the DOT approved on August 7, 2017, the city will be the lead in property 
acquisition and design. All eligible project costs will be split 50% City and 50% DOT which 
includes engineering, right of way, construction and construction administration. The city 
signed as agreement with Snyder and Associates on September 5, 2017 for these services. 
Funds for this project are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program in FY18 
and FY20 under item number 91. 

-17-

Item F.3. 



 
 
Iowa law requires that the City Council hold a public hearing to authorize proceeding with the 
project, including the purchase of right of way. The public hearing offers an opportunity for 
the public, especially those from whom the acquisitions and easements will be purchased, to 
comment on the project. A public meeting was held on January 25, 2018 to start one-on-one 
discussions with affected property owners. Attached is the handout from this public meeting.  
 
Staff recommends that the City Council state their support in the form of a resolution 
approving the public improvement project for the W. 1st Street reconstruction project and 
authorize the acquisition of private property for said project. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Director 
 Jon Resler, City Engineer 

-18-

Item F.3. 



PROJECT HISTORY

The Cedar Falls West 1st Street Corridor Study was prepared 
in February 2012 as a collaborative effort between INRCOG, 
the Iowa DOT, and the City of Cedar Falls.  The purpose of 
the study was to examine the needs and functions of IA 57 / 
West 1st Street and to develop feasible alternatives for future 
reconstruction that would serve the current and future needs 
of the corridor.  Community and project stakeholders were 
involved throughout the corridor study, providing feedback on 
the studies and alternatives

Public Information Meetings were held on December 5, 2013, 
and April 22, 2014, to gather input and comments from the 
local residents during the early stages of the Environmental 
Assessment (EA) process and preliminary project design 
phase.  Stakeholder surveys and one-on-one meetings were 
also conducted to seek input from the owners along the 
corridor.  The EA for this project was completed and approved 
on August 20, 2015.  The EA concludes the proposed project 
is necessary for safe and effi cient travel within the project 
corridor and the proposed project meets the purpose and 
need.  The project will have no signifi cant adverse social, 
economic, or environmental impacts of a level that would 
warrant an environmental impact statement.  An EA Public 
Hearing was conducted on November 17, 2015.  A Finding of 
No Signifi cant Impact (FONSI) was signed by the FHWA on 
September 22, 2016.

The project will continue to be monitored by the Iowa DOT 
throughout all development stages and construction to ensure 
all possible environmental effects are identifi ed.

PROJECT COST AND SCHEDULE

The IA 57 / West 1st Street Reconstruction Project is identifi ed 
in the 2018 – 2022 Transportation Improvement Program.  The 
estimated project costs and schedule are as follows:

FY 2018       - $3,073,000 for Right-of-Way Acquisitions

FY 2019       - $4,535,000 for Storm Sewer, Water Main,
          Retaining Walls and Grading

FY 2020-21 - $6,984,000 for Sanitary Sewer, Paving,
          and Sidewalk

RIGHT-OF-WAY

As part of the proposed improvements, additional right-of-way 
will be required.  The following paragraphs provide information 
regarding the right-of-way process followed by the Iowa DOT.

Iowa DOT policy provides for appraisal of property and/
or property rights needed for each project.  Professional 
techniques and methods are used to determine “just 
compensation” in accordance with federal and state 
constitutions, laws, and regulations.  Appraisals are 
prepared to assure fair treatment for both the property 
owner and the public.

After completing the appraisal, a right-of-way agent 
contacts each owner to explain the plans and appraisals 
and negotiate the contract for the required right-of-way.  If 
an agreement cannot be reached through negotiations, the 
property may be acquired by the laws of eminent domain.

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE ‘13 ‘14 ‘15 ‘16 ‘17 ‘18 ‘19 ‘20 ‘21

Collect Data

Public Information Meeting

Develop & Analyze Alternatives

Public Information Meeting

Final Evaluation of Alternatives

Prepare Environmental Assessment

Environmental Assessment Review

Public Hearing - Environmental

FONSI (Finding of No Signifi cant Impact)

Preliminary Engineering

Public Information Meeting

Public Hearing – Right of Way (ROW) 

Appraisal Preparation

ROW and Easement Negotiations

Final Engineering – Phase 1

Franchise Utility Relocations (a)

Public Information Meeting

Phase 1 Construction (b)

Final Engineering – Phase 2

Phase 2 Construction (c)

Final Surface Restoration – Construction Complete

Current Status

NOTES:
Construction work along West 1st Street will
extend from Highland Drive to Center/Franklin 
Street in all phases.

a.)  Franchise utility relocations include removing 
utility poles, burying electrical lines, and relocating 
telephone, cable, and gas lines.

b.)  Phase 1 construction includes new storm sewer, 
new water main, retaining walls, and grading.

c.)  Phase 2 construction includes new sanitary 
sewer and West 1st Street pavement replacement.

WELCOME!  The purpose of this meeting is to present the 
preferred alignment and the right-of-way impacts for the 
proposed IA 57 / West 1st Street Reconstruction Project 
from Highland Drive to Center / Franklin Street in Cedar Falls, 
Iowa. This public information meeting offers mutual benefi ts 
by allowing the Iowa Department of Transportation (DOT) and 
City of Cedar Falls an opportunity to explain the proposed 
project and allows the public to express their opinion and ask 
questions regarding the project.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION
The Iowa DOT, in conjunction with the City of Cedar Falls and 
Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG), 
is proposing to reconstruct IA 57 / West 1st Street from a 
4-lane roadway section to 5-lanes with a two-way left turn lane 
between Highland Drive and Center / Franklin Streets. The 
project also proposes to install new sanitary sewer, new water 
main, new storm sewer, new sidewalks on both sides of the 
road, and replacing the traffi c signals at the Hudson Road in-
tersection. Franchise utilities will also be relocated in advance 
of the project, which includes relocating the overhead lines to 
underground.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
The Department of Transportation and City appreciate your 
attendance today. This public information meeting serves as 
your opportunity to speak publicly. We encourage you to share 
your ideas concerning this project with us. If you prefer, you 
may submit them electronically using the following website: 
http://www.news.iowadot.gov/pim/2018/01/iowa-57west-1st-
street-black-hawk-county-jan-25.html, by the attached com-
ment form (self-addressed and pre-paid for your convenience), 
or by emailing your comments to David Sturch, Planner III, at 
David.Sturch@CedarFalls.com. All comments and information 
provided will be given consideration as the project devel-
opment process continues. It is requested that all written or 
emailed comments be submitted by February 1, 2018.

Iowa Highway 57 / West 1st Street Reconstruction Project: Highland Drive to Center / Franklin Street

For more information on this project, please visit the city’s 
website and select Special Roadway Corridor Projects 
under Popular links at the bottom of the homepage.

 www.cedarfalls.com

-19-

Item
 F.3. 



-20-

Item
 F.3. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared By: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, Phone: (319) 273-8600 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2917 

 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE ENUMERATED SPEED LIMIT AS 35 
MILES PER HOUR ON UNIVERSITY AVENUE FROM HUDSON ROAD EAST 
TO THE EAST CITY LIMITS IN SUBSECTION 26-207(7) AND STRIKING THE 
PARAGRAPH RELATED TO UNIVERSITY AVENUE IN SUBSECTION 26-
207(9) OF DIVISION 5, SPEED, OF ARTICLE III, OPERATION, OF CHAPTER 
26, TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
Section 1. The Nineteenth unnumbered paragraph, titled University Avenue, of 

Subsection 7, Thirty-five miles per hour, of Section 26-207, Speed limits enumerated, of Division 
5, Speed, of Article III, Operation, of Chapter 26, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, is hereby amended 
by repealing said Nineteenth unnumbered paragraph in its entirety and enacting in lieu thereof 
the following new Nineteenth unnumbered paragraph, as follows: 

 
Sec. 26-207. - Speed limits enumerated. 

Unless otherwise provided by this chapter or other city ordinances and appropriately 
posted, the speed limits established in this section shall be the lawful speed, and any speed in 
excess thereof shall be unlawful. 

[unchanged provisions omitted] 

 (7) Thirty-five miles per hour. Thirty-five miles per hour on any of the following streets 
as indicated: 
 

[unchanged provisions omitted] 
 

University Avenue, from Hudson Road east to the east city limits. 
 

Section 2.  The Twentieth unnumbered paragraph, titled University Avenue, of 
Subsection 9, Forty-five miles per hour, of Section 26-207, Speed limits enumerated, of Division 

-21-

Item G.1. 



2 
 

5, Speed, of Article III, Operation, of Chapter 26, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, is hereby repealed 
in its entirety. 

 
 

INTRODUCED:     January 15, 2018    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   January 15, 2018    

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:       

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:       

ADOPTED:          

 
 
__________________________________ 

ATTEST:     James P. Brown, Mayor 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC, City Clerk 
 

-22-

Item G.1. 



-23-

Item H.1.a. 



 



   MAYOR JIM BROWN 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

M E M O R A N D U M
Office of the Mayor

 

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Jim Brown 

 DATE: January 24, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Appointment 

 

I am recommending the following appointment: 

 

Name: Board/Commission: Term Ending: 
   
Kim Kranz Board of Rental Housing Appeals  

(replaces Rob Green) 
05/01/2018 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

 

 
 

-25-

Item H.1.b. 



 



-27-

Item H.1.b. 



 



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

January 15, 2018 
 

The Committee of the Whole met in the Council Chambers at 6:00 p.m. on January 15, 
2018, with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Jim Brown, Tom 
Blanford, Frank Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Rob Green, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, and David 
Wieland. Planning and Zoning Commission members present were Chelle Adkins, Brian 
Arntson, Deb Giarusso, David Hartley, Mardy Holst, Brad Leeper, LeaAnn Saul and 
Brian Wingert. Staff members attended from all City Departments. Pat Kinney with the 
Waterloo Courier, Jessica Hartman with KWWL News and other members of the 
community attended.  

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda, 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) – Joint Meeting with Planning & Zoning 
Commission.  Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations stated 
the CIP is a planning document and does not authorize funding of the project.  She 
stated there are 196 projects totaling over $271 million with 40 funding sources.  She 
said the document incorporates council goals and includes both infrastructure as well as 
quality of life projects.  She also noted that the CIP was developed to maintain an even 
effect on tax rates.  Ms. Rodenbeck then reviewed some of the projects and the timing 
of them.  Mayor Brown opened it for comment from the Council and the Planning & 
Zoning Committee.   A brief discussion was held.  Ms. Rodenbeck stated since this is 
planning document adjustments may be made but moving up a project may affect 
another project.  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development stated 
timing of work on Greenhill Road & Main Street will be determined based on the 
rerouting of traffic from HWY 58 & Viking interchange.  She also commented that task 
force on downtown parking has both short-term and mid-term goals that they have 
discussed.   

Mayor Brown introduced the final item on the agenda bills and payroll.  Frank Darrah 
moved to approve the bills as presented and Tom Blanford seconded the motion.  The 
motion carried unanimously.  

There being no further discussion Mayor Brown adjourned the meeting at 6:42 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

-29-

Item H.1.c. 



 



-31-

Item H.1.d. 



 



-33-

Item H.1.e. 



-34-

Item H.1.e. 



-35-

Item H.1.e. 



-36-

Item H.1.e. 



-37-

Item H.1.e. 



-38-

Item H.1.e. 



-39-

Item H.1.e. 



-40-

Item H.1.e. 



-41-

Item H.1.e. 



-42-

Item H.1.e. 



-43-

Item H.1.e. 



-44-

Item H.1.e. 



-45-

Item H.1.e. 



-46-

Item H.1.e. 



-47-

Item H.1.e. 



-48-

Item H.1.e. 



-49-

Item H.1.e. 



-50-

Item H.1.e. 



-51-

Item H.1.e. 



-52-

Item H.1.e. 



-53-

Item H.1.e. 



-54-

Item H.1.e. 



-55-

Item H.1.e. 



-56-

Item H.1.e. 



-57-

Item H.1.e. 



-58-

Item H.1.e. 



-59-

Item H.1.e. 



-60-

Item H.1.e. 



-61-

Item H.1.e. 



-62-

Item H.1.e. 



-63-

Item H.1.e. 



-64-

Item H.1.e. 



-65-

Item H.1.e. 



-66-

Item H.1.e. 



-67-

Item H.1.e. 



-68-

Item H.1.e. 



-69-

Item H.1.e. 



-70-

Item H.1.e. 



-71-

Item H.1.e. 



-72-

Item H.1.e. 



-73-

Item H.1.e. 



-74-

Item H.1.e. 



-75-

Item H.1.e. 



-76-

Item H.1.e. 



-77-

Item H.1.e. 



-78-

Item H.1.e. 



-79-

Item H.1.e. 



-80-

Item H.1.e. 



-81-

Item H.1.e. 



-82-

Item H.1.e. 



-83-

Item H.1.e. 



-84-

Item H.1.e. 



-85-

Item H.1.e. 



-86-

Item H.1.e. 



-87-

Item H.1.e. 



-88-

Item H.1.e. 



-89-

Item H.1.e. 



-90-

Item H.1.e. 



-91-

Item H.1.e. 



-92-

Item H.1.e. 



-93-

Item H.1.e. 



-94-

Item H.1.e. 



-95-

Item H.1.e. 



-96-

Item H.1.e. 



-97-

Item H.1.e. 



-98-

Item H.1.e. 



-99-

Item H.1.e. 



-100-

Item H.1.e. 



-101-

Item H.1.e. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613
Phone: 319-273-8600
Fax: 319-273-8610
www.cedarfalls.com MEMORANDUM

Planning & Community Services Division

TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council
FROM: David Sturch, Planner III
DATE: January 23, 2018

RE: Annual Reports for 2017

Attached you will find summaries of agenda and business items in 2017 for the Planning and
Zoning Commission, Board of Adjustment, Historic Preservation Commission, Group Rental
Committee/Board of Rental Housing Appeals, and the Cedar Falls Bike/Pedestrian Committee.

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
The Planning and Zoning Commission reviews numerous issues each year ranging from
rezoning requests to subdivision plats and street vacations along with various development site
plans for new building projects. As the Commission meets twice each month, requests for
Commission review are likewise accepted twice per month.

A broad range of projects were reviewed in 2017 by the Planning & Zoning Commission
including a new mixed use residential development at 200 W. 1st Street and the site plans for
the Kwik Star convenience store/gas station and Fareway grocery store on Greenhill Road.
Numerous other rezoning requests, subdivision plats and various site/building plans were
reviewed throughout the entire City. In addition to the 2017 Planning & Zoning Commission
Annual Report, a summary of issued Land Use Permits and a summary of new Residential Units
Constructed for 2017 are attached.

Board of Adjustment
The Board of Adjustment is created to consider variances and special exceptions from the terms
of the City Zoning Ordinance. This is an autonomous body with quasi-judicial powers. Decisions
by the Board can be appealed only to District Court. The 7-member Board normally applies very
strict “hardship” criteria when considering variances from the Zoning regulations. The majority of
typical variance applications do not satisfy standard “hardship” criteria; therefore variance
approvals are rarely granted. The Board must find sound justification to allow deviation from the
terms of the Zoning Ordinance. Planning & Community Services Division staff coordinates
Board of Adjustment agendas and meetings.

The Board held five meetings during 2017 (March, 2 in May, September and October) to
consider five separate requests. Please see the attached agenda listing for specific details.

-103-

Item H.1.f. 



Historic Preservation Commission
The Historic Preservation Commission completed its sixth year of existence (created by City
Council in February, 2011). The Historic Preservation Commission reviews policies and
programs of the city related to historic preservation.  Their primary objectives are to maintain an
inventory of historic resources of Cedar Falls and to be a voice for preservation.

The Commission held twelve meetings in 2017. Projects include nominating the downtown
district to the National Register with grant awards and multiple educational projects. Please see
attached agenda listing for specific details.

Educational workshops attended by Commission members this year include the Preserve Iowa
Summit 2017, Preservation Leadership Forum, and online webinars such as Preservation and
Health from the National Trust for Historic Preservation.

Group Rental Committee/Board of Rental Housing Appeals
The Group Rental Committee was created to consider whether new rental applications
requesting higher levels of occupancy (3, 4, or 5 individuals aged 18 years or older) are
appropriate to the property and neighborhood in which the property is located. The Group
Rental Committee is comprised of City staff representing Planning & Community Services,
Inspection Services, and Fire Division. The Committee meets on the first and third Wednesday
of the month. The Board of Rental Housing Appeals was created to review all new and existing
rental appeals. The Board is comprised of seven citizens approved by the Mayor. The Board
meets as needed. A complete copy of the 2017 Annual Report of Activities for both the Group
Rental Committee and the Board of Rental Housing Appeals is attached for your review.

Cedar Falls Bike/Pedestrian Committee
This Advisory Committee is a fifteen member volunteer group that meets monthly. The
Committee’s mission is to improve the quality of life in Cedar Falls through increased
opportunity for safe walking and bicycling as viable means of transportation and physical
activity. The Committee has focused on the essential elements five categories known as the
“Five E’s”, being Engineering, Education, Encouragement, Enforcement, and Evaluation. A
complete copy of the 2017 Annual Report of Activities is attached for your review.

-104-

Item H.1.f. 



1

CEDAR FALLS PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
Annual Summary

2017

January 11, 2017

1. Community United Child Care Center Site Plan Review ............. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING.

2. Wilbo and Root Façade Review .................................................................................. APPROVED.

January 25, 2017

1. Community United Child Care Center Site Plan Review ................................................ APPROVED.

2. Pheasant Hollow 6th Addition Final Plat....................................................................... APPROVED.

3. Prairie Winds 3rd Addition Final Plat............................................................................ APPROVED.

February 8, 2017 - NO MEETING

February 22, 2017

1. University Avenue Frontage Road Right of Way Vacation – Regions Bank at 4417 University Avenue....
................................................................................................................................ APPROVED.

2. Central Business District Overlay Facade Review - 109 E 2nd Street ............................. APPROVED.

March 8, 2017

1. Central Business District Overlay Facade Review – 305 Main Street .............................. APPROVED.

March 22, 2017

1. 102 Clay Street Rezoning Request and Easement Vacation ....... CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING.

2. McMahill Final Plat..................................................................................................... APPROVED.

3. B&K Minor Plat .......................................................................................................... APPROVED.

-105-

Item H.1.f. 



2

April 12, 2017

1. 102 Clay Street Rezoning Request and Easement Vacation .......................................... APPROVED.

2. Willow Falls Site Plan Review .................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING.

3. 200 W. 1st Street Site Plan Review .......................................... CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING.

4. Saul’s 1st Addition Preliminary and Final Plat ............................................................... APPROVED.

5. Sands Addition Preliminary Plat ............................................... CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING.

6. Pinnacle Ridge Vacation ............................................................................................ APPROVED.

7. 202 Main Street Facade Review ................................................................................. APPROVED.

8. 402 ½ Main Street Facade Review .............................................................................. APPROVED.

April 26, 2017

1. Willow Falls Site Plan Review ..................................................................................... APPROVED.

2. 600 State Street – Projecting Wall Sign........................................................................ APPROVED.

May 10, 2017

1. Sands Addition Preliminary Plat .................................................................................. APPROVED.

2. 110 Main Street Signage Review ................................................................................ APPROVED.

3. West Village Preliminary Plat ................................................... CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING.

May 24, 2017

1. 200 W. 1st Street Site Plan Review ............................................................................. APPROVED.

2. West Village Preliminary Plat ...................................................................................... APPROVED.

3. 305 Main Street Design Review .................................................................................. APPROVED.

June 14, 2017

1. Zoning Ordinance Discussion on Vision Triangle Modifications, Principal Use and Accessory Use and
Parking Requirements............................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING.

-106-

Item H.1.f. 



3

2. OE Mullarkys Addition, Block 2 Right-of-Way Vacation Request..................................... APPROVED.

June 28, 2017

1. Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment on Vision Triangle Modifications ..................................................
............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING.

2. 2512 Walnut Street Parking Lot (College Hill Overlay)................................................... APPROVED.

July 12, 2017

1. Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment on Vision Triangle Modifications ............................. APPROVED.

2. 604-616 Clay Street  Site Plan (Central Business District Overlay) ................................. APPROVED.

July 26, 2017 - NO MEETING

August 9, 2017

1. PC-2 Site Plan Review – New Commercial Building ...................................................... APPROVED.

2. College Hill Overlay Zoning District – Signage Review .................................................. APPROVED.

3. College Hill Overlay Zoning District – Parking Lot Amendment....CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING.

August 23, 2017

1. Heritage Hills Estates Second Addition - Final Plat....................................................... APPROVED.

2. Wild Horse Ridge Third Addition - Final Plat ............................ CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING.

3. Prairie West 7th Addition - Final Plat........................................................................... APPROVED.

September 13, 2017

1. Wild Horse Ridge Third  Addition - Final Plat ............................................................... APPROVED.

2. MU District Site Plan Review – Kwik Star Convenience Store ..... CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING.

3. BCI- Hawkeye Easement Vacation .............................................................................. APPROVED.

-107-

Item H.1.f. 



4

4. Central Business District Façade Review - The Brass Tap at 421 Main Street ................. APPROVED.

5. College Hill Neighborhood District Site Plan – Parking Lot at 1906 College Street ........... APPROVED.

September 27, 2017

1. Waterloo Airport Zoning Ordinance ............................................................................. APPROVED.

2. Central Business District Façade Review – 504/508 Bluff Street .................................... APPROVED.

October 11, 2017

1. Public Safety Building Site Plan ............................................... CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING.

2. 1011 W. 19th College Hill Design Review .................................................................... APPROVED.

3. TownePlace Hotel and Convention Center Space Site Plan........................................... APPROVED.

4. 924 Viking Road (Gym) Site Plan ................................................................................ APPROVED.

5. Arbors 3rd Addition Final Plat...................................................................................... APPROVED.

October 25, 2017

1. Public Safety Building Site Plan .................................................................................. APPROVED.

2. 602 State Street Downtown Design Review ................................................................. APPROVED.

November 8, 2017

1. 419 Main Street - Downtown Design Review ................................................................ APPROVED.

2. 2116 Iowa Street – College Hill Plat of Survey .............................................................. APPROVED.

November 21, 2017

1. 111 Main Street - Downtown Design Review ................................................................ APPROVED.

2. Autumn Ridge Eighth Addition Final Plat ...................................................................... APPROVED.

3. College Hill Neighborhood District Site Plan Review – 2119 College Street ..........................................
............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING.

-108-

Item H.1.f. 



5

December 13, 2017

1. MU District Site Plan Review – Kwik Star Convenience Store .............................................. TABLED.

2. MU District Site Plan Review – Fareway Grocery Store .............. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING.

3. Central Business District Facade Review - 401 Main Street ........................................... APPROVED.

4. Francis Street Minor Plat ............................................................................................ APPROVED.

5. Viking Road First Addition Preliminary and Final Plat .................................................... APPROVED.

6. Central Business District Site Plan Review – River Place Development (MU2 Building).........................
............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING.

December 27, 2017 – NO MEETING

-109-

Item H.1.f. 



2017 Planning & Zoning Commission Attendance
Chair: Hillery Oberle
Vice Chair: Mardy Holst

1/11 1/25 2/8 2/22 3/8 3/22 4/12 4/26 5/10 5/24 6/14 6/28 Mid-year
tally 7/12 7/26 8/9 8/23 9/13 9/27 10/11 10/25 11/8 11/21 12/13 12/27 Total

Ratio
%

Attend

Adkins NA NA

N
O

 M
EE

TI
N

G

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA N/A NA

N
O

 M
EE

TI
N

G

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA X

N
O

 M
EE

TI
N

G

1/1 100%

Arntson X X O X X O X X X X X 9/11 X O X X X X X X X X 18/21 86%

Dunning X X X X O X X O O X X 8/11 O X O X O X X O R R 12/19 63%

Giarusso X X X X X X X X X X X 11/11 X X X X X O X X X X 20/21 95%

Hartley X X X X O X X O X O X 8/11 O X X X X X X X X X 17/21 81%

Holst X X O X X X X X X X X 10/11 O X O X O X X O X X 16/21 76%

Leeper X X O X X O X X X O X 8/11 X X X X O O X O O X 14/21 67%

Oberle X X X X X O X X X X O 9/11 X X X X X X X X X X 19/21 90%

Saul X O X X X X X X O X O 8/11 X X X X X X X X X X 18/21 86%

Wingert X O X X X X X X X X O 9/11 X O O X X X O X X X 16/21 76%

X – Indicates Present
O – Not Present

NA – Not Appointed
R – Resign

-110-

Item
 H

.1.f. 



PERMIT TYPE TOTAL MONTH 2017 2016

Land Use 433 January 15 22

Sign 121 February 20 11

Fence 93 March 44 52

Total 647 April 57 85

May 92 96

PERMIT CATEGORY TOTAL June 60 98

Sign 121 July 68 74

Single Family Dwelling 105 August 90 83

Residential Addition 37 September 79 69

Deck 75 October 72 72

Fence 93 November 30 46

Detached Structure 62 December 20 32

Duplex/Condo (14 Units) 14 Total 647 740

Com./Ind./Pub. Building 9

Com./Ind./Pub. Addition 9

Townhouse 8

Multi-Family (48 units) 4

Driveway/Parking Lot 101

Floodplain Development 4

Home Occupation 4

Swimming Pool

Fill Permit 1

Total 647

Floodplain Permits 4

   Floodplain permits are included

   in the above categories

LAND USE PERMITS ISSUED IN THE 2017 CALENDAR YEAR BY THE

PLANNING DIVISION FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

2017 

2016 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

J
a
n
u
a

ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

A
p
ri
l

M
a

y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u

s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100 110 120 130

Sign

Single Family Dwelling

Residential Addition

Deck

Fence

Detached Structure

Duplex/Condo (14 Units)

Com./Ind./Pub. Building

Com./Ind./Pub. Addition

Townhouse

Multi-Family (48 units)

Driveway/Parking Lot

Floodplain Development

Home Occupation

Swimming Pool

Fill Permit

2017 permit summary  1/11/2018-111-

Item H.1.f. 



CALENDAR

YEAR SINGLE FAMILY MULTI-FAMILY (units) CONDO/TOWNHOUSE TOTALS

1990 77 15 0 92

1991 63 2 0 65

1992 84 10 2 96

1993 63 36 10 109

1994 64 18 0 82

1995 53 10 32 95

1996 52 112 6 170

1997 51 7 32 90

1998 74 13 0 87

1999 75 0 76 151

2000 104 34 60 198

2001 92 194 50 336

2002 84 78 24 186

2003 140 84 32 256

2004 167 32 26 225

2005 165 164 69 398

2006 125 70 116 311

2007 127 22 77 226

2008 115 0 12 127

2009 108 24 32 164

2010 123 22 80 225

2011 116 124 36 276

2012 141 131 52 324

2013 103 46 12 161

2014 115 32 36 183

2015 98 56 8 162

2016 91 84 58 233

2017 105 48 18 171

TOTALS 2775 1468 956 5199

NUMBER OF RESIDENTIAL UNITS CONSTRUCTED

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

100
110
120
130
140
150
160
170
180
190
200
210
220

N
U

M
B

E
R

 O
F

 D
W

E
L

L
IN

G
 U

N
IT

S
 

YEAR 

Single Family Multi Family/Townhouse (Units) Condominium

1/11/2018

-112-

Item H.1.f. 



CEDAR FALLS BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
2017 Annual Summary

January 23, 2017
The Board of Adjustment did not meet in January

February 27, 2017
The Board of Adjustment did not meet in February

March 27, 2017
1. Request by Eric and Dallas Grattan at 1402 Cottage Row Road for a variance and

special exception permit to reconstruct a substantially damaged house in the
floodway district......................................................................................... APPROVED

April 24, 2017
The Board of Adjustment did not meet in April

May 8, 2017 (Special Meeting Rescheduled from the April Meeting)
1. Request by Marian Terry in the 2600 block of Scenic Drive for an access variance for

the construction of a new single family dwelling ................................................DENIED

May 22, 2017
1. Request by Tim Caswell at 4119 Shocker Road for a variance from the driveway

setback requirements ................................................................................. APPROVED

June 26, 2017
The Board of Adjustment did not meeting in June

July 24, 2017
The Board of Adjustment did not meeting in July

August 28, 2017
The Board of Adjustment did not meet in August

September 25, 2017
1. Request by the First National Bank at 602 Main Street for a variance from the sign

area requirements for a new replacement freestanding sign .............................DENIED

October 23, 2017
1. Request by Bockes and Kunkle Holdings at 1204 W. 3rd Street for a variance from the

lot width and lot area requirements for the construction of a duplex dwelling ....DENIED

November 27, 2017
The Board of Adjustment did not meet in November

December 25, 2017
The Board of Adjustment did not meet in December

-113-

Item H.1.f. 



Chair: Gerald Sorensen
Vice Chair: Amy Lang

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
ATTENDANCE JANUARY 2017 THROUGH DECEMBER 2017

Ja
n.

20
17

Fe
b.

20
17

M
ar

.2
01

7

A
pr

.2
01

7

M
ay

 2
01

7

Ju
ne

 2
01

7

Ju
ly

 2
01

7

A
ug

.2
01

7

Se
pt

.2
01

7

O
ct

.2
01

7

N
ov

.2
01

7

D
ec

.2
01

7

To
ta

l
R

at
io

%
 A

tte
nd

.

Beach ̷ ̷ X ̷ X/X ̷ ̷ ̷ O X ̷ ̷ 4/5 80%

Chamberlin ̷ ̷ O Term Completed - Replaced by Rasmussen in September 0/0 0%

Lang ̷ ̷ X ̷ X/X ̷ ̷ ̷ X X ̷ ̷ 5/5 100%

Miller ̷ ̷ X ̷ O/X ̷ ̷ ̷ X X ̷ ̷ 4/5 80%

Rasmussen X X ̷ ̷ 2/2 100%

Schwerdtfeger ̷ ̷ X ̷ X/X ̷ ̷ ̷ X O ̷ ̷ 4/5 80%

Sorensen ̷ ̷ X ̷ X/X ̷ ̷ ̷ X X ̷ ̷ 5/5 100%

Weeg ̷ ̷ X ̷ X/X ̷ ̷ ̷ X X ̷ ̷ 5/5 100%

X = Present
O =  Not Present

-114-

Item H.1.f. 



CEDAR FALLS HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION
2017 Annual Summary

The following is intended to summarize the discussions held by the Commission over
the past year. This summary was compiled from meeting minutes.

January 11, 2017
 The Commission voted to change the regular meeting time of the group

from the fourth Wednesday of the Month to the second.
 The Celebrating Local Authors Festival was discussed and how the

Commission could potentially get involved.
 A draft of the downtown’s nomination to the National Register of Historic

Places was reviewed.
 Commission member’s terms were discussed.

February 8, 2017
 An update was given on the 1st Street reconstruction project.
 The CLG annual report was discussed and distributed for review and

approval.
 The Commission nominated 501 W 1st Street for the Preservation Merit

Award.
 The Commission’s nomination for the Mandalay Mansion to be put on the

2017 most endangered property list was accepted by SHPO.

March 8, 2017
 This was Tom Connors last meeting as a Commission member. Mayor

Brown and Ron Gaines presented him with a plaque and a service coin.
 The final draft of the Downtown’s nomination to the National Register of

Historic Places was reviewed.
 The Commission’s historic property inventory was discussed. The goal is

to have it incorporated into the city’s GIS system in the future.
 The Commission explored various ideas for their yearly educational event.
 The Commission explored the idea of nominating 501 W 1st Street, known

as the Wild House, and area around it to the National Register of Historic
Places.

April 12, 2017
 Orientation for and welcome to new Commission member: Donna Bash.
 Open house details discussed for the Downtown’s nomination to the

National Register of Historic Places.
 Commission approved the creation of a film with Tom Connors and

Channel 15 covering a local cemetery as an educational opportunity.
 Commission approved applying for a CLG grant to nominate the Wild

house, and area around it, to the National Register of Historic Places.

-115-

Item H.1.f. 



 The Commission’s nomination of the 501 W 1st Street for the Preservation
Merit Award was accepted.

 Upcoming Preservation Summit was discussed. At least one member is
required to attend each year.

 Proposed plaque for the Celebrating Local Authors was reviewed.

May 10, 2017
 Commission approved submitting the nomination of the Downtown to the

National Register of Historic Places to SHPO.
 The vice chair for the Commission was elected.
 Updating public information on the old Post Office was discussed.
 Recent Legislature activity was discussed.

June 14, 2017
 Jake Moore stepped down as a Commission member as he will be moving

out of State. Advertising for the vacancy has started.
 Experiences and summary of the Preserve Iowa Summit were shared.

Next year’s summit discussed.
 Nomination of the downtown to the National Register of Historic Places

was approved by SHPO and will be forwarded to the Federal level for
review.

 Application process and plan to request a CLG grant to nominate the Wild
District to the National Register of Historic Places was reviewed.

 Mausoleum in the Greenwood Cemetery was discussed. It was agreed
that this could be a future potential educational project.

July 12, 2017
 Commission reviewed the draft application of a CLG grant to nominate the

Wild District to the National Register of Historic Places.
 Candidates for the Challenge Grant were discussed.

August 9, 2017
 The close out process of the CLG grant for the downtown’s nomination

was discussed and started.
 Commission approved submitting the application for a CLG grant to

nominate the Wild District to the National Register of Historic Places.
 Commission approved submitting an application for a CLG grant for travel

scholarships to next year’s Annual Preservation Summit.
 There was discussion on the last brick road in Cedar Falls, 16th Street,

and options to save it.
 Guest speaker talked about the Iowa Civil Rights Trail Project. Potential

partnership opportunities were discussed.

September 13, 2017
 Orientation for and welcome to new member: Biff Rocha.

-116-

Item H.1.f. 



 Close out items on the CLG grant were discussed.
 Details to coordinate the filming of the Cemetery tour were discussed.
 Potential grant opportunities for the brick road replacement were shared

and discussed. Commission agreed that finding funding to preserve the
road was a priority.

 Possibilities to partner with the Women’s Society were discussed.

October 11, 2017
 The downtown has been officially listed on the National Register of Historic

Places and the project has been closed out of.
 A ribbon cutting to celebrate the successful nomination of the downtown

district was planned. Partnered with CMS and the Historical Society.
 Cemetery tour details discussed. Date selected for filming.
 The potential to start a “Century Homes” campaign was discussed.
 Commission reviewed a request for signage on Historic Route 20.

November 8, 2017
 Filming of the cemetery tour completed. Editing details and requested images

to complement the film were discussed.
 Recent Legislature activity was discussed.
 Final details of the ribbon cutting were discussed. Attended ribbon cutting.

December 14, 2017
 Other ways to advertise the new downtown historic district were discussed.

The Commission will look into holding an informational session for property
owners within the district on the benefits of the district and how to utilize them.

 Annual CLG Report discussed. Commission will review the report for
submission at the next meeting.

 The Commission has been awarded both CLG grants they applied for: Wild
District and travel scholarship to annual Preservation Summit.

-117-

Item H.1.f. 



Chair: Julie Etheredge
Vice Chair: Jeff Schlobohm

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION
ATTENDANCE JANUARY 2017 THROUGH DECEMBER 2017

Ja
n.

 2
01

7

Fe
b.

 2
01

7

M
ar

. 2
01

7

A
pr

. 2
01

7

M
ay

 2
01

7

Ju
ne

20
17

Ju
ly

 2
01

7

A
ug

. 2
01

7

Se
pt

. 2
01

7

O
ct

. 2
01

7

N
ov

. 2
01

7

D
ec

. 2
01

7

To
ta

l
R

at
io

%
 A

tte
nd

.

Donna Bash
(appointed April
2017)

X X X O X O X X O 6/9 67%

Thomas
Connors (Term
expired March
2017)

X O X 2/3 67%

Julie Etheredge X X X X X X X X X X O X 11/12 92%

Biff Rocha
(appointed
September
2017)

X X X O 3/4 75%

Jake Moore
(stepped down
June 2017)

X X O X X O 4/6 67%

Jeff Schlobohm X X O X X O X X X O X X 9/12 75%

Jeanine
Johnson X X X X O X X X X X X X 11/12 92%

X =  Indicated Present
O =  Not Present

-118-

Item H.1.f. 



CEDAR FALLS GROUP RENTAL COMMITTEE
2017 Annual Summary

January 4, 2017
The Group Rental Committee did not meet.

January 18, 2017
Group Rental Committee reviewed one case: 2116 Iowa Street.

February 1, 2017
The Group Rental Committee did not meet.

February 15, 2017
Group Rental Committee reviewed one case: 1115 8th Street.

March 1, 2017
Group Rental Committee reviewed two cases: 1034 Calumett Drive and 4105 Spruce Hills.

March 15, 2017
Group Rental Committee reviewed two cases: 908 W 1st Street and 1029 Amelia Drive #
4.

April 5, 2017
Group Rental Committee reviewed four cases: 1015 W 22nd Street, 1115 W 4th Street,
1429 19th Street, and 2522 Iowa Street.

April 19, 2017
Group Rental Committee reviewed four cases: 422 Clay Street, 1403 Clay Street, 1723
Crescent Drive, and 1818-1820 Olive Street.

May 3, 2017
Group Rental Committee reviewed four cases: 1123 W 1st Street, 1335 Brenton Drive,
1429 W 19th Street, and 2405 Victory Drive.

May 17, 2017
Group Rental Committee reviewed three cases: 1207 W 19th Street, 1807 Alden Avenue,
and 2103 Olive Street.

June 7, 2017
Group Rental Committee reviewed three cases: 508 W Seerley Boulevard, 1616
Washington Street, and 2116 Iowa Street.

June 21, 2017
Group Rental Committee reviewed one case: 3323 Panther Lane.

-119-

Item H.1.f. 



July 5, 2016
The Group Rental Committee did not meet.

July 19, 2017
The Group Rental Committee reviewed five cases: 205 W 22nd Street, 710 W 20th Street,
1422 W 2nd Street, 3524 Woodridge Road, and 3722 Laurinda Drive.

August 2, 2017
Group Rental Committee reviewed one case: 933-935 W 15th Street.

August 16, 2017
Group Rental Committee reviewed three cases: 1118 W 7th Street, 1225 W 20th Street,
and 1322 Clay Street.

September 9, 2017
Group Rental Committee reviewed three cases: 1610 Madison Street, 3109 Cadillac Drive,
and 3914 Heritage Road.

September 20, 2017
Group Rental Committee reviewed three cases 316 W 18th Street, 1518 Iowa Street, and
1821 Walnut Street.

October 4, 2017
Group Rental Committee reviewed three cases: 627-629 Melrose Drive, 1122 Amelia
Drive, and 1522 Springbrooke Drive.

October 18, 2017
Group Rental Committee reviewed one case: 2115 Olive Street.

November 1, 2017
Group Rental Committee reviewed two cases: 422 Clay Street and 1510 W 2nd Street.

November 15, 2017
Group Rental Committee reviewed one case: 1909 Clay Street.

December 6, 2017
Group Rental Committee reviewed two cases: 2628 Iowa Street and 3116 Pocahontas
Road.

December 20, 2017
The Group Rental Committee did not meet.

The Group Rental Committee is comprised of city staff: Stephanie Sheetz, Community
Development Director, John Bostwick, Fire Chief, and Craig Witry, Building Official. See
the next page for a summary of approvals.

-120-

Item H.1.f. 



SUMMARY Of ALL TO DATE:
Occupancy Level Request Approved

5 unrelated 5 0
4 unrelated 86 75
3 unrelated 23 29

family or 2 unrelated NA 10
Total 114 114

SUMMARY 2017:
Occupancy Level Request Approved

5 unrelated 2 0
4 unrelated 39 34
3 unrelated 7 11

family or 2 unrelated NA 3
Total 48 48

-121-

Item H.1.f. 



CEDAR FALLS BOARD OF RENTAL HOUSING APPEALS
2017 Annual Summary

January 23, 2017
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals reviewed one case: 22116 Iowa Street.

February 2017
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals did not meet in February.

March 20, 2017
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals reviewed one case: 908 W 1st Street.

April 10 and April 24, 2017
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals reviewed three cases: 1015 W 22nd Street, 2522

Iowa Street, and 422 Iowa Street.

May 8, 2017
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals reviewed three cases: 1123 W 1st Street, 1429 W
19th Street, and 2405 Victory Street.

June 12, 2017
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals reviewed two cases: 1616 Washington Street and
2116 Iowa Street.

July 2017
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals did not meet in July.

August 21, 2017
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals reviewed one case: 1118 W 7th Street.

September 25, 2017
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals reviewed one case: 1821 Walnut Street.

October 23, 2017
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals reviewed one case: 627-629 Melrose Drive.

November 6, 2017
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals reviewed one case: 1510 W 2nd Street.

December 11, 2017
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals reviewed one case: 2628 Iowa Street.

-122-

Item H.1.f. 



Chair: Rob Green
Vice Chair: Chris Martin

BOARD OF RENTAL HOUSING APPEALS
ATTENDANCE JANUARY 2017 THROUGH DECEMBER 2017

Ja
n.

20
17

Fe
b.

20
17

M
ar

.
20

17

A
pr

.1
0

20
17

A
pr

.2
4

20
17

M
ay

20
17

Ju
ne

20
17

Ju
ly

20
17

A
ug

.
20

17

Se
pt

.
20

17

O
ct

.
20

17

N
ov

.
20

17

D
ec

.
20

17

To
ta

l
R

at
io

%
A

tte
nd

.

Cindy Wiles X

N
o 

m
ee

tin
g

X X O X X

N
o 

m
ee

tin
g

X X X X X 10
/11 91%

Chris Martin X X X O X X O X O O X 7
/11 64%

Mary Jane
McCollum X X X X X X X X X X X 11

/11 100%

Rob Green X O X X O X X O X X X 8
/11 73%

Dan
Berregaard X X X X X O O X X X X 9

/11 82%

Bruce Wingert O X X X X X X O X X X 9
/11 82%

Alyssa Dixon
(term ended
June 2017)

X O X X O 3
/5 60%

Matthew
Johnson (term
started August
2017)

X X X X O 4
/5 80%

X = Present
O =  Not Present

-123-

Item H.1.f. 



Cedar Falls Bike / Pedestrian Advisory Committee
Annual Report of Activities
January 2017 through December 2017

CURRENT COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP:
Luann Alemao-Johnson
Lisa Brodersen
Larry Bucholz
Michael Davidson
Cindy Dodd
Russ Clark
Tara Estep
Nancy Hamilton

Bob Lentz
Mike McCallum
Jacki Schares
Karen Smith
Kelly Wolf, Vice-Chair
Roger White, Chair
Codie Leseman, INRCOG Liaison
David Sturch, Cedar Falls City Liaison

MEETING SCHEDULE:
Monthly meetings are held at the Cedar Falls City Hall Duke Young Conference Room
on the 1st Tuesday of each month from 5:15 to 6:30 pm. The July 2017 meeting was
cancelled.

MISSION STATEMENT:
The Committee’s Mission is to improve the quality of life in Cedar Falls through
increased opportunity for safe walking and bicycling as viable means of transportation
and physical activity.

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES DURING 2016:
ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIVITIES:

 Elected Officers for 2017.
 Recommended additional Committee members.
 Continued review of Cedar Falls Bicycle Network Map.
 Recommended budget appropriation for completing Cedar Falls Bicycle Plan

activities and maintaining Bicycle Friendly Community (BFC) status.
 Created a BPAC Facebook page
 Continued efforts to renew Bronze Bicycle Friendly Community status for Cedar

Falls.
 Work to attain Silver Bicycle Friendly Community status for Cedar Falls.

SUBSTANTIVE ACTIVITIES:
The activities listed below include essential elements across five categories known as
the Five E’s. These activities focus on creating safe and useable accommodations for
bicyclists and pedestrians.

ENGINEERING - Creating safe and convenient places to walk, ride and park.
 Continued participation with the Metropolitan Pedestrian Master Plan

development.
 Continued active support for the Major Thoroughfare and Trail Network plan.

-124-

Item H.1.f. 



 Worked with local church and Cedar Trails Partnership on a compromise parking
proposal for the Main Street reconstruction.

 Sent letter endorsing the Alternative #2 proposal for Main Street reconstruction.
 Recommended the placement of a "No Motor Vehicles" sign at the entrance to

the recreation trail off the city yard waste dump entrance road.
 Recommended marked sharrows on both 12th St. and 18th St. from Main St. to

Hudson Rd. and 4th St. from State St. to Union Rd.
 Recommended removing bicycle stop signs from crossings that have traffic

signal lights.
 Reported malfunctioning crossing signal buttons.
 Queried the Black Hawk County Engineer regarding the narrowing of the

shoulder on W. 27th St.
 Contacted I-Dot regarding possible bike/pedestrian safety modifications at the 1st

St/Union Rd. intersection
 Recommended a pattern of bike traffic flow at the 18th St. underpass to eliminate

bicycle cross traffic patterns.

EDUCATION - Giving people of all ages and abilities the skills and confidence to ride
and walk.

 Organized and participated a Bike Rodeo in conjunction with the Hansen
Elementary School Fun Fair.

 Organized and participated a Bike Rodeo at Southdale Elementary School.
 Helped organize and participated in second annual Cedar Valley Pedal Fest

biking festival.
 Submit article for the Currents magazine regarding the pedestrian, bicycle, and

motorist behavior for safety.
 Participated in presentations to the Rotary Club, Lions Club, and Western Home
 Organized the preparation of an educational video in cooperation with the

Visitors and Tourism Office.

ENCOURAGEMENT - Creating a strong bike and pedestrian culture that welcomes and
celebrates both modes of transportation.

 Created Cedar Falls Bike/Pedestrian Advisory Committee Facebook page.
 Offered a photo contest during Bike to Work Week. Secured and awarded six

prizes from local businesses.
 Continued to support city efforts to facilitate bikes and pedestrians in ongoing

street renewal projects.

ENFORCEMENT - Ensuring safe roads and sidewalks for all users.
 Requested committee representative from the Cedar Falls Police Department’s

Bike Patrol.

-125-

Item H.1.f. 



EVALUATION - Planning for bicycling and walking as safe, viable transportation
options.

 Prepared a Committee Annual Report for 2016 and presented to the City
Council.

 Reviewed the recommendations from the League of American Bicyclists from the
2013 report.

 Researched the current League of American Bicyclists’ criteria for Bronze and
Silver Bicycle Friendly Community (BFC) rankings.

 Discussed how to improve the city’s current Bronze BFC ranking.
 Advocated greater coordination within the community with other bicycling related

groups.
 Acknowledged that Iowa has dropped from 6th place to 30th place in the

rankings of bike friendly states

PROGRESS ON GOALS:
 Focus the Committee’s efforts regarding pedestrian and bicycle activity on the

Five-E’s, namely, Engineering, Education, Encouragement, Enforcement &
Evaluation. – CURRENT and ON-GOING

 Advocate and recommend infrastructure and activities that will make walking and
biking more attractive, enjoyable, practical and safe. - ON-GOING

 Monitor and make recommendations for bike/pedestrian accommodations in the
5-Year and Annual Pavement Management Program and plans for
re-construction of city streets. - CURRENT and ON-GOING

 Continue to participate on the INRCOG Metropolitan Pedestrian Plan Committee.
- ACHIEVED

 Take actions and make recommendations that will increase the opportunity for
Cedar Falls to be designated as “Silver Bicycle Friendly Community” by the
League of American Bicyclists. - ON-GOING

 Participate in activities that encourage and celebrate walking and biking.-
CURRENT and ON-GOING

 Update the Cedar Falls Bicycle Plan as appropriate. - ON-GOING
 Continue to support the Blue Zones project in Cedar Falls. - ON-GOING
 Communicate regularly with the Mayor, the City Council and appropriate City

Staff regarding recommendations and activities. - ON-GOING

PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS FOR 2018 (placed in order of importance):
 Provide funds in the budget for implementing Committee recommendations and

completing activities, especially designation of staff to serve as
Bicycle/Pedestrian Program Manager(s).

 Mark the entire Cedar Falls Bicycle Network with signage and paint where
appropriate.

 Elevate the Cedar Falls Bicycle / Pedestrian Advisory Committee to a standing
committee similar to current boards and commissions.

 Continue assessment of intersections regarding pedestrian and bicycle
accommodations focusing on crosswalks and crossing lights.

-126-

Item H.1.f. 



 Renew Bronze Bicycle Friendly Community status for Cedar Falls.
 Establish a Police Department liaison with the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory

Committee.
 Support the implementation of the Metropolitan Pedestrian Plan.
 Monitor pedestrian/motor vehicle and bicycle/motor vehicle collision statistics and

injuries.

LONG-TERM GOALS:
 Implement the recommendations within the Metropolitan Pedestrian Master Plan
 Increase walkability and pedestrian friendliness in Cedar Falls
 Seek grant funds for intersection improvements for pedestrians and bicyclists.
 Obtain Silver Bicycle Friendly Community status for Cedar Falls.
 Update Zoning Ordinance to include bicycle and pedestrian accommodations.

-127-

Item H.1.f. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 
  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  January 31, 2018 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

(1) Hy-Vee Gas, 6527 University Avenue, Class C beer - renewal. 

(2) AmericInn Lodge and Suites, 5818 Nordic Drive, Class B beer - renewal. 

(3) Second State Brewing Company, 203 State Street, Class B beer - renewal. 

(4) Cottonwood Canyon, 419 Washington Street, Special Class C liquor & outdoor 
service - renewal. 

(5) Hy-Vee Tasting Room, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 

(6) The Hydrant Firehouse Grill, 2002 College Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

-129-

Item H.1.g. 



 



 RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 
 
RESOLUTION DELETING PAYSCALE FOR EMPLOYEE AND DIMINISHING THE 

FOLLOWING POSITION 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA, that the pay, be deleted from the payroll scale for the below listed employee. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the following position be diminished in accordance with 
Chapter 400.28 of State Code and Section 2.5 of the Cedar Falls Civil Service Commission 
Rules and Regulations. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Controller/City Treasurer of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, is hereby authorized to make such deletion. 
 

 
 
    

 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 
Band/ 
Step 

 
Hrly 

 
Hrs. 
Schd. 

 
Stat. 

 
Cls. 

 
Union 

 
Ted Hoodjer 
   CD/Engineering 

         
Land Surveyor 
   Deleted effective Jan. 26, 2018 

 
146 

 
29.810 

 
40 

 
FT 

 
HN 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED THIS ________ day of _____________________, 2018. 
 
 

                    
 
                                                                              _______________________________________ 
                                                                                       James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: ____________________________________ 

       Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC, City Clerk  
 

-131-

Item H.2.a. 



 



 RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 
 
RESOLUTION DELETING PAYSCALE FOR EMPLOYEE AND DIMINISHING THE 

FOLLOWING POSITION 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA, that the pay, be deleted from the payroll scale for the below listed employee. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the following position be diminished in accordance with 
Chapter 400.28 of State Code and Section 2.5 of the Cedar Falls Civil Service Commission 
Rules and Regulations. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Controller/City Treasurer of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, is hereby authorized to make such deletion. 
 

 
 
    

 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 
Band/ 
Step 

 
Hrly 

 
Hrs. 
Schd. 

 
Stat. 

 
Cls. 

 
Union 

 
Rick Coffman 
   CD/Inspection Services 

         
Inspector 
   Deleted effective Jan. 18, 2018 

 
144 

 
35.103 

 
40 

 
FT 

 
HN 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED THIS ________ day of _____________________, 2018. 
 
 

                    
 
                                                                              _______________________________________ 
                                                                                       James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: ____________________________________ 

       Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC, City Clerk  
 

-133-

Item H.2.b. 



 



 RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 
 
RESOLUTION DELETING PAYSCALE FOR EMPLOYEE AND DIMINISHING THE 

FOLLOWING POSITION 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA, that the pay, be deleted from the payroll scale for the below listed employee. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the following position be diminished in accordance with 
Chapter 400.28 of State Code and Section 2.5 of the Cedar Falls Civil Service Commission 
Rules and Regulations. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Controller/City Treasurer of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, is hereby authorized to make such deletion. 
 

 
 
    

 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 
Band/ 
Step 

 
Hrly 

 
Hrs. 
Schd. 

 
Stat. 

 
Cls. 

 
Union 

 
Carey Hoyer 
   MOP/PWP-Vehicle Maint.

         
Equipment Mechanic 
   Deleted effective Feb. 2, 2018 

 
18E 

 
24.522 

 
40 

 
FT 

 
HN 

 
TEAM 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED THIS ________ day of _____________________, 2018. 
 
 

                    
 
                                                                              _______________________________________ 
                                                                                       James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: ____________________________________ 

       Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC, City Clerk  
 

-135-

Item H.2.c. 



 



 RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 
 
RESOLUTION DELETING PAYSCALE FOR EMPLOYEE AND DIMINISHING THE 

FOLLOWING POSITION 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA, that the pay, be deleted from the payroll scale for the below listed employee. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the following position be diminished in accordance with 
Chapter 400.28 of State Code and Section 2.5 of the Cedar Falls Civil Service Commission 
Rules and Regulations. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Controller/City Treasurer of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, is hereby authorized to make such deletion. 
 

 
 
    

 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 
Band/ 
Step 

 
Hrly 

 
Hrs. 
Schd. 

 
Stat. 

 
Cls. 

 
Union 

 
Jordan Hedrick 
   PSS/Fire Operations 

         
Firefighter 
   Deleted effective Feb. 4, 2018 

 
F-1C 

 
22.839 

 
40 

 
FT 

 
HN 

 
FIRE 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED THIS ________ day of _____________________, 2018. 
 
 

                    
 
                                                                              _______________________________________ 
                                                                                       James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: ____________________________________ 

       Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC, City Clerk  
 

-137-

Item H.2.d. 



 



 RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING PAYSCALE FOR NEW EMPLOYEE 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA, that the pay, be and the same is hereby adopted as the payroll scale for the below listed 
employee. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said pay scale shall be effective from the date below to 
June 29, 2018. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Controller/City Treasurer of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, is hereby authorized to make payment from the appropriate funds for the period herein 
stated. 
 

 
 
    
 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 
Band/ 
Step 

 
Hrly 

 
Hrs. 
Schd. 

 
Stat. 

 
Cls. 

 
Union 

 
Mark Robinson 
   MOP/PWP-Refuse 

 
Laborer 
    January 17, 2018 
     
     
         

 
 
8A 
 

 
 
$13.898 
  
 

 
 
28 

 
 
PT 

 
 
HN 

 
 
TEAM 

 
 
 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED THIS ________ day of _____________________, 2018. 
 
 

                    
 
                                                                              _______________________________________ 
                                                                                       James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: ___________________________________ 

       Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC, City Clerk  
 

-139-

Item H.2.e. 



 



 RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING PAYSCALE FOR NEW EMPLOYEES 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA, that the pay, be and the same is hereby adopted as the payroll scale for the below listed 
employees. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said pay scale shall be effective from the date below to 
June 29, 2018. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Controller/City Treasurer of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, is hereby authorized to make payment from the appropriate funds for the period herein 
stated. 
 

    
 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 
Band/ 
Step 

 
Hrly 

 
Hrs. 
Schd. 

 
Stat.

 
Cls. 

 
Union 

 
Kevin Hernandez 
  PSS/Police Operations 

 
Public Safety Officer 
  January 29, 2018 

 
P1S-II 

 
$27.103 

 
40 

 
FT 

 
HN 

 
TEAM 

 
Admir Babic 
   PSS/Police Operations 

 
Public Safety Officer 
  January 30, 2018 
 

 
 
P1S-I 

 
 
24.550  

 
 
40 

 
 
FT 

 
 
HN 

 
 
TEAM 

Adam Hancock 
  PSS/Police Operations 

Public Safety Officer 
  January 30, 2018 
 

 
P1S-I 

 
24.550 

 
40 

 
FT 

 
HN 

 
TEAM 

        

 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED THIS ________ day of _____________________, 2018. 
 

                  
 
 
 
 
                                                                              _______________________________________ 
                                                                                       James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
 
 
ATTEST: ____________________________________ 

       Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC, City Clerk  
 

        

-141-

Item H.2.f. 



 



 RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 
 
RESOLUTION ADOPTING PAYSCALE FOR EMPLOYEE ASSIGNED IN ACTING 

CAPACITY 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA, that the pay, be and the same is hereby adopted as the payroll scale for the below listed 
employee assigned in the capacity of acting lieutenant 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said pay scale shall be effective from the date below to 
June 29, 2018 for the acting position. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Controller/City Treasurer of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, is hereby authorized to make payment from the appropriate funds for the period herein 
stated. 
 

 
 
    
 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 
Band/ 
Step 

 
Hrly 

 
Hrs. 
Schd. 

 
Stat.

 
Cls. 

 
Union 

 
Mike Haislet 
   PSS/Police Oper. 

 
Acting Police Lieutenant-PSO 
    February 4, 2018 
    February 7, 2018 
    

 
 
238 
238           

 
 
35.660 
37.443 

 
 
40 

 
 
FT 

 
 
SE 

                            
                            
  

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED THIS ________ day of _____________________, 2018. 
 
 

                    
 
       _______________________________________ 
                                                                                       James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

       Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC, City Clerk 
 

-143-

Item H.2.g. 



 



 RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING PAYSCALE FOR RECLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA, that the pay, be and the same is hereby adopted as the payroll scale for the below listed 
reclassified employee.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said pay scale shall be effective from the date below to 
June 29, 2018, for the reclassified position.  This resolution hereby reclassifies the employee 
from part-time Maintenance Worker in MOP/PWP-Street to full-time Maintenance Worker in 
MOP/PWP-Refuse. 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Controller/City Treasurer of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, is hereby authorized to make payment from the appropriate funds for the period herein 
stated. 
 

 
 
    
 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 
Band/ 
Step 

 
Hrly 

 
Hrs. 
Schd. 

 
Stat.

 
Cls. 

 
Union 

 
James Dietz 
   MOP/PWP-Refuse 

 
Maintenance Worker 
   January 16, 2018 
    
    

 
 
15D 
 

 
 
$20.805 

 
 
40 

 
 
FT 

 
 
HN 

 
 
TEAM 

      
 
 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED THIS ________ day of _____________________, 2018. 
 
 

                    
 
                                                                              _______________________________________ 
       James P. Brown, Mayor 
 

 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 

       Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC, City Clerk  
 
 

-145-

Item H.2.h. 



 



 RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING PAYSCALE FOR RECLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA, that the pay, be and the same is hereby adopted as the payroll scale for the below listed 
reclassified employee.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said pay scale shall be effective from the date below to 
June 29, 2018 for the reclassified position.  This resolution hereby promotes the employee from 
the position of part-time Community Service Officer I to full-time Public Safety Officer.   
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Controller/City Treasurer of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, is hereby authorized to make payment from the appropriate funds for the period herein 
stated. 
 

 
 
    
 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 
Band/ 
Step 

 
Hrly 

 
Hrs. 
Schd. 

 
Stat.

 
Cls. 

 
Union 

 
Nolan Young 
   PSS/Police Operations 

 
Public Safety Officer 
   January 29, 2018 

 
P1S-I 

 
24.550 

 
40 

 
FT 

 
HN 

 
TEAM 
 

      
 
 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED THIS ________ day of _____________________, 2018. 
 
 

                    
 
                                                                              _______________________________________ 
       James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: ____________________________________ 

       Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC, City Clerk  
 

-147-

Item H.2.i. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE &  

BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126     M E M O R A N D U M
Financial Services Division

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Brenda Balvanz, Personnel Specialist 

 DATE: February 1, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Waterloo Courier Advertising Agreement Renewal 

 
Attached is an Advertising Agreement renewal for your review and approval that will 
continue to minimize the amount of advertising dollars the City spends for recruitment 
with the Waterloo Courier.  
 

If you have questions regarding the attached, feel free to contact me at 268-5112 or 
Jennifer Rodenbeck at 268-5108. 
 

 
Attachment 

-149-

Item H.2.j. 



 



-151-

Item H.2.j. 



-152-

Item H.2.j. 



-153-

Item H.2.j. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members   

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: February 2, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Audit Contract      

 
In 2015, request for proposals for audit services were sent out to nine firms.  The 
proposal was for a 3-year period (FY15, FY16, and FY17), with the option to renew for 
three more years.  We received four bids from CliftonLarsonAllen, Eide Bailly LLP, 
McGladrey LLP, and Williams & Company at that time and Eide Bailly was selected.   
 
As stated above the current contract does have the option to renew for an additional 
three years.  (Current contract is attached) Eide Bailly has provided new fee amounts 
per the attached extension proposal.  They are proposing maintaining the same fee for 
FY18 that we paid for the FY17 audit and then only a $1,500 increase each year for 
FY19 and FY20. Therefore, since the contract has an option to renew and the new fees 
and annual increases are reasonable I am recommending extending the contract for an 
additional 3-year period. In addition, we have been very pleased with the high quality 
service that Eide Bailly provides to the City.  
 
If you have questions regarding the contract or the audit process, please feel free to 
contact me.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-155-

Item H.2.k. 



 



-157-

Item H.2.k. 



-158-

Item H.2.k. 



-159-

Item H.2.l. 



-160-

Item H.2.l. 



-161-

Item H.2.l. 



-162-

Item H.2.l. 



-163-

Item H.2.l. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS & PROGRAMS 
 

 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 

ADMINISTRATION DIVISION 
2200 TECHNOLOGY PKWY 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 
 
PUBLIC WORKS/PARKS 
DIVISION 
2200 TECHNOLOGY PKWY 
319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown  and City Council 

       FROM: Brian M. Heath, Public Works/Parks Div. Manager  

 DATE: January 30, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Fire Apparatus Purchase 

 

A bid opening was held on January 25, 2018 for a Fire Rescue 
Pumper Apparatus. Specifications were sent to six (6) manufacturers 
with a total of three (3) companies providing a bid response.   
 
The following is a summation of the bids that were received: 
 
Toyne Mfg., (Spartan Chassis, Toyne Body) $524,550.24 
 
Feld Fire Equipment  (Spartan ERV)   $560,819.00 
 
Fire Safety USA, INC. (E-One)   $594,660.00 
   
After reviewing the bid documents, the low bid from Toyne Mfg. is in 
order and did meet the City’s specifications. Toyne is an Iowa based 
company located in Breda, Iowa and is the same manufacturer that 
was awarded the contract for the most recently purchased Cedar Falls 
fire truck. 
 
The Capital Improvements Program has this project listed in FY19 at a 
budgeted amount of $500,000.00. The additional $24,550.24 will be 
allocated from the Fire Division operating budget. Further, the 
projected build time for this apparatus is 365 days, which fits into the 
budget time line. 
 
It is the recommendation of the Municipal Operations and Programs 
and Public Safety Departments to enter into a purchase agreement 
with Toyne Mfg. in the amount of $524,550.24 for the construction and 
purchase of the specified Fire/Rescue Pumper Apparatus. 
 
Please feel free to contact me if you have questions.  

 

-165-

Item H.2.m. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Water Reclamation Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and Council Members 

 FROM: Mike Nyman, Water Reclamation Manager 

 DATE: February 1, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Sartori Farm Lease  

 
Proposals were received on January 25th for leasing the Sartori Trust 
farmland. This land is used by the Water Reclamation Division for 
application of biosolids throughout the year. Evaluation of the RFPs was 
based upon price per acre, land conservation and improvement plans, as 
well as additional services provided.  
 
The proposed price per acre ranged from $331 to a low of $220. The 
current tenant farmer, Luhring & Luhring Farms of Dike, submitted a 
proposal of $305 with an extensive list of services offered. Luhring Farms 
utilize a registered Soil Conservation Plan to maintain the quality of the 
land and limit soil erosion and nutrient migration. They also provide 
detailed data on soil and crops to aid the City in preparing annual state 
and federal reports. Luhring & Luhring Farms also provides extensive 
equipment and services to aid in solids application operations. Their 
proposal was much more extensive than other offers. 
 
Considering the services offered, the quality of land management, and 
past experience with Luhring & Luhring Farms, it is my recommendation 
that the City enter into the attached three-year lease with Luhring & 
Luhring Farms.  
 
Please contact me if you have any questions or concerns. A list of 
proposals offered can be provided upon request. 
 
 
 
c: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development     

-167-

Item H.2.n. 



 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Prepared by:  Steven D. Moore,  415 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa           (319) 277-6830 
 
 

FARM LEASE AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS LEASE ("Lease") is made this _____ day of ___________, 2018, between the City 
of Cedar Falls, Iowa ("Landlord"), whose address for the purpose of this lease is c/o City Clerk, 
220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613, and Luhring and Luhring Farms, an Iowa general 
partnership ("Tenant"), whose address for the purpose of this lease is 13959 U Avenue, Dike, 
Iowa 50624. 
 
 THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 1. Premises and Term.  Landlord leases to Tenant the following real estate (the 
"Real Estate") located in Grundy County, Iowa, and Black Hawk County, Iowa, to-wit: 
 

See legal description on Exhibit "A" attached hereto, and by this  
reference made a part hereof, 
 

and containing 390 total acres, more or less, including 70 acres for the Set Aside Tract described 
in paragraph 6, 14.8 acres of grass waterways, 14.4 acres of filter strips, and 290.8 tillable acres, 
more or less, with possession by Tenant for a term of three (3) years to commence on March 1, 
2018, and to end on February 29, 2021.  The Tenant has had or been offered an opportunity to 
make an independent investigation as to the acres and boundaries of the premises.  In the event 
that possession cannot be delivered within thirty (30) days after commencement of this Lease, 
Tenant may terminate this Lease by giving the Landlord notice in writing. 
 
 2. Rent.  Tenant shall pay to Landlord as rent for the Real Estate (the "Rent"): 
 
 Total annual cash rent of Ninety Seven Thousand Six Hundred and no/100 Dollars 
($97,600), payable $48,800 on March 1, 2018, and $48,800 on November 1, 2018, and a like 
amount on each March 1 and November 1 thereafter during the term of this lease.   
 

-169-

Item H.2.n. 



 2

 All Rent is to be paid to Landlord at the address above or at such other place as Landlord 
may direct in writing.  Rent must be in Landlord's possession on or before the due date.  
Participation of the Real Estate in any offered program by the U.S. Department of Agriculture or 
the State of Iowa for crop production control or soil conservation, the observance of the terms 
and conditions of this program, and the division of farm program payments, requires Landlord's 
consent.  Tenant shall be entitled to collect all Conservation Reserve Program (CRP) rental 
payments for all grass waterways (currently consisting of approximately 14.8 acres) and all filter 
strips (currently consisting of approximately 14.4 acres), now or hereafter located on the Real 
Estate, and including all incentive payments associated therewith, and all cost-share assistance 
provided by, the U. S. Department of Agriculture in connection therewith.  Tenant's entitlement 
shall include governmental cost-sharing payments for permanent soil conservation structures, 
including all waterways and filter strips.   Tenant shall also be entitled to all payments from 
participation in crop production, crop set aside and crop disaster payment programs of the 
USDA, except as otherwise specifically provided in this Lease.   
 
 3. Landlord's Lien and Security Interest.  As security for all sums due or which will 
become due from Tenant to Landlord under this Lease, Tenant hereby grants to Landlord, in 
addition to any statutory liens, a security interest as provided in the Iowa Uniform Commercial 
Code and a contractual lien in all crops produced on the premises and the proceeds and products 
thereof, all contract rights concerning such crops, proceeds and/or products, all proceeds of 
insurance collected on account of destruction of such crops, all contract rights and U.S. 
government and/or state agricultural farm program payments in connection with the Real Estate, 
whether such contract rights be payable in cash or in kind, including the proceeds from such 
rights.  At Landlord's request made at any time during this Lease, Tenant shall sign and deliver to 
Landlord a Uniform Commercial Code UCC financing statement showing the existence of this 
security interest.  At Landlord's request, Tenant shall also sign any additional forms required to 
validate the Landlord's security interest in government program payments. 
 
 4. Proper Husbandry, Care of Soil, Trees, Shrubs and Grass.  Tenant shall farm the 
Real Estate in a manner consistent with good husbandry.  Tenant agrees to conduct Tenant's 
operations on the Real Estate in such a manner as will comply with the Iowa Department of 
Natural Resources (the "DNR") requirements relating to biosolids application, and requirements 
regarding crop nutrient demands.  Tenant shall timely control all weeds, including noxious 
weeds, weeds in the fence rows, along driveways and throughout the premises. Tenant shall 
comply with all terms of the USDA Conservation Plan and any other required environmental 
plans for the Real Estate. Tenant shall do what is reasonably necessary to control soil erosion, 
including, but not limited to, the maintenance of existing watercourses, waterways, filter strips, 
ditches, drainage areas, terraces and tile drains, and shall abstain from any practice which will 
cause damage to the Real Estate.  Tenant agrees to trim volunteer trees and brush from fence 
lines and ditches. 
 

Tenant shall by August 15 of each lease year provide to Landlord a written listing 
showing all crops planted, including the acres of each crop planted, fertilizers, herbicides and 
insecticides applied showing the place of application, the name and address of the applicator, the 
type of application and the quantity of such items applied on the leased premises during such 
year.  

-170-

Item H.2.n. 



 3

 Tenant shall not remove from the Real Estate, nor burn, any straw, stalks, stubble, or 
similar plant materials, all of which are recognized as the property of Landlord, without prior 
permission of the Landlord.  Tenant may use these materials, however, upon the Real Estate for 
the farming operations.  Tenant shall protect all trees, vines and shrubbery upon the Real Estate 
from injury by Tenant's cropping operation.  Tenant further understands Tenant cannot spread 
manure on any of the land which comprises the Real Estate covered by this Lease. 
 
 Tenant acknowledges that Tenant is responsible to maintain and satisfy all USDA rules, 
regulations and requirements with regard to all CRP contracts or any other similar governmental 
contracts which the Tenant elects to participate in with respect to any of the Real Estate that 
comprises this Lease.  Tenant agrees to be responsible for payment of any penalties the USDA 
may impose associated with any such contracts, and to indemnify and hold Landlord harmless 
therefrom. 
 
 5. Environmental.  Tenant shall comply with all applicable environmental laws 
concerning application, storage and handling of chemicals (including, without limitation, 
herbicides and insecticides) and fertilizers.  Tenant shall apply any chemicals used for weed or 
insect control at levels not to exceed the manufacturer's recommendation for the soil types 
involved.  Farm chemicals may not be stored on the premises.  No chemicals or chemical 
containers will be disposed of on the premises.  Application of chemicals for agricultural 
purposes per manufacturer's recommendation shall not be construed to constitute disposal. 
 Tenant shall employ all means appropriate to insure that well or groundwater 
contamination does not occur, and shall be responsible to follow all applicators' licensing 
requirements.  Tenant shall install and maintain safety check valves for injection of any 
chemicals and/or fertilizers into an irrigation system (injection valve only, not main well check 
valve).  Tenant shall properly post all fields (when posting is required) whenever chemicals are 
applied by ground or air.  Tenant shall not dispose of waste oil, tires, batteries, paint, other 
chemicals or containers anywhere on the premises.  Solid waste may not be disposed of on the 
premises.  Dead livestock may not be buried on the premises.  Tenant shall not use waste oil as a 
means to suppress dust on any roads on or near the premises.  No underground storage tanks 
shall be maintained on the premises.   
 Tenant shall immediately notify Landlord of any chemical discharge, leak, or spill which 
occurs on the leased premises.  Tenant shall assume liability and shall indemnify and hold 
Landlord harmless for any claim or violation of standards which results from Tenant's use of the 
Real Estate.  Tenant shall assume defense of all claims, except claims resulting from Landlord's 
negligence, in which case each party shall be responsible for that party's defense of any claim.  
After termination, Tenant shall remain liable for violations which occurred during the term of 
this Lease. 
 
  6. Application of Biosolids on a Portion of the Real Estate.  Each year during the 
term of the Lease, Landlord and Tenant agree that a portion of the Real Estate, consisting of a 
tract of  seventy (70) acres (the "Set Aside Tract"), located on the portion of the Real Estate 
situated in Black Hawk County, Iowa, shall be set aside for use by Landlord for its biosolids land 
application program.  The precise tract to be set aside during each year of the lease term shall be 
determined by Landlord, and shall be rotated from year to year, so that the same parcel is not set 
aside for such biosolids application for more than one (1) consecutive year.  Tenant shall not be 

-171-

Item H.2.n. 



 4

allowed to place the Set Aside Tract in crop production for the year for which it is set aside.  
Tenant shall be responsible, however, to establish a suitable cover crop (of a type of crop 
reasonably acceptable to Landlord) on the Set Aside Tract each year, using Tenant's own 
equipment.  Tenant's responsibilities with respect to the Set Aside Tract shall include preparing 
the ground for biosolids application, planting all required cover crop seed thereon, and 
harvesting the cover crop.  All cover crop harvested, less an appropriate quantity of such cover 
crop for seed for the following year, shall be the property of Landlord.  Tenant agrees to harvest 
all such cover crop at the end of the crop year, and transport the Landlord's share of the cover 
crop to an elevator and sell the same for Landlord's account at the written direction of Landlord, 
all at the expense of Tenant.  At the end of each crop year, and at such other times during the 
lease term as Landlord deems appropriate, Tenant shall incorporate all biosolids materials 
applied on the Set Aside Tract into the soil in a manner which complies with Landlord's 
requirements and the requirements of the Iowa DNR.  Landlord shall notify Tenant each time 
that biosolids are to be incorporated into the soil.  Tenant agrees to comply in all respects with 
the rules and regulations of the Iowa DNR for the application of biosolids on the Set Aside Tract.  
Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Lease, application of the biosolids on the Set 
Aside Tract shall be done by Landlord's agents at Landlord's expense, and Tenant shall have no 
responsibility for the application of the biosolids.  Any soil sampling required in connection with 
Landlord's application of the biosolids on the Set Aside Tract shall be Landlord's responsibility.  
Any soil sampling required by the Iowa DNR or USDA in connection with Tenant's participation 
in any CRP or USDA program, or soil sampling done at Tenant's option, shall be accomplished 
at Tenant's expense.  All fertilizer and soil pH adjustments on the Real Estate shall be paid for by 
Tenant.  Tenant agrees to keep written documentation of all such tests and results in order that 
Landlord may furnish such reports to the Iowa DNR or USDA.   
 
 7. Establishment and Maintenance of Waterways and Filter Strips. 
 

(a.)  Existing Grass Waterways.  Tenant agrees to assume responsibility for all 
grass waterways currently located on the Real Estate as of the date of commencement of this 
Lease.  This responsibility shall include minor repair work to and cleaning out of such grass 
waterways, maintenance of such waterways, including mowing, and any other work Landlord 
deems appropriate to assure that said existing grass waterways meet acceptable conservation 
practices and comply with the USDA Conservation Plan for the Real Estate.   

(b.)  New Waterways.  Tenant shall be responsible for the cost of establishing any 
new grass waterways and filter strips on the Real Estate in accordance with Landlord's USDA 
Conservation Plan.  This includes the cost of land preparation and seeding of new grass 
waterways and filter strips.  All of such costs shall be paid by Tenant.  After any such new grass 
waterways and filter strips are established, then Tenant agrees to perform all work thereon on the 
same terms and conditions as set forth in subparagraph (a) of this paragraph 8 with regard to 
existing waterways, both during the remainder of the lease term, and during any renewal of this 
Lease.  Landlord and Tenant agree that Tenant may apply for and be entitled to receive any 
payments from the USDA for the cost of establishment of new grass waterways and filter strips 
on the Real Estate. 
 
  

-172-

Item H.2.n. 



 5

8. Termination of Lease.  This Lease shall automatically renew upon expiration of 
the lease term provided in paragraph 1 of this Lease, on a year-to-year basis, upon the same 
terms and conditions provided for in this Lease, unless either party gives legal and timely written 
notice to the other party of an election not to renew this Lease as provided by law, namely, on or 
before September 1 prior to the termination date of this Lease, provided, however, that this Lease 
shall not renew because of an absence of giving of notice in the event there is a default in the 
performance of this Lease.  All notices of termination of this Lease shall be as provided by Iowa 
law.   
 
 9. Possession and Condition at End of Term.  At the termination of this Lease, 
Tenant will relinquish possession of the Real Estate to Landlord.  If Tenant fails to do so, Tenant 
agrees to pay Landlord $250.00 per day, as liquidated damages until possession is delivered to 
Landlord.  At the time of delivery of the Real Estate to Landlord, Tenant shall assure that the 
Real Estate is in good order and condition, and substantially the same as it was when received by 
Tenant at the commencement of this Lease, excusable or insurable loss by fire, unavoidable 
accidents and ordinary wear, excepted. 
 
 10. Landlord's Right of Entry and Inspection.  Landlord or its agents may enter upon 
the Real Estate at any reasonable time for purposes of applying biosolids to the  seventy (70) 
acre Set Aside Tract, as provided in paragraph 6 of this Lease.  Landlord or its agents may also 
enter upon the Real Estate at any reasonable time for the purpose of viewing, testing, sampling or 
inspecting any or all portions of the Real Estate to assure compliance with the terms of this Lease 
and any USDA and Iowa DNR requirements, or for other reasonable purposes.  In the event 
notice of termination of this Lease has been properly served, Landlord may enter upon the Real 
Estate, or authorize an agent to enter upon the Real Estate, to conduct any normal tillage, 
fertilizer operation or other operations after Tenant has completed the harvesting of crops, even 
if this is prior to the date of termination of the Lease. 
 
 11. Violation of Terms of Lease.  If either Tenant or Landlord violates the terms of 
this Lease, the other party may pursue the legal and equitable remedies to which each is entitled.  
Tenant's failure to pay any Rent when due shall cause all unpaid Rent to become immediately 
due and payable, without any notice to or demand upon Tenant. 
 
 12. Repairs.  Tenant shall maintain the fences on the leased premises in good and 
proper repair.  Landlord shall furnish necessary materials for repairs that Landlord deems 
necessary within a reasonable time after being notified by Tenant of the need for repairs.  Tenant 
shall haul the materials to the repair site without charge to Landlord.  Fences may be removed, 
and then only at Tenant's expense, only with the written consent of Landlord.   
 
 13. New Improvements.  All fences and improvements of every kind and nature that 
may be erected or established upon the Real Estate during the term of the Lease by the Tenant 
shall constitute additional Rent and shall inure to the Real Estate, becoming the property of 
Landlord, unless Landlord has agreed in writing prior to the erection of the same that the Tenant 
may remove the improvement at the end of the Lease. 
 

-173-

Item H.2.n. 



 6

 14. Well, Windmill and Water Systems.  Tenant shall maintain all existing well, 
windmill and water systems on the Real Estate, if any, in good repair at Tenant's expense except 
damage caused by windstorm or weather.  Tenant shall not be responsible for replacement or 
installation of such systems on the Real Estate, beyond ordinary maintenance expenses.  
Landlord does not guarantee continuous or adequate supplies of water for the Real Estate. 
 
 15. Expenses Incurred Without Consent of Landlord.  No expense shall be incurred 
for or on account of the Landlord without Tenant first obtaining Landlord's written authorization.  
Tenant shall take no actions that might cause a mechanic's lien to be imposed upon the Real 
Estate. 
 
 16. No Hunting.  No hunting is to be allowed on the Real Estate which is the subject 
of this Lease at any time by any person. 
 
 17. No Agency.  Tenant is not an agent of the Landlord. 
 
 18. Attorney Fees and Court Costs.  If either party files suit to enforce any of the 
terms of this Lease, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover court costs and reasonable 
attorney's fees. 
 
 19. Change in Lease Terms.  The conduct of either party, by act or omission, shall not 
be construed as a material alteration of this Lease until such provision is reduced to writing and 
executed by both parties as an addendum to this Lease. 
 
 20. Notices.  The notice contemplated in this Lease shall be made in writing and shall 
either be delivered in person, or be mailed by U.S. mail, certified mail to the recipient's last 
known mailing address, except for the notice of termination described in paragraph 9, which 
shall be governed by Iowa law. 
 
 21. Assignment.  Tenant shall not assign this Lease, or sublet the Real Estate or any 
portion thereof, without prior written authorization of Landlord.  Any such assignment or 
subletting without Landlord's consent shall cause an immediate termination of the Lease, and 
shall require all unpaid Rent due under this Lease to be immediately due and payable to Landlord 
without any notice to or demand upon Tenant. 
 
 22. Certification.  Tenant certifies that it is not acting, directly or indirectly, for or on 
behalf of any person, group, entity or nation named by any Executive Order or the United States 
Treasury Department as a terrorist, “Specially Designated National and Blocked Person” or any 
other banned or blocked person, entity, nation or transaction pursuant to any law, order, rule or 
regulation that is enforced or administered by the Office of Foreign Assets Control; and it is not 
engaged in this transaction, directly or indirectly on behalf of, or instigating or facilitating this 
transaction, directly or indirectly on behalf of, any such person, group, entity or nation.  Tenant 
hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless Landlord from and against any and all 
claims, damages, losses, risks, liabilities and expenses (including attorney’s fees and costs) 
arising from or related to any breach of the foregoing certification. 
 

-174-

Item H.2.n. 



 7

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease Agreement on the date 
set forth above. 
 
 
 
 
 
Luhring and Luhring Farms,   THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
an Iowa general partnership    
 
       By: _________________________ 
By:___________________________    James P Brown , Mayor 
 Eric W. Luhring, General Partner   
       ATTEST: 
By:___________________________ 
 Ana E. Luhring, General Partner  ______________________________ 
       Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk 
 
        Landlord 
 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, ss: 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ________ day of _______________,  
 
 
 
      ________________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for said County and State 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, ss: 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ________ day of _____________, 
2018, by James P Brown and Jacque Danielsen, as Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
      _______________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

-175-

Item H.2.n. 



 8

EXHIBIT "A" 
Legal Description 

 
Real estate located in Black Hawk County, Iowa, legally described as follows: 
 
Southwest Fractional Quarter (SW FR 1/4) and the West One-half (W 1/2) of the Southeast 
Quarter (SE 1/4) of Section No. Seven (7) in Township Eighty-nine (89) North, Range No. 
Fourteen (14) West of the 5th P.M. in Black Hawk County, Iowa. 
 
Real estate located in Grundy County, Iowa, legally described as follows: 
 
The Southeast Quarter (SE 1/4) of Section No. Twelve (12), Township No. Eighty-nine (89) 
North, Range No. Fifteen (15), West of the 5th P.M., excepting therefrom the cemetery located 
in the southeast corner of said Section, and also excepting therefrom the following:  A part of the 
Northeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 12, Township 89 North, Range 15 West of 
the 5th P.M. in Grundy County, Iowa, Commencing at the East Quarter Corner of said Section 
12 (said corner also being the Northeast corner of the Northeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter 
of said Section 12); thence South 391.5 feet along the East line said Section 12 to the point of 
beginning; thence N 89°08'W. 33.0 feet; thence N 49°06' W. 32.85 feet; thence N 89°08' W383.8 
feet; thence South 609.2 feet; thence S 89°05' E 441.8 feet to the East line of said Section 12; 
thence North 588.6 feet along said East line to the point of beginning.  Subject to legal road 
easements.  The East line of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 12 is assumed to bear North-
South. 
 

-176-

Item H.2.n. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: January 31, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: Levee/Floodwall System Improvements Project 
  Project No. FL – 000 – 1975 
  Temporary Easement Agreement 
 
 
 
 
The Engineering Division is currently in construction of the Levee/Floodwall System 
Improvements Project. This project involves raising the level of flood protection along 
the length of the levee by approximately two (2) feet. The improvements to the system 
will involve both new structural walls as well as increased earthen sections.  
 
This project requires an updated temporary easement from one property in order to 
complete the repairs to the Levee/Floodwall System for the 2018 construction season. 
The Temporary Easement Agreement is attached for review. This easement is part of 
Lots 2, 3, and 4 of Auditor’s Mill Company Plat. 
 
The Engineering Division recommends that the Temporary Easement Agreement with 
Westernhome Independent Living Services, INC. be accepted by the City Council and 
recorded at the Black Hawk County Recorder’s Office.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, PE, City Engineer 
 

-177-

Item H.2.o. 



 



-179-

Item H.2.o. 



-180-

Item H.2.o. 



-181-

Item H.2.o. 



 



-183-

Item H.2.p. 



 



-185-

Item H.2.p. 



-186-

Item H.2.p. 



-187-

Item H.2.p. 



-188-

Item H.2.p. 



  

-189-

Item
 H

.2.p. 



  

-190-

Item
 H

.2.p. 



 

-191-

Item
 H

.2.p. 



 



-193-

Item H.2.q. 



 



-195-

Item H.2.q. 



 



-197-

Item H.2.q. 



-198-

Item H.2.q. 



-199-

Item H.2.q. 



-200-

Item H.2.q. 



-201-

Item H.2.q. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: January 24, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: 2017 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 8 
  Project No. SW-000-3122 
  Presentation of Final Statement of Expenditures for Material and Labor 
 
The 2017 Sidewalk Assessment Project for Zone 8 is completed and ready for 
assessment. The project repaired deficient sidewalk adjacent to 109 private properties 
for a total assessment cost of $34,543.20.  
 
In 2015, approximately 550 notices were sent out for defective or missing sidewalk. The 
notices informed the property owners of their responsibility to repair the adjacent 
sidewalk. If the property owners didn’t repair the sidewalk, the City would repair the 
sidewalk and assess the property. Eighty percent of the property owners notified 
repaired the defective or missing sidewalk, and twenty percent of the property owners 
notified did not repair the defective or missing sidewalk.  The average cost of defective 
sidewalk is $316.91 with the highest cost at approximately $1,674.30.  
 
Attached please find the Final Statement of Expenditures for Material and Labor for the 
2017 Sidewalk Assessment Project for Zone 8.  
 
I recommend that the City Council approve and accept the Final Statement of 
Expenditures for Material and Labor for the 2017 Sidewalk Assessment Project for Zone 
8. 
 
 
xc:   Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
  Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
 
 
 

-203-

Item H.2.r. 



 



Address Item No. 1 Unit Price Extended Item No. 2 Unit Price Extended Item No. 3 Unit Price Extended Item No. 4 Unit Price Extended Item No. 5 Unit Price Extended Item No. 6 Unit Price Extended Item No. 7 Unit Price Extended Item No. 8 Unit Price Extended Total Cost of Replacement

Property Owner Mailing Address City State Zip Code or Legal Description Removal of price Sidewalk price Sidewalk price Topsoil price Seeding price Curb Stop price Granular price Traffic Control price or Installation

Location Sidewalk (S.F.) Replacement 4" Replacement 6" (C.Y.) (S.F.) (EACH) Backfill (L.S.)

(S.F.) (S.F.) (Tons)

Michael Niedert 3313 Boulder Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 3313 Boulder Drive 8914-24-230-028 35.60 $1.75 $62.30 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 35.60 $5.75 $204.70 0.00 $50.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.00 $0.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $303.70

Karen Lutz 3406 Boulder Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 3406 Boulder Drive 8914-24-280-001 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $153.70

Rex Massey 1940 13th Ave. NE Dyersville IA 52040 711  Lilac Lane 8914-24-280-002 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $153.70

Nicole Nielsen 717 Lilac Lane Cedar Falls IA 50613 717 Lilac Lane 8914-24-280-003 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $153.70

Lytishya Borglum 723 Lilac Lane Cedar Falls IA 50613 723 Lilac Lane 8914-24-280-004 31.60 $1.75 $55.30 31.60 $4.75 $150.10 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.20 $50.00 $10.00 15.80 $1.00 $15.80 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $267.90

Wegmann Real Estate Compay LLC 1006 Indigo Street Grundy Center IA 50638 806 Lilac Lane 8914-24-277-008 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 16.00 $5.75 $92.00 0.00 $50.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.00 $0.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $156.70

Ricky Retterath 1009 Lilac Lane Cedar Falls IA 50613 1009 Lilac Lane 8913-19-152-002 32.40 $1.75 $56.70 16.40 $4.75 $77.90 16.00 $5.75 $92.00 0.12 $50.00 $6.00 10.30 $1.00 $10.30 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $279.60

Eugene Hoffert 1027 Lilac Lane Cedar Falls IA 50613 1027 Lilac Lane 8913-19-152-005 36.00 $1.75 $63.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 20.00 $5.75 $115.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $303.70

Annika Anderberg 1107 Lilac Lane Cedar Falls IA 50613 1107 Lilac Lane 8913-19-152-008 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $153.70

Jesus Guzman 211 E. Southridge Road Marshallltown IA 50158 717 Calumett Drive 8914-24-281-003 15.20 $1.75 $26.60 15.20 $4.75 $72.20 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.09 $50.00 $4.50 7.60 $1.00 $7.60 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $147.60

John Toenjes 718 Calumett Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 718 Calumett Drive 8914-24-280-016 50.40 $1.75 $88.20 31.20 $4.75 $148.20 19.20 $5.75 $110.40 0.19 $50.00 $9.50 15.60 $1.00 $15.60 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $408.60

Steven Welch 723 Calumett Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 723 Calumett Drive 8914-24-281-004 20.00 $1.75 $35.00 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 20.00 $5.75 $115.00 0.00 $50.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.00 $0.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $186.70

Nathan Rodamaker 5219 Marius Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1034 Calumett Drive 8913-19-152-019 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $153.70

Brian Baird 3506 Boulder Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 3506 Boulder Drive 8914-24-281-001 53.60 $1.75 $93.80 32.00 $4.75 $152.00 21.60 $5.75 $124.20 0.20 $50.00 $10.00 16.00 $1.00 $16.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $432.70

Suzanne Oshita 1119 Calumett Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1119 Calumett Drive 8913-19-153-010 32.00 $1.75 $56.00 32.00 $4.75 $152.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.20 $50.00 $10.00 16.00 $1.00 $16.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $270.70

Kimberly Loeckle 3406 Woodridge Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 3406 Woodridge Drive 8913-19-152-001 110.00 $1.75 $192.50 110.00 $4.75 $522.50 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.58 $50.00 $29.00 46.60 $1.00 $46.60 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $827.30

Salah Mohammed Al Shekaahmed 304 Orchard Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 304 Orchard Drive 8914-24-252-016 32.00 $1.75 $56.00 32.00 $4.75 $152.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.20 $50.00 $10.00 16.00 $1.00 $16.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $270.70

William Heacock 3510 Dallas Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 3510 Dallas Drive 8914-24-278-010 49.20 $1.75 $86.10 49.20 $4.75 $233.70 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.30 $50.00 $15.00 24.60 $1.00 $24.60 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $396.10

Kelly Barber 417 Orchard Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 417 Orchard Drive 8914-24-401-008 33.60 $1.75 $58.80 33.60 $4.75 $159.60 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.21 $50.00 $10.50 16.80 $1.00 $16.80 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $282.40

Timothy Nieman 718 Orchard Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 718 Orchard Drive 8914-24-281-016 19.60 $1.75 $34.30 19.60 $4.75 $93.10 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.12 $50.00 $6.00 9.80 $1.00 $9.80 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $179.90

Rebecca Davis 806 Orchard Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 806 Orchard Drive 8914-24-281-019 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $153.70

Cedar Falls Church Inc 805 Orchard Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 805 Orchard Drive 8914-24-427-003 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $153.70

Glenda Johnson 1314 Orchard Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1314 Orchard Drive 8913-19-180-008 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $153.70

Jamison Moser 1319 Orchard Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1319 Orchard Drive 8913-19-326-033 34.80 $1.75 $60.90 34.80 $4.75 $165.30 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.22 $50.00 $11.00 17.40 $1.00 $17.40 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $291.30

Thomas Keating 3607 Carlton Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 3607 Carlton Drive 8913-19-326-002 128.00 $1.75 $224.00 128.00 $4.75 $608.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.79 $50.00 $39.50 64.00 $1.00 $64.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $972.20

Rosemary Hornick 1500 Orchard Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1500 Orchard Drive 8913-19-181-014 47.60 $1.75 $83.30 47.60 $4.75 $226.10 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.29 $50.00 $14.50 23.80 $1.00 $23.80 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $384.40

Joan Stanton 3526 Homeway drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 3526 Homeway Drive 8913-19-182-017 15.60 $1.75 $27.30 15.60 $4.75 $74.10 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 7.80 $1.00 $7.80 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $150.90

Bradley Fredericksen 1703 Orchard Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1703 Orchard Drive 8913-19-401-001 15.20 $1.75 $26.60 15.20 $4.75 $72.20 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.09 $50.00 $4.50 7.60 $1.00 $7.60 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $147.60

Jeffrey Lestina 3520 McClain Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 3520 McClain Drive 8913-19-252-005 48.40 $1.75 $84.70 48.40 $4.75 $229.90 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.30 $50.00 $15.00 24.20 $1.00 $24.20 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $390.50

Gene Lutz 1921  Orchard Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1921 Orchard Drive 8913-19-401-010 32.40 $1.75 $56.70 32.40 $4.75 $153.90 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.20 $50.00 $10.00 16.20 $1.00 $16.20 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $273.50

Kurt Katuin 1931 Orchard Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1931 Orchard Drive 8913-19-401-011 97.60 $1.75 $170.80 64.00 $4.75 $304.00 33.60 $5.75 $193.20 0.40 $50.00 $20.00 32.00 $1.00 $32.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $756.70

John Gilbert 1911 Orchard Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1911 Orchard Drive 8913-19-401-009 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 16.00 $5.75 $92.00 0.00 $50.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.00 $0.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $156.70

Harvest Mallard Point Retirement P.O. Box 128109 Nashville TN 37212 2603 Orchard Drive 8913-20-301-010 96.40 $1.75 $168.70 96.40 $4.75 $457.90 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.59 $50.00 $29.50 48.20 $1.00 $48.20 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $741.00

DB Square LC 2717 Orchard Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2717 Orchard Drrive 8913-20-301-003 80.00 $1.75 $140.00 80.00 $4.75 $380.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.49 $50.00 $24.50 40.00 $1.00 $40.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $621.20

Stephen Lukas 3617 Knoll Ridge Cedar Falls IA 50613 3617 Knoll Ridge 8913-19-303-015 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 16.00 $5.75 $92.00 0.00 $50.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.00 $0.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $156.70

Dale Hendrickson 4803 Briarwood Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 4803 Briarwood Drive 8913-19-354-050 32.40 $1.75 $56.70 32.40 $4.75 $153.90 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.20 $50.00 $10.00 16.20 $1.00 $16.20 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $273.50

Robert Hasty 4821 Briarwood Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 4821 Briarwood Drive 8913-19-354-052 23.60 $1.75 $41.30 23.60 $4.75 $112.10 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.15 $50.00 $7.50 11.80 $1.00 $11.80 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $209.40

Marshall Freeman 4222 Maryhill Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 4222 Maryhill Drive 8913-19-378-003 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $153.70

John Reindl 4128 Maryhill Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 4128 Maryhill Drive 8913-19-378-006 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $153.70

Jeffrey Jorgensen 4026 Maryhill Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 4026 Maryhill Drive 8913-19-378-010 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $153.70

Kent Williams P.O. Box 4114 Waterloo IA 50704 4007 Carlton Drive 8913-19-378-013 35.20 $1.75 $61.60 35.20 $4.75 $167.20 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.22 $50.00 $11.00 17.60 $1.00 $17.60 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $294.10

Gaylen Hutchins 1715 Primrose Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1715 Primrose Drive 8913-19-402-002 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 16.00 $5.75 $92.00 0.00 $50.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.00 $0.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $156.70

William Bartlett 1911 Primrose Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1911 Primrose Drive 8913-19-402-008 41.60 $1.75 $72.80 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 41.60 $5.75 $239.20 0.00 $50.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.00 $0.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $348.70

James Hellman 1921 Primrose Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1921 Primrose Drive 8913-19-402-009 44.00 $1.75 $77.00 28.00 $4.75 $133.00 16.00 $5.75 $92.00 0.12 $50.00 $6.00 9.80 $1.00 $9.80 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $354.50

Cheryl Seger 1931 Primrose Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1931 Primrose Drive 8913-19-402-010 64.00 $1.75 $112.00 64.00 $4.75 $304.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.40 $50.00 $20.00 32.00 $1.00 $32.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $504.70

Wee Meng Eric Lee 3422 Rownd Street Cedar Falls IA 50613 3422 Rownd Street 8913-19-276-012 30.40 $1.75 $53.20 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 30.40 $5.75 $174.80 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $277.70

Lewis Smith 3916 Rownd Street Cedar Falls IA 50613 3916 Rownd Street 8913-19-427-022 16.40 $1.75 $28.70 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 16.40 $5.75 $94.30 0.04 $50.00 $2.00 3.20 $1.00 $3.20 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $164.90

Jacob Smalley 2020 Valley High Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2020 Valley High Drive 8913-19-451-007 64.00 $1.75 $112.00 64.00 $4.75 $304.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.49 $50.00 $24.50 40.00 $1.00 $40.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $517.20

Andrew Bolthouse 4111 Rownd Street Cedar Falls IA 50613 4111 Rownd Street 8913-19-452-005 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 16.00 $5.75 $92.00 0.00 $50.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.00 $0.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $156.70

Jane Richards 2113 Valley High Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2113 Valley High Drive 8913-19-476-003 16.40 $1.75 $28.70 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 16.40 $5.75 $94.30 0.00 $50.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.00 $0.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $159.70

Teri Lynn Winkey 2404 Valley High Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2404 Valley High Dive 8913-19-431-012 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 16.00 $5.75 $92.00 0.00 $50.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.00 $0.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $156.70

Christopher Lichty 4023 Cardinal Court Cedar Falls IA 50613 4023 Cardinal Court 8913-20-376-004 15.60 $1.75 $27.30 15.60 $4.75 $74.10 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 7.80 $1.00 $7.80 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $150.90

Michael Wilken 4000 Cardinal Court Cedar Falls IA 50613 4000 Cardinal Court 8913-20-376-008 33.60 $1.75 $58.80 33.60 $4.75 $159.60 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.21 $50.00 $10.50 16.80 $1.00 $16.80 1.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $1,282.40

Scott Garmager 4214 Cardinal Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 4214 Cardinal Drive 8913-20-376-027 56.00 $1.75 $98.00 56.00 $4.75 $266.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.35 $50.00 $17.50 28.00 $1.00 $28.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $446.20

David Nicol 3019 Lovejoy Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 3019 Lovejoy Drive 8913-20-376-047 16.80 $1.75 $29.40 16.80 $4.75 $79.80 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.40 $1.00 $8.40 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $159.30

Debra Whitesell 2927 Lovejoy Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2927 Lovejoy Drive 8913-20-378-023 31.60 $1.75 $55.30 31.60 $4.75 $150.10 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.20 $50.00 $10.00 15.80 $1.00 $15.80 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $267.90

James Olson 2928 Lovejoy Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2928 Lovejoy Drive 8913-20-377-010 14.80 $1.75 $25.90 14.80 $4.75 $70.30 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.09 $50.00 $4.50 7.40 $1.00 $7.40 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $144.80

Laurie Busching 2911 Lovejoy Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2911 Lovejoy Drive 8913-20-376-021 32.00 $1.75 $56.00 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 32.00 $5.75 $184.00 0.00 $50.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.00 $0.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $276.70

Nicole Harnois 2904 Lovejoy Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 2904 Lovejoy Drive 8913-20-377-013 16.80 $1.75 $29.40 16.80 $4.75 $79.80 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.40 $1.00 $8.40 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $159.30

Adam Halvorson 2419 Green Creek Road Cedar Falls IA 50613 2419 Green Creek Road 8913-30-228-018 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $153.70

Jill Hansen 2317 Green Creek Road Cedar Falls IA 50613 2317 Green Creek Road 8913-30-228-013 29.60 $1.75 $51.80 29.60 $4.75 $140.60 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.18 $50.00 $9.00 14.80 $1.00 $14.80 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $252.90

Eastern Iowa Lutheran HS Assoc P.O.Box 1852 Waterloo IA 50704-1852 4520 Rownd Street 8913-30-226-005 50.00 $1.75 $87.50 50.00 $4.75 $237.50 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.25 $50.00 $12.50 20.00 $1.00 $20.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $394.20

Sean Sires 3715 Knoll Ridge Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 3715 Knoll Ridge Drive 8913-19-303-020 36.00 $1.75 $63.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 20.00 $5.75 $115.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $303.70

James Olsen 2207 N. Riverview Street Bellevue IA 52031 1122/1124 Elmridge Drive 8913-19-305-007 81.60 $1.75 $142.80 65.60 $4.75 $311.60 16.00 $5.75 $92.00 0.41 $50.00 $20.50 32.80 $1.00 $32.80 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $636.40

Tyler Cuvelier 3920 Knoll Ridge Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 3920 Knoll Ridge Drive 8913-19-309-005 16.80 $1.75 $29.40 16.80 $4.75 $79.80 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.40 $1.00 $8.40 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $159.30

Roger Hazen 4234 Briarwood Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 4234 Briarwood Drive 8913-19-308-029 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $153.70

Laura Kaus 4216 Briarwood Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 4216 Briarwood Drive 8913-19-308-026 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $153.70

Hillary Strohbeen 4123 Briarwood Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 4123 Briarwood Drive 8913-19-310-026 26.80 $1.75 $46.90 26.80 $4.75 $127.30 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.17 $50.00 $8.50 13.40 $1.00 $13.40 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $232.80

Timothy Poots 4107 Briarwood Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 4107 Briarwood Drive 8913-19-310-024 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $153.70

Michael Carlo 4023 Briarwood Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 4023 Briarwood Drive 8913-19-310-022 32.40 $1.75 $56.70 16.40 $4.75 $77.90 16.00 $5.75 $92.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.20 $1.00 $8.20 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $276.50

Bo Li 3902 Briarwood Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 3902 Briarwood Drive 8913-19-308-008 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $153.70

Chad Swanson 1470 Laurel Circle Cedar Falls IA 50613 3815 Briarwood Drive 8913-19-302-009 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $153.70

Todd Niemann 3909 Eastpark Road Cedar Falls IA 50613 3909 Eastpark Road 8913-19-301-014 82.00 $1.75 $143.50 82.00 $4.75 $389.50 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.51 $50.00 $25.50 41.00 $1.00 $41.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $636.20

David Wirth 3917 Eastpark Road Cedar Falls IA 50613 3917 Eastpark Road 8913-19-301-015 50.80 $1.75 $88.90 50.80 $4.75 $241.30 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.31 $50.00 $15.50 25.40 $1.00 $25.40 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $407.80

Jeremy Magley 4023 Eastpark Road Cedar Falls IA 50613 4023 Eastpark Road 8913-19-301-020 61.20 $1.75 $107.10 61.20 $4.75 $290.70 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.38 $50.00 $19.00 30.60 $1.00 $30.60 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $484.10

Robert Newby 4206 Eastpark Road Cedar Falls IA 50613 4206 Eastpark Road 8913-19-310-032 18.40 $1.75 $32.20 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 18.40 $5.75 $105.80 0.00 $50.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.00 $0.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $174.70

Michael Christiason 4233 Eastpark Road Cedar Falls IA 50613 4233 Eastpark Road 8913-19-351-027 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $153.70

Barbara DeVries 887 Maucker Road Cedar Falls IA 50613 887 Maucker Road 8914-24-477-020 76.00 $1.75 $133.00 60.00 $4.75 $285.00 16.00 $5.75 $92.00 0.37 $50.00 $18.50 30.00 $1.00 $30.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $595.20

Marcus Kuhl 833 Latham Place Cedar Falls IA 50613 833 Latham Place 8914-24-430-014 32.00 $1.75 $56.00 15.60 $4.75 $74.10 16.40 $5.75 $94.30 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 7.80 $1.00 $7.80 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $273.90

Brian Unruh 849 Latham Place Cedar Falls IA 50613 849 Latham Place 8914-24-430-012 63.60 $1.75 $111.30 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 63.60 $5.75 $365.70 0.00 $50.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.00 $0.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $513.70

Matthew Bailey 706 Maucker Road Cedar Falls IA 50613 706 Maucker Road 8914-24-430-006 13.60 $1.75 $23.80 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 13.60 $5.75 $78.20 0.00 $50.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.00 $0.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $138.70

Darrin Gillett 624 Maucker Road Cedar Falls IA 50613 624 Maucker Road 8914-24-430-003 223.60 $1.75 $391.30 206.80 $4.75 $982.30 16.80 $5.75 $96.60 1.28 $50.00 $64.00 103.40 $1.00 $103.40 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $1,674.30

Philip Van Syoc 315 Bonita Boulevard Cedar Falls IA 50613 3704 Convair Lane 8914-24-405-001 48.00 $1.75 $84.00 48.00 $4.75 $228.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.29 $50.00 $14.50 24.00 $1.00 $24.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $387.20

Jason Helgens 402 Bonita Boulevard Cedar Falls IA 50613 402 Bonita Boulevard 8914-24-401-014 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $153.70

Donna Hoffman 408 Bonita Boulevard Cedar Falls IA 50613 408 Bonita Boulevard 8914-24-401-015 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $153.70

Kay Drum 516 Bonita Boulevard Cedar Falls IA 50613 516 Bonita Boulevard 8914-24-426-006 160.00 $1.75 $280.00 160.00 $4.75 $760.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.99 $50.00 $49.50 80.00 $1.00 $80.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $1,206.20

Elizabeth Hunemuller 521 Bonita Boulevard Cedar Falls IA 50613 521 Bonita Boulevard 8914-24-405-011 32.40 $1.75 $56.70 16.40 $4.75 $77.90 16.00 $5.75 $92.00 0.15 $50.00 $7.50 11.80 $1.00 $11.80 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $282.60

Brian Mayfield 3816 South Lawn Road Cedar Falls IA 50613 3816 South Lawn Road 8914-24-429-003 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $153.70

Michael Fink P.O.Box 408 Traer IA 50675-0408 3909 South Lawn Road 8914-24-428-009 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 16.00 $5.75 $92.00 0.00 $50.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.00 $0.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $156.70

Clay Street Rentals LLC 1269 Benton Street Anoka MN 55303 3915/3917 South Lawn Road 8914-24-428-010 36.40 $1.75 $63.70 36.40 $4.75 $172.90 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.22 $50.00 $11.00 18.20 $1.00 $18.20 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $302.50

Timothy Hoekstra 424 N. Highland Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 322/324 Devlin Circle 8914-24-405-029 30.80 $1.75 $53.90 30.80 $4.75 $146.30 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.19 $50.00 $9.50 15.40 $1.00 $15.40 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $261.80

Cynthia Dunlevy 115 Devlin Circle Cedar Falls IA 50613 115 Devlin Circle 8914-24-406-002 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 16.00 $4.75 $76.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.00 $1.00 $8.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $153.70

Price Investments LLC 1800 Commercial Street Waterloo IA 50702 4015 South Lawn Road 8914-24-454-005 13.20 $1.75 $23.10 13.20 $4.75 $62.70 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.08 $50.00 $4.00 6.60 $1.00 $6.60 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $133.10

Robert Speltz 4025 South Lawn Road Cedar Falls IA 50613 4025 South Lawn Road 8914-24-454-007 32.00 $1.75 $56.00 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 32.00 $5.75 $184.00 0.00 $50.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.00 $0.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $276.70

Lury Properties LLC 1747 Thrush Drive Waterloo IA 50701 406/408 Heritage Road 8914-24-454-014 16.40 $1.75 $28.70 16.40 $4.75 $77.90 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.20 $1.00 $8.20 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $156.50

Jacob Anesi 406 Spruce Hills Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 406 Spruce Hills Drive 8914-24-455-019 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 16.00 $5.75 $92.00 0.00 $50.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.00 $0.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $156.70

Scott McCurdy 223 Heritage Road Cedar Falls IA 50613 223 Heritage Road 8914-24-452-013 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 16.00 $5.75 $92.00 0.00 $50.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.00 $0.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $156.70

Clay Street Rentals LLC 1269 Benton Street Anoka MN 55303 216/218 West Gate 8914-24-403-014 63.60 $1.75 $111.30 63.60 $4.75 $302.10 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.39 $50.00 $19.50 31.80 $1.00 $31.80 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $501.40

RBR Holdings LLC P.O.Box 128 Cedar Falls IA 50613 4005/4007 Heritage Road 8914-24-403-013 18.00 $1.75 $31.50 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 18.00 $5.75 $103.50 0.00 $50.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.00 $0.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $171.70

KH Properties II LLC P.O.Box 92 Cedar Falls IA 50613 3831/3833 Heritage Road 8914-24-404-003 102.00 $1.75 $178.50 102.00 $4.75 $484.50 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.63 $50.00 $31.50 51.00 $1.00 $51.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $782.20

Timothy Hoekstra 424 N. Highland Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 3821/3823 Convair Lane 8914-24-403-005 32.80 $1.75 $57.40 32.80 $4.75 $155.80 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.20 $50.00 $10.00 16.40 $1.00 $16.40 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $276.30

Tracy Nanke 4215 Spruce Hills Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 4215 Spruce Hills Drive 8914-24-451-010 16.80 $1.75 $29.40 16.80 $4.75 $79.80 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.40 $1.00 $8.40 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $159.30

Marilyn Page 1104 Tremont Street Cedar Falls IA 50613 109/111 West Gate 8914-24-4851-001 114.80 $1.75 $200.90 114.80 $4.75 $545.30 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.71 $50.00 $35.50 57.40 $1.00 $57.40 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $875.80

David Andreasen 3927 Spruce Hills Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 3927 Spruce Hills Drive 8914-24-402-010 16.40 $1.75 $28.70 16.40 $4.75 $77.90 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.20 $1.00 $8.20 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $156.50

David Heimerdinger 3909 Spruce Hills Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 3909 Spruce Hills Drive 8914-24-402-007 52.00 $1.75 $91.00 36.00 $4.75 $171.00 16.00 $5.75 $92.00 0.27 $50.00 $13.50 22.00 $1.00 $22.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $426.20

Steven Ravn 3821 Spruce Hills Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 3821 Spruce Hills Drive 8914-24-402-004 16.00 $1.75 $28.00 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 16.00 $5.75 $92.00 0.00 $50.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.00 $0.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $156.70

Margie Gage 108 Bergstrom Boulevard Cedar Falls IA 50613 108 Bergstrom Boulevard 8914-24-401-017 16.40 $1.75 $28.70 16.40 $4.75 $77.90 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.10 $50.00 $5.00 8.20 $1.00 $8.20 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $156.50

Samuel Grzybek 2711 Viking Place Cedar Falls IA 50613 204 Iowa Street 8914-12-159-001 60.00 $1.75 $105.00 60.00 $4.75 $285.00 0.00 $5.75 $0.00 0.30 $50.00 $15.00 24.00 $1.00 $24.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $465.70

Jason Handsaker 1126 Orchard Drive Cedar Falls IA 50613 1126 Orchard Drive 8913-19-153-030 19.60 $1.75 $34.30 0.00 $4.75 $0.00 19.60 $5.75 $112.70 0.00 $50.00 $0.00 0.00 $1.00 $0.00 0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00 $20.00 $0.00 0.00917 $4,000.00 $36.70 $183.70

Total $34,543.20

4020.40 3243.20 777.20 20.13 1,626.90

avg $316.91

high $1,674.30

2017 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT
CITY PROJECT NUMBER SW - 000 - 3112

Final Statement of Expenditures for Material and Labor

Grant Funding

-205-

Item
 H

.2.r. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 
 
 DATE: January 18, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: 2017 Street Reconstruction Project 
   Project No.: RC – 000 – 3119 
   Project Final Out 
 
The 2017 Street Reconstruction Project is completed and ready for final acceptance. 
This project reconstructed 0.64 miles of City streets and was under contract with 
Peterson Contractors Inc. of Reinbeck, Iowa. Attached please find the following final 
documents: 
  -  Final Pay Estimate (releases retainage) 
   -  Copy of Maintenance Bond, Peterson Contractors Inc. 
 
The following lien waivers have been received, reviewed by the Engineering Division 
and are on file with the City Clerk: 
 

Peterson Contractors Inc. suppliers: 
Benton’s Ready Mixed Concrete Inc. 
BMC Aggregates LC 
Coleman Moore Company 
Forterra 
Rusty Leymaster Tile 
Triple D Enterprises LLP 
Utility Equipment 
 

Peterson Contractors Inc.  
Subcontractors including subcontractor suppliers: 
Cunningham Construction Co. 
- Benton’s Ready Mixed Concrete Inc. 
- Construction Material Inc. 
Laser Line Striping and Sweeping 
- Diamond Vogel 
- Lyle Signs, Inc.  
- Xcessories Squared  
Matthias Landscaping  
- Oleson Sod  
MELI, LLC 
- Benton’s Ready Mixed Concrete Inc. 
- Stetson Building Products, Inc. 
- Utility Equipment 
Service Signing, LC 
Todd Van Dorn Construction 
-Benton’s Ready Mixed Concrete Inc. 
-Logan Contractors Supply 
-Stetsons Building Products, Inc. 

 

 

-207-

Item H.2.s. 



This project was primarily funded by the “Local Option Sales Tax”. Following is a 
breakdown of final contract costs for items that were not funded by the “Local Option 
Sales Tax” and their funding source: 
 
-New water main on W. 4th Street and W. 6th Street, all funded by CFU: $256,185.71. 
 
-Sanitary Sewer Repairs funded by the Sewer Rental Fund: $15,900.00. 
 
-Sidewalk Infill (Convair Lane & Bonita Blvd) funded by General Obligation Bonds: $7,269 
 
I certify that the public improvements for the 2017 Street Reconstruction Project were 
completed in reasonable compliance with the project plans and specifications. 
 
 
 
       _____________________________________ 
       Chase Schrage   Date 
 
att 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 

Lisa Roeding, Finance Manager  
 
 
 
 

-208-

Item H.2.s. 



-209-

Item H.2.s. 



 



-211-

Item H.2.s. 



-212-

Item H.2.s. 



-213-

Item H.2.s. 



-214-

Item H.2.s. 



-215-

Item H.2.s. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 

 

 

  

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 
 
 DATE: January 22, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: 2016 Public Sidewalk Repair, Pedestrian Ramp and Patching Project 
 Project No. SW-000-3109 
 Project Final Out 
 
The 2016 Public Sidewalk Repair, Pedestrian Ramp and Patching Project is completed 
and ready for final acceptance. The project repaired deficient sidewalk adjacent to 
public property, installed new pedestrian ramps, and repaired utility patches. The project 
was under contract with Mike Dolan Concrete & Masonry Inc of Waterloo, Iowa.  
 
Please find the following documents attached: 
 -  Final Pay Estimate (releases retainage) 
 -  Copy of Maintenance Bond, Mike Dolan Concrete & Masonry Inc. 
 
The following lien wavers have been received and reviewed by the Engineering Division 
and forwarded to the City Clerk's Office: 

 Aspro, Inc 

 Service Signing 

 Mike Dolan Concrete Suppliers 
o Benton Ready Mixed Concrete 

    
This project was funded primarily by the General Obligation Bond. Following is a 
breakdown of final contract costs for items that were not funded by the General 
Obligation Bond and the funding sources:  
 

  Work associated with spot repairs for watermain funded by CFU, 
$74,476.20. 

 

 

-217-

Item H.2.t. 



 

 

I certify that the public improvements for the 2016 Public Sidewalk Repair, Pedestrian 
Ramp and Patching Project were completed in reasonable compliance with the project 
plans and specifications. 
 
 
       _____________________________________ 
       Chase Schrage                     Date 
 
 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
 Lisa Roeding, CMFO, Controller/City Treasurer 

-218-

Item H.2.t. 



-219-

Item H.2.t. 



 



-221-

Item H.2.t. 



-222-

Item H.2.t. 



-223-

Item H.2.t. 



-224-

Item H.2.t. 



-225-

Item H.2.t. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 
 
 DATE: January 19, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: 2016 Permeable Alley Project 
  Project No. ST-000-3085 
  Project Final Out 
 
The 2016 Permeable Alley Project is completed and ready for final acceptance. The project 
installed a permeable pavement in four (4) alleys to treat stormwater runoff from adjacent paved 
surfaces.  
 
Attached you will find the following final documents: 

- Final Pay Estimate (releases retainage) 
- Copy of Maintenance Bond, Mike Dolan Concrete and Masonry Inc. 

 

The following lien waivers have been received, reviewed by the Engineering Division and are on 
file with City Clerk: 
 

Mike Dolan Concrete & Masonry Inc. 
suppliers: 
Aspro 
Benton’s Ready Mixed Concrete Inc. 
CunninghamConstruction 
Midland Concrete Products 
Service Signing 
 

Mike Dolan Concrete Inc.  
Subcontractors including subcontractor suppliers: 
Bentons Sand and Gravel 
- BMC Aggregates 
- Leymaster tile 
- Utility Equipment 
 
Matthias Landscaping 
- Midland Concrete Products 
 

 
  
Below is a breakdown of costs per alley: 

1700 block of Tremont Street and Franklin Street:  $72,215.51 
1700 block of Iowa Street and Tremont Street:       $57,197.57 
1300 block of Walnut Street and Iowa Street:          $39,748.59 
1400 block of Walnut Street and Iowa Street:          $57,632.54 

 
Total Project Cost: $226,794.21 

 

-227-

Item H.2.u. 



This project was primarily funded by the Storm Water Fund. Following is a breakdown of 
final contract costs for items that were not funded by the Storm Water Fund and their 
funding source: 
 

-Concrete alley approaches funded by Street Construction Fund $19,461.24. 
 
I certify that the public improvements for the 2016 Permeable Alley Project were 
completed in reasonable compliance with the project plans and specifications. 
 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
        Chase Schrage   Date 
      
   
 
xc:  Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
 Nik Erickson, Engineering Technician II  
 Lisa Roeding, CMFO, Controller/City Treasurer 

-228-

Item H.2.u. 



-229-

Item H.2.u. 



 



-231-

Item H.2.u. 



-232-

Item H.2.u. 



-233-

Item H.2.u. 



-234-

Item H.2.u. 



-235-

Item H.2.u. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 
 
 DATE: January 22, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: Cedar Falls Industrial Park Patching Project 
  Project No. RS-000-3098 
  Project Final Out 
 
 
The Cedar Falls Industrial Park Patching Project is complete and ready for final 
acceptance. This project involved the repair of portions of nine (9) City streets totaling 
2.70 miles. Work included removal and replacement of selected pavement sections, 
intake repairs, and some removal and replacement of driveway approaches. The project 
was under contract with Mike Dolan Concrete & Masonry Inc of Waterloo, Iowa.  
 
Attached please find the following final documents: 
 

 Final Pay Estimate (releases retainage) 

 Copy of Maintenance Bond, Mike Dolan Concrete & Masonry Inc 
 

 
The following lien wavers have been received and reviewed by the Engineering Division 
and forwarded to the City Clerk's Office: 

 Bentons Sand & Gravel 

 K&W Electric 

 Service Signing 

 Mike Dolan Concrete Suppliers 
o Benton Ready Mixed Concrete 
o Logan Supply 
o Utility Equipment 

 
 
This project was funded primarily by the Industrial Park Tax Increment Financing (TIF). 
Following is a breakdown of final contract costs for items that were not funded by the 
TIF and the funding sources: 

-237-

Item H.2.v. 



  Greenhill Road Repair funded by the Local Option Sales Tax, $23,624 
 
 
I certify that the public improvements for the Cedar Falls Industrial Park Patching 
Project were completed in reasonable compliance with the project plans and 
specifications. 
 
       
  

                                                                1/22/18                 
      Chase Schrage                     Date 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E, City Engineer 
 Lisa Roeding, CMFO, Controller/City Treasurer 

 
 

-238-

Item H.2.v. 



-239-

Item
 H

.2.v. 



 



-241-

Item H.2.v. 



-242-

Item H.2.v. 



-243-

Item H.2.v. 



-244-

Item H.2.v. 



-245-

Item H.2.v. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 
 
 DATE: January 29, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Supplemental Agreement No. 2 
  West 20th Street Bridge Replacement Project 
  Project No. BR-105-3117 
 
The City entered into a Federal-aid Agreement to provide funds for the W. 20th Street 
Bridge Replacement Project to a maximum of 80% of eligible costs or $1,000,000, 
whichever is less. The remaining 20 percent of eligible project costs, as well as any 
ineligible project costs, are paid by the city. Eligible project costs include: engineering 
services, bridge construction, a limited amount of roadway approach construction (as 
determined by the Iowa DOT), and right-of-way acquisition. 
 
The Engineering Division requests approval of the attached Professional Services 
Supplemental Agreement No. 2 with IIW, P.C in the amount not to exceed $154,997 for 
additional engineering services on the West 20th Street Bridge Replacement Project. 
This agreement includes field inspections services and project engineering of the West 
20th Street Bridge Replacement Project.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
 

-247-

Item H.2.w. 



 



Page 1 of 9 
 

 
Owner Project No. BR-105-3117 

IIW Project No. 16188 
Iowa DOT Project  No. BROS-1185(649)--8J-07 

 
Standard Consultant Contract  
Supplemental Agreement #2 

For Local Public Agency Consultant Contracts with Federal-aid Participation 
 
 
This AGREEMENT, made as of the date of the last party’s signature below, is by and   
 
BETWEEN the City of Cedar Falls, the Owner, located at: 
 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa  50613 
Phone: (319) 243-2704 
FAX: (319) 268-5197 
 
 
and IIW, P.C., the Consultant, located at: 
 
4155 Pennsylvania Ave 
Dubuque, IA  52002  
Phone: (563) 556-2464 
FAX: (563) 556-7811  
 
 
 
For the following Project: In the City of Cedar Falls, on W. 20th St. over Dry Run Creek, from Clay St. west 180 feet 
to bridge. 
 
 
The Owner has decided to proceed with the Project, subject to the concurrence and approval of the Iowa 
Department of Transportation (Iowa DOT), and the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), U.S. Department of 
Transportation (when applicable). 
 
The Owner desires to employ the Consultant to provide construction engineering services to assist with the 
development and completion of the Project.  The Consultant is willing to perform these services in accordance 
with the terms of this Agreement. 

-249-

Item H.2.w. 



Page 2 of 9 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

Article 1 
Attachment A - Scope of Services 
Attachment C - Fees and Payments 
Attachment C-1 – Cost Analysis Worksheet 
Attachment G - Consultant Fee Proposal 
 

-250-

Item H.2.w. 



Page 3 of 9 
 

ARTICLE 1 INITIAL INFORMATION 
 
This Agreement is based on the following information and assumptions. 
 
1.1 Project Parameters 

The objective or use is: to complete construction engineering for the subject project. 
 
1.2 Financial Parameters 

 
1.2.1 Amount of the Owner's budget for the Consultant's compensation is: 

 $332,778. 
 

 Base Supplemental Supplemental  Total 
 Agreement Agreement No. 1 Agreement No. 2 Amount 
     
Estimated Actual 
Costs $ 39,656 $ 54,248  $ 93,904 

Contingency $ 3,966 $ 5,424  $ 9,390 
Fixed Fee $ 5,948 $ 8,137  $ 14,085 
Specific Rate; Max. 
Amount Payable   $ 139,997 $ 139,997 

Reimbursables   $ 8,000 $ 8,000 
Contingency    $ 7,000 $ 7,000 
Max. Amount 
Payable $ 49,570 $ 67,809  $ 272,376 

 
 

1.2.3 Separate internal job numbers will be utilized by the Amount Consultant to separate federally PE 
work and CE work.  Cost will also be separately identified on the Consultant’s billing statement. 

 
    

1.3 Project Team 
 

1.3.1 The Owner's Designated Representative, identified as the Contract Administrator is: 
Chase Schrage.   

 
1.4 Time Parameters 

 
1.4.1 The Consultant shall begin work under this Agreement upon receipt of a written notice to 

proceed from the Owner. 
 
1.4.2 Milestones for completion of the work under this Agreement as follows: 

1. Construction Engineering as defined in Attachment A shall be completed on or before June 
30, 2019, unless extended by written approval of the Contract Administrator or adjusted by 
a supplemental agreement. 

 
  

 
 

 
  

-251-

Item H.2.w. 



-252-

Item H.2.w. 



Page 5 of 9 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
Scope of Services; Supplemental Agreement #2 

 
It is understood by the Owner and the Consultant that the level and frequency of Progress Reporting shall be 
mutually established for each project, taking into account the complexity and duration of the work to be performed. 
For this specific project it is agreed that progress reporting will be provided on a monthly basis. 
 
Project Understanding:  Provide construction services during the construction of the W. 20th St. box culvert 
replacement, retaining walls, associated water and sanitary utilities, pavement and sidewalk.  A 100 working-day 
contract has been assigned to the project. This assumes Doc Express will be used for construction submittals. 

 
Services During Construction 
1. Review contracts and review materials from the Iowa DOT, set up recordkeeping documentation for use during 

construction. 
2. Prepare preconstruction meeting agenda. 
3. Conduct preconstruction meeting and prepare and distribute meeting minutes.  
4. Review submittals from the contractor.  
5. The Engineer shall make periodic visits to the construction site as needed to observe progress and quality of 

the executed work and respond to questions during construction. Assumes progress meetings will be 
conducted every two weeks for the construction duration.  

6. Provide construction staking and layout. Assumes 7 trips to provide construction layout. 
7. The Consultant shall provide an engineer, senior inspector, or a technician to make periodic visits or perform 

regular on-site observations as deemed necessary by the Consultant and approved by the Owner. The phone 
number for the Consultant shall be posted at the project site. The contract provides for 100 working-days. The 
on-site observations shall note the progress and quality of various aspects of the work of the Contractor and 
shall perform field checks and testing of material and documentation as required by the State. A partial list of 
activities include: 

  a. On-site inspection of erosion control  
  b. On-site inspection of roadway and channel grading  
  c. On-site inspection of barrier rail, and railing installation 
  d. On-site inspection of rip rap installation  
  e. On-site inspection of concrete roadway approach paving, sidewalks 
  f. On-site inspection and testing of concrete placement; off-site strength testing 
  g. On-site inspection of traffic control 
  h. On-site inspection of storm sewer, water main, and sanitary sewer installation  
  i. On-site inspection of retaining walls  
  j.  Inspection of landscaping and finish grading around sidewalks 

8. Conduct certified plant monitoring for PCC plant operations. Prepare documentation and material testing in 
conformance with State requirements.  

9. Issue all instructions of the Owner to the Contractor(s) and prepare routine change orders as required 
(assumes three), including all necessary calculations to determine accuracy and veracity of change orders. 

10. Based on on-site observations and documentation prepare monthly pay estimates and submit to the Owner 
with recommendations.  (Assumes ten pay requests total). Final payment is subject to Iowa DOT audit.  

11. Provide documentation of quantities for approval by State, including submittal of working day reports.  
12. Conduct an inspection to determine if the project is substantially complete and a final inspection to determine if 

the project has been completed in substantial compliance with the Contract Documents and if each Contractor 
has fulfilled all of their obligations so that the Engineer may approve, in writing, final payment. 

13. Prepare necessary certificates of completion for the Owner and State acceptance. 
14. Finalize construction documentation in preparation for State audit. Upon project completion, determine the final 

contract quantities as required by Contract Documents or if agreeable to the Owner, State, and Contractor 
from records kept during construction and payment documents submitted to the Engineer and the Owner for 
approval.  

15. Attend State audit of materials and construction documentation and recordkeeping; follow-up of audit 
requirements.  

16. General project management and communication, including preparation of invoices to submit to Cedar Falls in 
acceptable Iowa DOT format to allow reimbursement by Iowa DOT, including documentation of project 
progress. 

 
 

-253-

Item H.2.w. 



Page 6 of 9 
 

ATTACHMENT C (referenced from 3.1) 
Specific Rate of Compensation 

 
3.1.1 FEES AND PAYMENTS 

 
3.1.1.1 Fees.  For full and complete compensation for all work, materials, and services furnished under the terms 

of this Agreement, the Consultant shall be paid fees not to exceed the maximum amount payable under 
this Agreement of 154,997. 
 
The maximum amount payable will not be changed unless there is a substantial change in the magnitude, 
scope, character, or complexity of the services from those covered in this Agreement.  Any change in the 
maximum amount payable will be by Supplemental Agreement. 
 
A contingency amount of $0 has been established for this Agreement and is included in the maximum 
amount payable.  Written request by the Consultant indicating the need and written approval by the 
Contract Administrator and concurrence from the Iowa DOT are needed prior to usage of the 
contingency amount. 
 
The current schedule of billing rates (direct labor rate, overhead, and fixed fee) are set forth in Attachment 
C-1.1 The Consultant may submit for approval a revised rate schedule once during the contract period.  
This revision may include a revised overhead rate and revised direct labor rates.  The revised rate 
schedule should be submitted to the Contract Administrator for approval and by the Contract 
Administrator's written approval it shall become a part of this Agreement. 
 

3.1.1.2 Reimbursable Costs.  The Consultant shall be reimbursed for direct non-salary costs which are directly 
attributable and properly allocable to the work.  The Consultant will be required to submit a detailed listing 
of direct non-salary costs incurred and certify that such costs are not included in the overhead expense 
pool.  These costs may include travel and subsistence, reproductions, computer charges, and materials 
and supplies. 
 
Reimbursement of costs is limited to those that are attributable to the specific work covered by this 
Agreement and allowable under the provisions of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Title 48, 
Federal Acquisition Regulation System, Subchapter E., Part 30 (when applicable), and Part 31, Section 
31.105 and Subpart 31.2.  In addition to Title 48 requirements, for meals to be eligible for reimbursement, 
an overnight stay will be required. 
 

3.1.1.3 Premium Overtime Pay.  Not applicable. 
 

3.1.1.4 Payments.  Monthly payments for work completed shall be based on the services completed at the time 
of the billing and substantiated by monthly progress reports in a form that follows the specific rate 
schedule.  The Contract Administrator will check such progress reports and payment will be made for 
the hours completed at each rate and for direct non-salary costs incurred during said month.  The Owner 
shall retain from each monthly payment for construction inspection or construction administration services 
3% of the amount due. 
 
Invoices shall clearly identify the beginning and ending dates of the prime's and subconsultant's billing 
cycles.  All direct and indirect costs incurred during the billing cycle shall be invoiced.  Costs incurred from 
prior billing cycles and previously not billed, will not be allowed for reimbursement unless approved by the 
Contract Administrator. 
 

Upon completion, delivery and acceptance of all work contemplated under this Agreement, the Consultant shall 
submit one complete invoice statement of costs incurred and amounts earned.  Payment of 100% of the total cost 
claimed, inclusive of retainage, if applicable, will be made upon receipt and review of such claim. The Consultant 
agrees to reimburse the Owner for possible overpayment determined by final audit.  

-254-

Item H.2.w. 



1/25/20182:49 PM

IIW Engineers Surveyors, Confidential

Cost Analysis Worksheet Attachment C-1
Direct Wage Calculations
Supplemental Agreement #2
BROS-1185(649)--8J-07

In the City of Cedar Falls, on W 20th St, over Dry Run Creek, from Clay St west 180 feet to bridge

Specific Rate of Compensation

Staff Classification
2018 Direct Wage 

Average

Overhead without 
Cost of Capital 

Facilities 1.8843
Fixed fee 

12% Specific Rate
Administrative assistant 23.97 $45.17 2.88$          72.01$          
Construction specialist 42.2 $79.52 5.06$          126.78$        
Engineering Tech I 15.5 $29.21 1.86$          46.57$          
Engineering Tech II 19.05 $35.90 2.29$          57.23$          
Engineering Tech III 23.86 $44.96 2.86$          71.68$          
Engineering Tech IV 26.57 $50.07 3.19$          79.82$          
Design Engineer I 27.59 $51.99 3.31$          82.89$          
Design Engineer II 26.94 $50.76 3.23$          80.94$          
Design Engineer III 30.07 $56.66 3.61$          90.34$          
Professional Engineer I 32.9 $61.99 3.95$          98.84$          
Professional Engineer II 38.51 $72.56 4.62$          115.70$        
Professional Engineer III 41.84 $78.84 5.02$          125.70$        
Professional Engineer IV 51.38 $96.82 6.17$          154.36$        
Professional Engineer V 68.29 $128.68 8.19$          205.16$        
Engineering Aid I 17.58 $33.13 2.11$          52.82$          
Engineering Aid II 21.33 $40.19 2.56$          64.08$          
Engineering Aid III 26.27 $49.50 3.15$          78.92$          
Survey Specialist 35.43 $66.76 4.25$          106.44$        
Tech Specialist 28.4 $53.51 3.41$          85.32$          

Page 7 of 9

-255-

Item H.2.w. 



1/25/20182:52 PM

IIW Engineers Surveyors, Confidential 

Cost Analysis Worksheet Attachment C-1
Project Fee Estimate In the City of Cedar Falls, on W 20th St, over Dry Run Creek, from Clay St west 180 feet to bridge
Iowa DOT Project Number BROS-1185(649)--8J-07
Phase: Construction Engineering; supplemental agreement 2
Prepared January 2018

Work Category
 Professional 
Engineer V 

 Professional 
Engineer IV 

 Professional 
Engineer III 

 Professional 
Engineer I 

 Design 
Engineer I 

 Survey 
Specialist 

 Engineering 
Aid II 

 Engineering 
Tech IV 

 Engineering 
Tech III 

 Engineering 
Tech II 

 Engineering 
Tech I 

 Construction 
specialist 

 Design 
Engineer III Total total

Task Description: Rate/hr: 205.16$          154.36$             125.70$               98.84$            82.89$           106.44$        64.08$        79.82$        71.68$        57.23$          46.57$         126.78$        90.34$            Hours Cost

1. Review contracts and review materials from the IDOT, set up recordkeeping
documentation for use during construction.

5 32 37.0 2,874.78$       
2. Prepare preconstruction meeting agenda 2 2 6 10.0 915.83$         
3. Conduct preconstruction meeting and prepare and distribute meeting minutes. 8 6 2 6 22.0 2,547.35$       
4. Review submittals from the contractor. 2 5 20 10 8 45.0 3,648.15$       
5. The Engineer shall make periodic visits to the construction site as needed to
observe progress and quality of the executed work and respond to questions during
construction. Assumes progress meetings will be conducted every two weeks for the
construction duration. 10 160 16 186.0 24,192.13$     

6. Provide construction staking and layout. Assumes 7 trips to provide construction 
layout. 37 56 56 149.0 12,422.75$     
7. The Consultant shall provide an engineer, senior inspector, or a technician to make 
periodic visits or perform regular on-site observations as deemed necessary by the 
Consultant and approved by the Owner. The phone number for the Consultant shall be 
posted at the project site. The contract provides for 100 working-days. The on-site 
observations shall note the progress and quality of various aspects of the work of the 
Contractor and shall perform field checks and testing of material and documentation as 
required by the State. A partial list of activities include: 0.0 -$               
a. On-site inspection of erosion control 16 16.0 1,146.92$       
b. On-site inspection of roadway and channel grading 32 32.0 2,293.84$       

c. On-site inspection of barrier rail, and railing installation 44 44.0 3,154.03$       
d. On-site inspection of rip rap installation 32 32.0 2,293.84$       
e. On-site inspection of concrete roadway approach paving, sidewalks 160 20 20 200.0 13,545.19$     
f. On-site inspection and testing of concrete placement; off-site strength testing 200 20 220.0 15,481.16$     
g. On-site inspection of traffic control 20 20.0 1,433.65$       
h. On-site inspection of storm sewer, water main, and sanitary sewer installation 80 16 96.0 7,763.11$       
i. On-site inspection of retaining walls 100 20 120.0 8,312.90$       
j. Inspection of landscaping and finish grading around sidewalks 40 40.0 2,867.30$       
8. Conduct certified plant monitoring for PCC plant operations. Prepare
documentation and material testing in conformance with State requirements. 70 12 82.0 6,662.40$       
9. Issue all instructions of the Owner to the Contractor(s) and prepare routine change
orders as required (assumes three), including all necessary calculations to determine
accuracy and veracity of change orders. 6 6.0 754.20$         
10. Based on on-site observations and documentation prepare monthly pay estimates
and submit to the Owner with recommendations. (Assumes ten pay requests total).
Final payment is subject to IDOT audit. 15 20 40 75.0 6,360.10$       
11. Provide documentation of quantities for approval by State, including submittal of
working day reports. 20 20.0 1,281.63$       
12. Conduct an inspection to determine if the project is substantially complete and a final
inspection to determine if the project has been completed in substantial compliance with
the Contract Documents and if each Contractor has fulfilled all for their obligations so
that the Engineer may approve, in writing, final payment. 8 16 24.0 2,152.52$       
13. Prepare necessary certificates of completion for the Owners and State acceptance. 1 2 3.0 253.86$         

14. Finalize construction documentation in preparation for State audit. Upon project 
completion, determine the final contract quantities as required by Contract Documents or 
if agreeable to the Owner, State, and contractor from records kept during construction 
and payment documents submitted to the Engineer and the Owner for approval. 80 80.0 6,385.94$       
15. Attend State audit of materials and construction documentation and recordkeeping;
followup of audit requirements. 2 20 10 32.0 2,564.71$       
16. General project management and communication, including preparation of invoices
to submit to Cedar Falls in acceptable Iowa DOT format to allow reimbursement by Iowa
DOT, including documentation of project progress. 40 20 60.0 8,688.44$       

1651 10 50 218 2 75 37 51 254 834 60 20 32 8 1651.0 139,996.74$   

Page 8 of 9

-256-

Item
 H

.2.w
. 



1/25/20182:54 PM

IIW Engineers Surveyors, Confidential

Cost Analysis Worksheet
Supplemental Agreement #2

Iowa DOT Project Number BROS-1185(649)--8J-07
Project Fee Estimate
Prepared January 2018

MANHOURS PAYROLL PROFIT TOTAL Specific Rate Reimbursables Contingency Total with 

OVERHEAD Without contingency of Compensation Contingency
& FRINGE 15% total Hotel 5%
BENEFITS B x15% B+C+D

(A) (B) (D) (E)

Construction Engineering 1651.0 139,996.74$     8,000.00$         6,999.84$        154,996.58$     

TOTAL 1651.0 -$  -$  -$  139,997$          8,000$              7,000$             154,997$          

Total Supplemental Agreement #2 139,997$        8,000$            7,000$           $154,997
Total Supplemental Agreement #1 $54,248 $8,137 $62,385 $5,424 $67,809
Original agreement $39,656 $5,948 $45,604 $3,966 $49,570
Total IIW Labor & fixed fee & Contingency $39,656 $5,948 $45,604 $10,966 272,376$       

Specified overhead rate:   2015 = 1.5805 without cost of capitol facilities
Specific Rate of compensation based on 2016 overhead rate of 188.43 and profit of 12%

Attachment G

Fee Summary

Page 9 of 9

-257-

Item
 H

.2.w
. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 
 
 DATE: January 22, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: Supplemental Agreement #4 
  Foth Infrastructure & Environmental LLC. 
  2018 Bridge Inspection Project 
  City Project No. BR-000-3133 
 
Attached is the Supplemental Agreement #4 for the 2018 Bridge Inspection Project 
between the City of Cedar Falls and Foth Infrastructure & Environmental LLC. 
 
Foth Infrastructure & Environmental LLC was the consulting firm selected by the City of 
Cedar Falls for the 2012 Bridge Inspection Project. The enclosed agreement provides 
for the professional services needed to proceed with assessing the existing conditions 
of the City of Cedar Falls bridges and bring all structures into conformance with current 
standards for the 2018 Bridge Inspection Project. Compensation for this agreement is a 
not to exceed amount of $31,750. At the completion of the evaluation, a report will be 
delivered that summarizes the findings and will recommend a course of action. This 
project is included in the City of Cedar Falls’ Capital Improvements Program. 
 
Community Development requests your consideration and approval of the 
Supplemental Agreement #4 with Foth Infrastructure & Environmental LLC for the 2018 
Bridge Inspection Project. If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
 

-259-

Item H.2.x. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

Administration Division  Planning & Community Services Division 
Phone: 319-273-8600  Fax: 319-273-8610 

 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 

Water Reclamation Division 

Phone: 319-273-8633  Fax: 319-273-8610 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 4 
 

2018 Bridge Inspections Project 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number BR – 000 – 3133  

 

 
WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (Client), and Foth 
Infrastructure & Environmental, LLC, (Consultant), of Johnston, Iowa, dated February 29, 2012 for the required detail 
work, services, materials, equipment and supplies necessary to complete the biannual National Bridge Inventory (NBI) 
inspections of 36 structures and the safety inspection of 28 additional structures for the City of Cedar Falls; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Client and Consultant desire to amend the previous agreement to include engineering services 
required to complete the 2018 biannual National Bridge Inventory inspection,  
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services Agreement as follows:  
 
I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 See attached Exhibit A-Scope of Services and Exhibit B-Schedule 
 
II.  COMPENSATION 
 
 Compensation for the Services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and other 

direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed.  Total compensation is a not to exceed fee 
of Thirty-One Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars ($31,750.00). The compensation for this 
supplemental agreement is to be segregated from the original agreement.  
 

III. In all other aspects, the obligations of the Client and Consultant shall remain as specified in the Professional 
Services Agreement dated February 29, 2012.  
 

  

-261-

Item H.2.x. 



-262-

Item H.2.x. 



Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC  2018 Bridge Inspection Project 
Project No. 18C003.00  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project Number BR-000-3133 
   

  
 

Page 1 of 4 

Exhibit A – Scope of Services 

 
2018 Bridge Inspection Project 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 
City Project Number BR-000-3133 

 

 
The work to be performed by the CONSULTANT under this agreement shall encompass and include all 
detail work, services, materials, equipment and supplies necessary to complete the 2018 biannual 
National Bridge Inventory (NBI) inspections of 36 structures and the safety inspection of 28 additional 
structures for the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
The project includes conducting the bridge safety inspections by a qualified Team Leader, recording of 
inspection data in Structure Inventory and Inspection Management System (SIIMS), bridge load rating, 
compiling a bridge inspection report, and assisting the City in managing their bridge inspection records. 
 
The scope of services to be performed by the CONSULTANT shall be completed in accordance with 
generally accepted standards of practice and shall include the services to complete the following tasks: 
 

TASK A - Basic Services of the Engineer: 
 
1.0 CONTRACT MANAGEMENT 
 
1.1 Project Management 
The project manager shall be responsible for the development and tracking of the project plan for the 
project development.  This includes task identification, staff scheduling and coordination, project 
communications, monthly progress reporting and invoicing and other important elements of the project.  
The project design duration is assumed to be three (3) months. 
 
1.2 Project Development Team Meetings 
Maintain communications with the Project Development Team and various other designated 
representatives.  The project development team will include the City of Cedar Falls and Foth.  Meet to 
review progress and to discuss specific elements of the project design (assume one (1) meeting).  The 
meetings will also serve to establish schedules, develop project goals, establish initial design parameters, 
promote a dialog between the various entities, improve the decision-making process, and expedite design 
development.  Prepare minutes of meetings and keep documentation of other communications.  For 
budget purposes, it is assumed that the meetings will be attended by one (1) staff member of the 
CONSULTANT. 
 
The following project meetings are included with the scope of work: 
Review of Bridge Inspection Report - one (1) meeting 
 
1.3 Quality Control Plan 
Establish review and checking procedures for project deliverables. Designate responsibility for 
implementation of the plan. 
 
 
2.0 PROJECT COORDINATION 
 
2.1 Public Information Meeting – (Task Not Included). 
 
2.2 Individual Property Owner Meetings – (Task Not Included). 
 
2.3 Utility Coordination Meeting – (Task Not Included). 
 
2.4 Periodic Meetings with Local Elected Officials – (Task Not Included). 

-263-

Item H.2.x. 



Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC  2018 Bridge Inspection Project 
Project No. 18C003.00  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project Number BR-000-3133 

 

 
 

Page 2 of 4 

 
2.5 Exhibit Preparation for Council Meetings – (Task Not Included). 
 
 
3.0 BRIDGE INSPECTION 
 
3.1 Prepare for Bridge Inspections 
The CONSULTANT shall review the previous inspection reports and electronic files uploaded to SIIMS.   
Plans for bridge construction and repair work completed since the 2016 inspections will be uploaded to 
SIIMS.  New reports for the current inspection cycle will be created in SIIMS and copies of these reports 
with the prior inspection data will be printed for use in the field during the inspection.  Arrangements will 
be made to rent or otherwise secure any specialized equipment not owned by the CONSULTANT and 
required to complete the inspections. 
 
3.2 In-Field Bridge Inspections 
The CONSULTANT shall perform a safety inspection of each NBI bridge conducted by a qualified Team 
Leader.  In addition to assessing all structural elements, the channel cross section will be measured and 
recorded when significant changes since previous measurement have occurred.  Underwater inspections 
are not required for this inspection cycle and therefore not included in this scope.  Any deficiencies 
observed will be noted and photographed and any significant section loss will be measured.  Existing 
element ratings on the Structure Inventory and Appraisal (SI&A) form will be reviewed and adjusted if 
necessary. 
 
In general, the inspection and evaluation process for the non-NBI structures will adhere to the approach 
outlined for the NBI structures, however information will not be reported in SIIMS since the Iowa DOT only 
maintains data on the NBI structures.  Therefore, the information gathered during the inspections will be 
recorded in a database maintained by the CONSULTANT in a format that mimics the SIIMS format.   
 
3.3 Bridge Load Rating 
Existing load rating calculations will be reviewed by a licensed Professional Engineer (PE) in the State of 
Iowa employed by the CONSULTANT.  Updates to the calculations will be made when necessary and 
any new or revised load rating calculations will be sealed by the PE and uploaded to SIIMS.  The City will 
be advised if load rating calculations indicate a bridge requires load posting.  Includes load rating Group 2 
bridges for special hauling vehicles (SHV) as defined by IM No. 2.210.  One (1) structure meets the 
requirements for Group 2. 
 
3.4 SIIMS Data Entry 
Information collected during the inspection will be uploaded to SIIMS by the CONSULTANT including all 
photographs taken, the channel cross section sketch, and any changes to existing SI&A data.  Other 
items that will be completed following the safety inspection and uploaded to SIIMS includes critical finding 
reports when applicable and the various master lists required by IM No. 2.210.  The CONSULTANT will 
also verify the bridge files are in conformance with the AASHTO Manual for Bridge Evaluation and make 
additions and/or revisions to the bridge files when necessary.   
 
3.5 Scour Plans of Action 
Review scour plans of action (POA) for the NBI bridges deemed scour critical (approximately seven (7) 
bridges).  The POA should outline the monitoring plan for each bridge and provide guidelines and 
practical information pertaining to each bridge for the purpose of monitoring foundation scour during flood 
events.   
 
3.6 Report Preparation 
The CONSULTANT shall prepare a bridge inspection report for submittal to the City.  The report will 
contain a brief description of the bridge condition documenting any observed deficiencies with 
recommendations to address each deficiency, and applicable photographs.  The report will also include 
copies of the updated SI&A forms and the local agency field data collection forms.  A tabular summary of 
the inspections will be presented and will include current and recommended load postings, sufficiency 

-264-

Item H.2.x. 



Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC  2018 Bridge Inspection Project 
Project No. 18C003.00  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project Number BR-000-3133 

 

 
 

Page 3 of 4 

rating, indication if the bridge is structurally deficient and/or functionally obsolete, and recommendations 
for further action.  Three (3) copies of the bridge inspection report will be provided to the City. 
 

PROJECT DELIVERABLES 
The scope of services shall be considered complete upon completion and delivery of the following items 
to the satisfaction of the City Engineer: 

 Three (3) copies of the Bridge Inspection Report  

-265-

Item H.2.x. 



Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC  2018 Bridge Inspection Project 
Project No. 18C003.00  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project Number BR-000-3133 

 

 
 

Page 4 of 4 

Exhibit B - Schedule 

 
Bridge Inspections - 2018 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 
City Project Number BR-000-3105 

 

 
The CONSULTANT shall complete the following phases of the Project in accordance with the schedule 
shown, assuming notice to proceed is issued by the City on or before February 5, 2018. 
 

Consultant Contract Approval    February 5, 2018  

Bridge File Review    February 28, 2018 

Bridge Inspections    March 30, 2018 

Inspection Data Reported to SIIMS  March 30, 2018 

Load Rating Calculations   April 20, 2018 

Draft Report and QA/QC   May 4, 2018 

Final Report Submittal    May 25, 2018 

 

If notice to proceed is given at a later date, time of completion shall be extended accordingly. 

 

-266-

Item H.2.x. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 
 
 DATE: January 22, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: University Avenue Reconstruction Project – Phase I 
  Project No. RC – 000 – 1996  
   Partial Release of Retainage 
 
 
The City entered into a contract with K. Cunningham Construction on January 18, 2016 
for the University Avenue Phase I Reconstruction Project. This project was completed in 
the summer of 2017 and recently the contractor has been finalizing punch list items and 
final completion paperwork. 
 
The primary infrastructure has been installed and the contractor is requesting a partial 
release of the retained funds for the project. The final contract amount is 
$13,691,872.87 of which 94% has been paid. A partial release of funds is 
recommended in the amount of $638,897.59. The City will withhold the remaining 
$214,273.55 until all final documents are received.  
 
The release of early retainage is outlined in Iowa Code Chapter 26.13 and the details on 
payment of early retainage are described in Iowa Code Chapter 573.14 and 573.15A. 
The City will not issue final acceptance of this project until all of the final documents 
have been submitted and approved. 
 
The Engineering Department recommends the partial release or retainage funds for the 
University Avenue Phase I Reconstruction Project. 
 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
 

-267-

Item H.2.y. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 
 
 DATE: January 30, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: University Avenue Reconstruction Project – Phase 3  
  Project No. RC-000-3140 
  IDOT Ramp Agreement 
 
Attached for your approval is a cooperative agreement between the City and Iowa 
Department of Transportation for the reconstruction of the ramp terminals on University 
Ave Phase 3 Project. 
 
The Iowa Department of Transportation will be contributing a lump sum amount of 
$50,000 for the reconstruction of the ramp terminals at the intersection of Iowa 58 and 
University Avenue. The ramp improvements will extend the life of the current pavement 
and reduce the future maintenance cost. 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends approving and executing the 
cooperative agreement with Iowa Department of Transportation for the reconstruction of 
the ramp terminals as part of the University Avenue Phase 3 Reconstruction Project.  
 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
xc:   Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
  
 
 
 

-269-

Item H.2.z. 



 



February 2017 

 

2018-16-155_CedarFalls.docx 1 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Cooperative Agreement 

For Primary Road Project 
 

County  Black Hawk 
City Cedar Falls 
Project No.  NHSN-058-1(99)--2R-07 
Iowa DOT  
Agreement No.  2018-16-155 
Staff Action No. N/A 

 
This Agreement, is entered into by and between the Iowa Department of Transportation, hereinafter 
designated the "DOT", and the city of Cedar Falls, Iowa, a Local Public Agency, hereafter designated the 
"LPA" in accordance with Iowa Code Chapters 28E, 306, 306A and 313.4 as applicable; 
 
The LPA proposes to establish or make improvements to Iowa 58 within Black Hawk County, Iowa; and 
 
The LPA and the DOT are willing to jointly participate in said project, in the manner hereinafter provided; 
and 
 
This Agreement reflects the current concept of this project which is subject to modification by mutual 
agreement between the LPA and the DOT; and 
 
Therefore, it is agreed as follows: 
 
1. Project Information 
 
a. The LPA shall be the lead local governmental agency for carrying out the provisions of this 

agreement. 
 
 

b. The LPA shall be responsible for the development and completion of the following described primary 
highway project: 

 
Portland Cement Concrete (PCC) pavement replacement on the ramps to Iowa 58 at University 
Avenue interchange; this work is to be accomplished as part of the LPA’s University Avenue – 
Phase 3 project.  

 
2. Project Costs 

 
a. The DOT shall contribute a lump sum $50,000 toward the project costs which represents avoided 

costs for maintenance on the Iowa 58 ramps following proper letting and billing by the LPA. 
 

b. The LPA will bear all costs except those allocated to the DOT under other terms of this Agreement. 
 
3. Environmental, Right-of-Way, Permits and Other Requirements 

 
a. DOT grants approval to the LPA to perform work within the right-of-way and necessary utility 

relocations for this project.  The LPA shall be responsible for obtaining all other necessary 
construction permits. 
 

b. The LPA shall obtain all project permits and / or approvals, when necessary, from the Iowa 
Department of Cultural Affairs (State Historical Society of Iowa; State Historic Preservation Officer), 
Iowa Department of Natural Resources, U.S. Coast Guard, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, or other 
State or Federal agencies as may be required. 
 

c. If the project requires utility relocations, subject to the approval of and without expense to the DOT, 
the LPA agrees to perform or cause to be performed all relocations, alterations, adjustments or 

-271-

Item H.2.z. 



February 2017 

 

2018-16-155_CedarFalls.docx 2 

removals of existing utility facilities, including but not limited to power, telephone lines, fiber optics 
lines, natural gas pipelines, water mains and hydrants, curb boxes, utility accesses, storm water 
intakes, sanitary sewers, and related poles, installations and appurtenances, whether privately or 
publicly owned, and all parking meters, traffic signals and other facilities or obstructions which are 
located within the limits of an established street or alley and which will interfere with construction of 
the project and the clear zone. All utility relocations involving the DOT’s right-of-way shall be 
accomplished in accordance with the DOT’s Utility Accommodation Policy, as set forth in 761 Iowa 
Administrative Code, Chapter 115.  

 
4. Project Design 

 
a. The LPA or its consultant shall be responsible for the design of all proposed improvements. 

 
b. The project plans, specifications and engineer's cost estimate shall be prepared and certified by a 

Professional Engineer licensed to practice in the State of Iowa. 
 
 

c. The project design shall comply with the "Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and 
Highways", by the Federal Highway Administration, as adopted by DOT, as per 761 Iowa 
Administrative Code, Chapter 130. 

 
5. Bid Letting  

 
a. The LPA shall let the project and will be the contracting authority. 

 
6. Construction & Maintenance  

 
a. The LPA shall be responsible for all construction administration and daily inspection of the project, 

including the compilation of a daily log of materials, equipment, and labor used on the project.  
 
b. The work on this project involving the interchange ramp pavement replacement shall be in 

accordance with the approved plans and specifications. Any substantial modification of these plans 
and specifications must be approved by the DOT prior to the modification being put into effect. 

 
c. With the exception of service connections no new or future utility occupancy of primary highway right-

of-way, nor any future relocations of or alterations to existing utilities within Iowa DOT right-of-way 
(except service connections), will be permitted or undertaken by the LPA without the prior written 
approval of the DOT. All work will be performed in accordance with the Utility Accommodation Policy 
and other applicable requirements of the DOT. 
 

d. Upon completion of the project, no changes in the physical features thereof will be undertaken or 
permitted without the prior written approval of the DOT. 
 

e. After the project construction is complete, the LPA shall furnish a set of "as-built" plans to the DOT.  
 

f. Future maintenance of the primary highway within the project area will be carried out in accordance 
with the terms and conditions contained in 761 Iowa Administrative Code Chapter 150.  
 

7. Traffic Control 
 

a. Iowa 58 through-traffic will be maintained during the construction. 
 
8. General Provisions 

 
a. The LPA agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the DOT harmless from any action or liability arising 

out of the design, construction, maintenance, placement of traffic control devices, inspection, or use 
of this project. This agreement to indemnify, defend and hold harmless applies to all aspects of the 
DOT's application review and approval process, plan and construction reviews, and funding 

-272-

Item H.2.z. 



February 2017 

 

2018-16-155_CedarFalls.docx 3 

participation.  
 

b. If any part of this agreement is found to be void and unenforceable then the remaining provisions of 
this agreement shall remain in effect. 

 
c. This agreement is not assignable without the prior written consent of the DOT. 

 
d. It is the intent of both (all) parties that no third party beneficiaries be created by this Agreement. 

 
e. In case of dispute concerning the terms of this agreement, the parties shall submit the matter to 

arbitration pursuant to Iowa Code Chapter 679A. Either party has the right to submit the matter to 
arbitration after ten (10) days notice to the other party of their intent to seek arbitration. The written 
notice must include a precise statement of the disputed question. The DOT and the LPA agree to be 
bound by the decision of the appointed arbitrator. Neither party may seek any remedy with the State 
or Federal courts absent exhaustion of the provisions of this paragraph for arbitration. 
 

f. This Agreement may be executed in (two) counterparts, each of which so executed will be deemed to 
be an original. 

 
g. This Agreement, as well as the unaffected provisions of any previous agreement(s), addendum(s), 

and/or amendment(s); represents the entire Agreement between the LPA and DOT regarding this 
project. All previously executed agreements will remain in effect except as amended herein. Any 
subsequent change or modification to the terms of this Agreement will be in the form of a duly 
executed amendment to this document. 

 
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has executed Agreement No. 2018-16-155 as of the 
date shown opposite its signature below. 
 
 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS: 
 
 
 
By:                                                                     Date                                                      , 20___. 
Title:    Mayor 
 
I,  , certify that I am the Clerk of the City, and that  , 

who signed said Agreement for and on behalf of the City was duly authorized to execute the same on the          

day of                                      , 20___. 

Signed: _____________________________ 

    City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
 
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION: 
 
 
 
By:                                                               Date                                                         , 20___. 
      E. Jon Ranney 
      District Engineer 
      District 2 
 

-273-

Item H.2.z. 



February 2017 

 

2018-16-155_CedarFalls.docx 4 

EXHIBIT A 
Project Location 

 
 

-274-

Item H.2.z. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 

 DATE: January 31, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Assignment & Assumption Agreement: CV Properties Housing 
Cooperative Association 

 
On May 2, 2016 the City and CV Properties Housing Cooperative Association entered 
into an Agreement for Private Development pertaining to a new development at 917 W 
23rd Street. This agreement was approved under the standard terms and conditions for 
projects that are located within the College Hill Urban Renewal Area. Part of those 
standard terms and conditions of the Agreement prohibits the sale of property and 
assignment of the Agreement without the written approval of the City of Cedar Falls.  
This language is included to allow the City to review these proposed ownership 
transfers and insure compliance with the terms of the Agreements. 
 
The City recently received a request from CV Properties 2, LLC to transfer the 
ownership of CV Properties Housing Cooperative Association to CV Properties 2, LLC. 
Both entities involve Brent Dahlstrom and his attorney has indicated that they are trying 
to move this property under Mr. Dahlstrom’s primary ownership entity.  
 
The attached Assignment and Assumption Agreement has been reviewed and 
approved by all parties.  The obligations pertaining to building and development 
requirements have been satisfied and the new ownership group (CV Properties 2, LLC) 
will assume any and all ongoing obligations applicable in the Development Agreement.  
These primary ongoing obligations include minimum assessed valuations as applicable, 
payment of property taxes, insurance requirements, and property maintenance. 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends that City Council approve 
and adopt the following: 
 

1. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Assignment and 
Assumption Agreement by and among the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; CV 
Properties Housing Cooperative Association; and CV Properties 2, LLC. 

 
 
 

-275-

Item H.2.aa. 



If you have any questions pertaining to this project, please contact the Community 
Development Department. 
 
xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
       Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 
       Eric Johnson, Beecher Law Office 
       Brent Dahlstrom, CV Properties 2, LLC 
 
 

-276-

Item H.2.aa. 



-277-

Item H.2.aa. 



-278-

Item H.2.aa. 



-279-

Item H.2.aa. 



-280-

Item H.2.aa. 



-281-

Item H.2.aa. 



 



1 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 

 DATE: February 1, 2018 

 SUBJECT: College Hill Neighborhood Site Plan Review – 2119 College Street 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 

Request to approve a College Hill Neighborhood District Site Plan Review for 
a new multi-use building at 2119 College Street. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Slingshot Architecture 
 

LOCATION: 
 

2119 College Street, 925 W 22nd Street, and 1003 W 22nd Street 
 

 
PROPOSAL 
It is proposed to demolish the existing multi-family dwellings currently located at 2119 College 
Street and 1003 W 22nd Street, and the existing commercial building located at 925 W 22nd 
Street, in order to construct a new 5-story multi-use building, which will include two commercial 
retail spaces on the first floor and 82 residential rental units on the second through fifth floors. 
The original plan that the applicant submitted in early 2017 called for a total of 63 residential 
units, but the developer has recently provided an updated plan, which now shows a total of 83 
residential units (see tables below for differences between original and revised submittal).  
 
 

Unit Type Original Submittal Revised Submittal 
Studio 24 60 

2 Bedroom 16 16 
3 Bedroom 16 None 
4 Bedroom 7 7 

Total Units 63 83 
Total Beds 132 120 

 
 
 
 
 

-283-

Item H.2.ab. 



2 
 

 
Ground Floor  Original Submittal Revised Submittal 

Commercial Area SF 3,060 SF 10,765 SF 
Commercial % 19% 64% 

Lobby/Access Area SF 1,000 SF 848 SF 
Lobby/Access Area % 6% 5% 

Parking Area 
Trash Enclosure SF 

12,699 SF 5,146 SF 

Parking Area % 75% 31% 
TOTAL 100% 100% 

 
 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The two multi-family dwellings on the property were constructed in 1900, while the commercial 
building was constructed in 1972. The developer has owned the multi-family dwellings since 
2016, and the commercial building since 2012. All three of the buildings will be demolished and 
a new 5-story multi-use building will be constructed in its place. An application for this site plan 
was originally submitted on January 25, 2017. The Planning & Zoning Commission first 
introduced and discussed the site plan at its November 21, 2017 meeting. Following that 
meeting, the applicant submitted a revised plan, of which the P&Z Commission discussed that 
revised site plan at its January 10, 2018 meeting, and voted on the request at its meeting on 
January 24, 2018.  
 
ANALYSIS 
The property is zoned C-3, High Density Commercial District and is located within the College 
Hill Neighborhood Overlay District. Projects within this district require a site plan review by the 
Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council, based on the following elements: 
 

Building view from corner of College Street and W 22nd Street. 

-284-

Item H.2.ab. 



3 
 

1) Proposed Use: The building is proposed to be 5 stories in height, with the ground floor 
consisting of two retail commercial spaces, a residential lobby area, trash enclosure and 
partial parking for the residential use. This includes approximately 10,765 square feet of 
commercial retail space, 848 square feet of lobby area and 5,146 square feet of 
parking/trash enclosure areas. The ground floor does not contain any residential dwelling 
units. The table located on page 2 summarizes the uses and their percentages.        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The building as a whole will have approximately 10,765 square feet of commercial retail 
space located on the first floor and approximately 50,897 square feet of residential space 
located on the 2nd through 5th floors. This would equate to an overall ratio of 17% 
commercial space and 83% residential space. 
 
In determining principal versus accessory use, staff applied two sections of the zoning 
ordinance: the Definition section and the College Hill Neighborhood Overly Zoning District 
section. The College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District was originally adopted on 
November 8, 1993; however the section that relates to the C-3 Commercial District was 
added to the section on December 12, 2005. Section 29-160 (g) of the zoning ordinance 
(College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District) states that within the C-3 district, 
residential uses may be contained within principal commercial uses, and in such cases the 
residential uses are considered to be secondary or accessory uses to the principal 
commercial use on the property. Also, Section 29-160 (g) (2) states that secondary or 
accessory residential uses to be established on the upper floors of principal permitted 
commercial uses are allowed, and that no accessory or secondary residential use may be 
established on the main floor or street level of any storefront or commercial shop front of a 
principal permitted commercial building structure. In the past, staff has looked at how the 
first floor or ground floor of a building was utilized when determining its principal or main 
use. When the main level of a building has over 50% of its first floor area utilized for 
commercial purposes, staff determined the principal use of the building to be commercial, 
with uses on the upper floors of the building being considered accessory in nature.  
 
Examples of past interpretations for projects located at 2024 College Street (2014), 2215 
College Street (2014), 917 W 23rd Street (2016), 200 W 1st Street (2017), and the River 
Place Development along State Street (2014) had their principal use determined by the 
amount of commercial area located on the first floor. Until December of 2017, the proposal 

Updated Ground Floor Layout 

-285-

Item H.2.ab. 



4 
 

included 87% non-commercial uses on the ground floor. However, the attached revised 
site plan shows a majority of the ground floor area dedicated to commercial use (64%).  
 
Based on the past interpretations by staff in determining the principal use of a building, 
and based on Section 29-160 (g) and 29-160 (g) (2) where it is allowed to establish 
residential uses on upper floors of principal commercial uses, staff deems this to be a 
permitted use in the C-3 District and College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District. 
Principal commercial use with accessory residential uses on upper floors is 
allowed. 

 
2) Building Setbacks: The property is zoned C-3 Commercial District. Principal commercial 

uses within this district are allowed to have 0 foot setbacks. The site plan shows the 
building having a 5 foot building setback from College Street and a 2 foot building setback 
from W 22nd Street. A 6 foot building setback is shown along the west and north lot lines. 
Building setbacks are satisfied. 

 
3) Density: Typically, the density requirement for a residential use that is part of a property 

redevelopment would call for a minimum lot area of 37,350 SF (based on 83 proposed 
units). The total lot size of this particular property is 30,018 SF, so the density requirement 
would appear to fall short. However, this is not a principal residential use but rather a 
principal commercial use, and there are no density requirements for the accessory 
residential component. No density limit. 
 

4) Parking: On-site parking would not be required for the commercial component of the 
project, as it is not a requirement in the C-3 District. The College Hill Neighborhood 
Overlay District (29-160 (g) (2)) states that on-site parking is not required for secondary, 
accessory residential uses that are located on upper floors of a principal permitted 
commercial use. The parking section of the zoning ordinance (29-177 (a) (2)) also 
exempts on-site parking for upper floor/accessory residential uses, where the 1st floor is 
commercial. Even though parking is not required, the developer has shown a total of 65 
on-site parking spaces. 47 of the parking spaces would be located underground, and 18 
parking spaces would be located on the ground level. If this project were to follow the 
typical parking requirements for a multi-family development, it would need a total of 136 
parking spaces. Parking is not required for this use within the C-3 District, but the 
developer is providing 65 on-site parking spaces. 

 
5) Open Green Space: The C-3 District does not have any open green space area 

requirements. 
 

The provided site plan does show some open space along the west and north property 
line, where grass and landscape plantings will be provided. No open green space 
requirement. 

 
6) Landscaping: The College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District does require landscaping 

along the periphery of the parking area. 
 
A revised landscaping plan has been submitted, which shows plantings along W 22nd 
Street and along the periphery of the parking lot. Landscaping plan is acceptable. 
 

-286-

Item H.2.ab. 



5 
 

7) Building Design: The College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District states that the 
architectural character, materials, and textures of all buildings shall be compatible with 
those primary design elements on structures located on adjoining properties and also in 
consideration of said design elements commonly utilized on other nearby properties on 
the same block or within the immediate neighborhood.  Comparable scale and character 
in relation to adjoining properties and other nearby properties in the immediate 
neighborhood shall be maintained by reviewing several design elements.  These are 
noted below with a review on how each element is addressed.  

oLife  

 
Maintaining Similar Roof Pitch: 
 

Flat roofs are used in this area. The proposed building also uses a 
flat roof. 

 
Maintaining Similar Building Height, Building Scale and Building Proportion: 

 
Most of the buildings in this immediate area are either one-story or 
two-story in height. The proposed building will be 5 stories in 
height, which would replace two existing two-story structures and 
one existing single story building that are currently on the property. 
The property is zoned C-3 Commercial District, which has a 
building height limitation of 165 feet or three times the width of the 
road that the building faces. In this case College Street is 40 feet in 
width, meaning that the maximum building height allowed would be 
120 feet (40 feet x 3). As this structure would be 63 feet 8 inches in 
height, it would meet the height requirement of the Zoning 
Ordinance. This property is also located within the College Hill 
Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District. This overlay district does not 
have a specific height limitation for buildings, but it does call for 
reviewing the scale of a proposed building in relation to adjoining 
properties and other nearby properties within the immediate 
neighborhood. 
 
The applicant has provided a diagram which shows several other 
buildings within a 2-3 block area that are taller than the proposed 
building (see attached diagram for building locations). In the 
diagram, it shows the proposed building with a height of 
approximately 64 feet. Other buildings in the area and their heights 
include the St. Stephen Catholic Student Center on W 23rd Street at 
40 feet in height, Bartlett Hall on the UNI campus on W 23rd Street 
at 49 feet in height, the UNI parking garage on W 23rd Street at 35 
feet in height, and Dancer Hall on Campus Street on the UNI 
campus at 159 feet in height. Also, the applicant has provided a 
side elevation diagram which shows the street section of buildings 
located on College Street and their height comparison to the 
proposed building. Based on the diagrams presented below, staff 
feels that the building scale and height will not be out of character 
for the area, as there are other structures within the neighborhood 
that are comparable in scale and height to the proposed building.  

-287-

Item H.2.ab. 



6 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Use of Materials Comparable and Similar to Other Buildings on Nearby 
Properties in the Immediate Neighborhood: 

 
Most of the buildings in this immediate neighborhood are constructed 
with brick materials. University Book and Supply, which is located to the 
south of this property, is constructed mainly with limestone tiles. 
 
The proposed building will have a more modern look, as it will be 
constructed with a mix of metal paneling, sandblasted concrete, brick 
and perforated metal screens. Each of the four sides of the building will 
have a slightly different design in relation to the amount and type of 
materials used. Please see the table below which breaks down the use 
of materials by building side. 
 

Side of Building Brick Metal Paneling Concrete Openings 
North 50.2% 35.9% 0% 13.9% 

South (W 22nd St) 36.7% 27.5% 18.3% 17.5% 
East (College St) 54.5% 23.9% 0% 21.6% 

West 31.5% 54.6% 0% 13.9% 
 
 

Building Height Comparisons 

Street Section along College Street 

-288-

Item H.2.ab. 



7 
 

 
 
In addition to the design of the building, the overlay district looks at 
building scale, in that the maximum width of the front façade shall not 
be wider than 40 feet. If a building were to have a larger width than 40 
feet, the façade of the building must be broken into modules that give 
the appearance of smaller, individual buildings. 

 
 Each individual module should adhere to the following guidelines, in order to give the 

appearance of separate, individual buildings: 
1. Each module shall be no greater than 40 feet and no less than 10 feet in width. 
2. Each module should have a corresponding change in roof line for the purpose 

of architectural identity. 
3. Each module should be distinguished from the adjacent module by at least one 

of the following means: 
a. Variation in material colors, types and textures 
b. Variation in the building and/or parapet height 
c. Variation in the architectural details such as decorative banding, reveals, 

stones or tile accent 
d. Variation in window pattern 
e. Variation in the use of balconies and recesses 

 
 The building has a width of 50 feet, however it would appear that the building scale 

requirements for this building would meet the above requirements, as there would appear 
to be individual modules, colors, varying materials, textures, and recesses.  

 
8) Trash Dumpster Site: The site plan shows a dumpster enclosure contained within the 

parking area at the entrance along W 22nd Street. New details have been submitted which 
shows two trash dumpsters completely located within the building, just before entering 
through the overhead door to get into the parking area. Trash enclosure is acceptable. 

 
9) Lighting: The C-3 District and College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District regulations do 

not have specific lighting design guidelines. A lighting plan has been submitted, which 
details the exterior lighting to be placed along the faces of the building along W 22nd Street 
and College Street. This lighting will light up the faces of the building, highlighting the 
masonry materials without producing light spill onto other properties. The lighting in the 
parking areas will be oriented behind beams and soffits so that the light source is 

East (College Street) Elevation South (W 22nd Street) Elevation 

-289-

Item H.2.ab. 



8 
 

concealed while still providing adequate lighting. This will also help to stop any light spill 
onto adjacent properties. Lighting plan is acceptable. 

 
10) Signage: Wall signs are illustrated on the building renderings along the south side and 

east side of the building (facing College Street and W 22nd Street). These signs will 
indicate the name of the development. The proposed wall signs appear to be well within 
the District limitations of no larger than 1/3rd of the surface area of the single wall area to 
which the wall sign is attached, however this will be reviewed in detail at the time a sign 
permit is requested. Signage is acceptable, subject to detailed review with a sign 
permit. 

 
11) Sidewalks: A minimum 5 foot paved sidewalk exists in front of the property along both 

College Street and W 22nd Street. The site plan shows additional decorative paving 
located near the entrance along W 22nd Street. Sidewalk requirements are met. 

 
12) Storm Water Management: Storm water will be collected on site via an underground 

detention area underneath the parking lot and piped to the storm sewer along College 
Street. City Engineering Staff has indicated that they will need to see the final details on 
the system once they are designed by the developer’s engineer. Stormwater 
requirements will need to be reviewed and approved once final design is completed. 

 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, have few comments on the 
proposed item. The developer will be responsible to extend all utilities to the site. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the College Hill 
Neighborhood District Site Plan for a new multi-use building at 2119 College Street. 
  

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
11/21/2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ms. Oberle introduced the item and Mr. Graham provided background 
information. Staff has determined it to be a principal residential use. Based on the 
zoning ordinance, the on-site parking requirements are not met and there are 
potential height and setback issues. Staff is recommending that the applicant 
address comments from the staff report and the Commission to bring back for 
further discussion and review at a future meeting. 
 
Mr. Graham noted that a letter was received from an attorney representing the 
concerned citizens of College Hill that addresses three concerns. Brent 
Dahlstrom, developer (5016 Samantha Circle), came forward and discussed 
issues with zoning and parking and asked questions with regard to requirements. 
Mr. Sturch provided explanation to the questions Mr. Dahlstrom presented with 
regard to buildings on State Street. There was discussion regarding the amount 
of commercial use in the building. Mr. Dahlstrom asked for recommendations 
from the staff so he can proceed.  
 
Mr. Holst stated that while he appreciates that Mr. Dahlstrom wants to do the 
project, he cannot support it as it is. He feels that it fundamentally violates the C-3 

-290-

Item H.2.ab. 



9 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

zoning. He feels that when residential units are put in, the parking has to come 
with it. Mr. Dahlstrom argued that there is no parking required and that his last 
project at 917 W. 23rd Street has no parking stalls. Mr. Graham clarified that an 
agreement was made to provide parking in the UNI parking lots in the lease at 
that property. The Planning and Zoning Commission discussed the parking issue 
at length, noting that the 917 W. 23rd Street project was approved based on the 
agreement to provide offsite parking. Staff has assumed that those specifications 
are being enforced as was agreed upon. 
 
Cara Bigelow Baker (1826 Quail Run Lane), works at 2211 College Hill and 
stated her concern with parking on College Hill. She feels there is not enough 
parking to support the residents of the building at 917 W. 23rd and there will be 
even more parking issues if the new building comes without designated parking.  
 
Chris Wernimont, 415½ Washington Street, has rental properties in the area and 
is concerned about the parking issues that would be created by having that 
volume of residents with no parking. In his experience, 90% of his student tenants 
have vehicles and there will be nowhere for people to park. 
 
Andy Fuchtman (422 N. Ellen Street), owner of Sidecar Coffee, stated that he 
would like to find a way to move toward more progress and would like to see the 
project move ahead. 
 
Kyle Dehmlow (2113 Vera Way), owns businesses on College Hill. He feels that 
parking has been less of an issue recently. He has his employees park further 
away to allow for customer parking. He would like to see more focus on College 
Hill and would like to see more development. 
 
 

  
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
1/10/2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mr. Holst opened the discussion to the public, asking that everyone be concise 
and do not repeat items that have already been addressed. Dan Manning, 
attorney representing concerned citizens in the College Hill area, stated their 
opposition. He sees it as a violation of the City zoning ordinance. He believes that 
the ordinance was designed to protect all citizens in the development of property, 
and feels that the proposed building is primarily residential and should not be 
considered to be commercial. He doesn’t feel the building does not conform to the 
rules and regulations in one of the most regulated areas in the City. Mr. Manning 
stated that the citizens are not saying that nothing should be built in this area, but 
the Commission should not rely on what he feels is a “faulty interpretation” of the 
code. He discussed the parking issues and the standards that need to be met in 
the area.  
Dave Deibler, 1616 Campus Street, expressed his support for the project, stating 
that he believes the City needs this development. He would like to see College 
Hill developed and grow.  
 
Cara Bigelow Baker, 1826 Quail Run Lane, does business at the Razor’s Edge at 

-291-

Item H.2.ab. 



10 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2211 College Street. She stated that she is all for development but doesn’t 
believe it is responsible to have this kind of building without adequate parking. 
She noted that she followed up with UNI regarding parking and discovered that 
there is no parking permit available for off campus residents to park overnight in 
the lot. The information that was provided to the City originally was false. She 
discussed the number of parking permits sold to students and stated that the 
ration of students with vehicles is much higher than the developer suggested. She 
noted that the website advertising the building at the Urban Flats building has 
changed its parking information since it was opened. It originally stated that with a 
“B” pass they would be eligible to park in the lot north of the building. As of the 
last meeting they changed the advertisement to “off-street parking available.” It 
now says nothing about parking. She feels that the City should consider 
amendments to the parking rules for the lots.  
 
Dan Drendel, Slingshot Architecture, architect for the project, feels that the zoning 
aligns perfectly with the master plan. He displayed renderings of the building 
showing the height relation to the other buildings, including the Urban Flats 
building. They feel they have addressed the issues properly in accordance with 
the ordinance. He also discussed trash enclosures and how they will keep the 
dumpsters out of view.  
 
Chris Wernimont, 415 ½ Washington Street, pointed out that in the code the 
principal use does not mention the first floor. It also states that in case of conflict, 
the most restricted provision shall cover, and he noted that he has concerns 
about the overall height. He noted concerns by the College Hill Partnership, 
including height and parking issues.  
 
Brian Sires, 1939 College Street, noted that there should be a single definition of 
what constitutes the principal use in a building, which is defined as the major use 
of the building. He’s not against development, but believes everyone has to follow 
city ordinances. He believes it’s the Commission’s obligation to follow the law. 
 

Mr. Graham wanted to note on record the letters that were received from different 
members of the community. He went through and named the people who sent 
comments or letters.  
 
Mr. Wingert asked about the parking on the ground floor and noted that precedent 
is a big part of the law, and that he has to follow that as opposed to interpretation.  
 
Mr. Leeper spoke to the scale of the project, stating that he feels density is a 
good thing in an underdeveloped part of town.  
 
Mr. Arntson stated there is a bit of a cloud because of Urban Flats, and feels 
there needs to be some research with the parking issues. He believes that the 
estimates of people with cars in the area is low and needs to be taken into 
consideration. He feels the project looks good overall, but parking needs to be 
addressed. 
 

-292-

Item H.2.ab. 



11 
 

Mr. Holst agreed with the sentiments of Mr. Arntson and has issues with the 
parking. He feels that it is a residential building and it should be treated as such. 
Ms. Giarusso and Ms. Saul also agreed that they have an issue with the parking. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/ 
Vote 
1/24/2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Chair Oberle introduced the item and Mr. Graham provided background 
information. He explained that the item has been brought the Commission at past 
meetings for discussion and gave a brief overview of the information covered. He 
showed the original and the revised plans to illustrate the changes that have been 
made since previous meetings. He discussed additional site plan review items, 
such as height, building setbacks, trash enclosures, lighting details, and the 
landscaping plan. He also discussed the principle commercial use and parking 
issues that have been brought up in the past. Staff recommends approval of the 
site plan. Mr. Graham noted that letters that have been submitted since the last 
meeting were handed out to the Commission. 
 
Larry James, 801 Grand Avenue, Des Moines, Iowa, (attorney on behalf of the 
applicant), stated that staff laid out the case, the project meets the code 
requirements and asks that the Commission support the project. He noted that 
precedent and the code should be considered, and based on the applicant’s 
submittals, the project should be approved.  
 
James Bunkofske, 1706 Cottage Lane, is a property owner in the area and 
indicated that he provides adequate parking for his rental properties. He doesn’t 
feel that this development is providing enough parking, which will force taxpayers 
to pay for future parking lots for their tenants.  
 
Dan Manning, 317 6th Avenue, Des Moines, Iowa, (attorney on behalf of the 
concerned citizens of College Hill), stated that he believes that the definition of 
principle use is the main use for the building, which is a residential building. He 
felt that this was covered at the November meeting and he felt that staff and the 
commission were in agreement. He asked that the application be rejected and 
revised. 
 
Mr. Bunkofske suggested that the developer create parking on other locations 
that he owns. 
 
Dr. Brian Sires, owner of University Manor at 1939 College Street, feels that this 
project is not being considered correctly and that there are more cars than are 
being accounted for. He feels that they are reinventing the code for the project 
and that this should be considered a residential project. The City is supposed to 
follow its own code as codes are legal restrictions. 
 
Kurt Rickard, 223 W. 2nd Street, discussed principle and permitted use, as well 
as parking requirements and his interpretation of the code. 
 
Nick Taiber, 1709 Clay Street, believes that people are changing single-family 
homes into rental homes to meet market demand. He feels the developer is trying 

-293-

Item H.2.ab. 



12 
 

to meet that demand. He stated he feels the Commission should start looking at 
this as a chance to solve problems in neighborhoods and encourage these 
projects. He suggested that slight modifications to the parking policies it will also 
help. 
 
Dave Deibler, 1616 Campus Street, owner of properties on College Hill, is in favor 
of the project and feels that it is good for the district.  
 
Andy Fuchtman, 422 N. Ellen Street, (owner of Sidecar Coffee), feels that this will 
be great for the area and the businesses.  
 
Kara Bigelow Baker, 1826 Quail Run Lane, (works at the Razor’s Edge Hair 
Salon), feels that the project is needed, but feels that the parking is a big issue. 
She stated that the Commission was sent a request for a parking study in the 
area and asked why that has not been done. She also discussed issues with the 
Urban Flats building, University parking passes, and how parking issues have 
been created in the City lots. The Overlay Districts are in place to preserve the 
special characteristics of the areas. If the parking availability is continually 
disrupted, business occupancy will decline.  
 
Dennis Bigelow, 3909 Beaver Ridge Circle, had concerns about the project with 
regard to deciding whether the principle use is commercial or residential. He 
suggests that there be a collaborative effort between the City, property owners, 
and the developer to complete a parking study. He feels that if you open the door 
to problems now, the door is open to future problems. He believes the project is a 
good concept, but parking issues need to be dealt with first. 
 
Ms. Oberle closed the public comment period and asked if the petitioner would 
like to address any comments. Mr. James stated that he appreciates the 
comments and that he can see that there are a lot of people who care about their 
city. He feels the client has heard the concerns of the neighbors and has made 
adjustments accordingly.  
 
Mr. Arntson feels the building looks great and utilizes solid materials. He feels 
that the effort to put full underground parking with 47 spaces is not an insignificant 
investment and agrees that there should be a reduction in the number of 
conversions from single-family to multi-unit in the area to get the population more 
concentrated in the neighborhood. Mr. Arntson stated that he is torn between the 
option of limiting the building size or creating an overflow parking area at another 
location, assuming that there is a parking problem. 
 
Mr. Leeper asked about future development and if staff is encouraging these 
types of projects. Mr. Graham clarified that staff doesn’t really have a preference 
but would like there to be more clarity in the code if it does come up again.  
 
Ms. Giarusso asked about the zoning district boundary and the parking 
requirements for R-3 zoning. Mr. Graham explained the standards and parking 
requirements. 
 

-294-

Item H.2.ab. 



13 
 

Mr. Holst stated that he feels the need to be fair and look at the intent. He noted 
that parking regulations need to be maintained for the uses and that there are 
different requirements in neighboring districts. C-3 is intended for commercial. He 
doesn’t feel it’s fair for this to be allowed to have half of the parking that would be 
expected anywhere else in the City.  
 
Ms. Saul feels that the Commission has to get back to what the zoning ordinance 
says, and maintains that the primary principle use of the property is residential 
and should refer to R-4 zoning ordinance requirements. She likes the project and 
feels we need something like this, but at this time it conflicts with the ordinance. 
 
Mr. Leeper agrees that the primary use is residential and also agrees that these 
are the kind of projects we should be moving toward. He realizes that people are 
unhappy with the parking, but hopes that the changes to the zoning ordinance 
help to enable more projects like this. 
 
Mr. Wingert agrees that a zoning change is needed to accomplish the growth 
seen in other communities. He asked about what the facts are with regard to 
parking and feels a parking study should be done. He completed his own 
independent parking study and doesn’t feel there is a parking problem. 
 
Mr. Hartley made a motion to approve. Mr. Wingert seconded the motion. The 
motion was approved with 5 ayes (Arntson, Hartley, Leeper, Oberle, and 
Wingert), and 4 nays (Adkins, Giarusso, Holst and Saul). 
 

 

-295-

Item H.2.ab. 



 



Dry
Run

Creek (Univ)

University
of Northern

Iowa

Ol
ive

 St

Iow
a S

t

Wa
lnu

t S
t

W
isc

on
sin

St

W 26th St

W 22nd St

W 21st St

W 20th St

Ca
mp

us
 St

W 23rd St

Mauker Dr

Floral Ct

W 25th St

W Seerley Blvd

Me
rne

r A
ve

Co
lle

ge
 St

University Ave

R-3

C-3

R-4

R-4
R-2

R-2

P

R-3

College Hill Neighborhood Overlay
District Site Plan Review

University
of Northern

Iowa

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Black
Hawk
Park

Cedar Falls

Hu
ds

on
Rd

Ce d a
rH

eig
hts

Dr

Waterloo Rd Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

V ikin

gRd

W 18th St

Greenhill Rd

Center St

E Dunkerton Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St
Ma

in 
St

W 1st St

W 12th St

University Ave

Un
ion

 R
d

E 1st St

W 27th St

NUnion Rd

Lincoln St

E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ve

r se
eR

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

Cedar Falls City Council
February 5, 2018

-297-

Item H.2.ab. 



 



-299-

Item
 H

.2.ab. 



 



COLLEGE HILL
FLOOR PLATES & MASSING 

CORRIDOR
A: 804 sq ft

STAIR
A: 161 sq ft

ELEV.
A: 101 sq ft

STAIR

2 BEDS

2 BEDS

2 BEDS

2 BEDS

4 BEDS

STUDIO 02

STUDIO 04

AMENITY

CORRIDOR

STUDIO 03

STUDIO 06 STUDIO 06
STUDIO 08

STUDIO 07

STUDIO 01 STUDIO 01 STUDIO 01 STUDIO 01 STUDIO 01

STUDIO 05STUDIO 05 STUDIO 05

4 BEDS

ZONE LEGEND
RESIDENTIAL UNITS

CIRCULATION

RETAIL/AMENITY

W/D W/D

W/DW/D

W/D W/DW/D W/D

F DW

FDW

F DWF DW

AMENITY

CORRIDOR

AMENITY

CORRIDOR

STAIR

ELEV.

STAIR

AMENITY 2 BEDS

2 BEDS

2 BEDS2 BEDS

STUDIO 03

STUDIO 06 STUDIO 06
STUDIO 08

STUDIO 07

STUDIO 09

STUDIO 10

DECK

AMENITY

STUDIO 01 STUDIO 01 STUDIO 01 STUDIO 01 STUDIO 01

STUDIO 05STUDIO 05 STUDIO 05

4 BEDS

APARTMENT RENTABLE SQUARE FOOTAGE

UNIT TYPE

2 BEDS

4 BEDS

STUDIO 01

STUDIO 02

STUDIO 03

STUDIO 04

STUDIO 05

STUDIO 06

STUDIO 07

STUDIO 08

STUDIO 09

STUDIO 10

QTY.

16

7

20

3

4

3

12

8

4

4

1

1

UNIT SQ FT.

802

1370

433

450

446

470

500

502

499

451

430

487

TOTAL SQ. FT.

13,165

9,590

8,860

1,350

1,784

1,410

6,000

4,021

1,996

1,804

430

487

SCALE: 1/32" =    1'-0"
RESIDENTIAL FLOOR PLANS 2-4

SCALE: 1/32" =    1'-0"
TOP FLOOR PLAN

PARKING
PROVIDED

TOTAL

65 (1 ACCESSIBLE STALL)

TOTAL BEDS 120

UNDERGROUND PARKINGBASEMENT

BUILDING GROSS AREA

COVERED PARKINGLEVEL 1

RETAIL

LOBBY

RESIDENTIAL

LEVEL 1

LEVEL 1

LEVEL 2-5

TOTAL

24,350 sq ft

5,994 sq ft

11,603 sq ft

109,434 sq ft

66,752 sq ft

ADDITIONAL SURFACE PARKING 7,131 sq ft

735 sq ft

83 50,897 sq. ft

-301-

Item
 H

.2.ab. 



COLLEGE HILL
GROUND FLOOR 

2,508 sq ft

20.00 %
10.00 %

10.00 %
20.00 %

8,257 sq ft

22ND ST.

C
O

LL
E

G
E

 S
T.

PARKING

C
O

L
L

E
G

E
 S

T
.

APT.LOBBY

4

2 5

7

(18 STALLS)

RETAIL B

RETAIL A

5,994 sq ft

SCALE: 1/32" =    1'-0"

LEVEL 1 - RETAIL + PARKING

TOTAL RENTABLE RETAIL = 10,765 sq ft (64%)

-302-

Item
 H

.2.ab. 



COLLEGE HILL
BASEMENT 

20.00 %
10.00 %

10.00 %
20.00 %

10

6
8

21

(47 STALLS)

PARKING

SCALE: 1/32" =    1'-0"

UNDERGROUND PARKING

-303-

Item
 H

.2.ab. 



COLLEGE HILL
ELEVATIONS 

-10'-0"
-1 BASEMENT

-10'-0"
-1 BASEMENT

±0"
1 LEVEL 1

±0"
1 LEVEL 1

+13'-4"
2 LEVEL 2

+13'-4"
2 LEVEL 2

+24'-8"
3 LEVEL 3

+24'-8"
3 LEVEL 3

+36'-0"
4 LEVEL 4

+36'-0"
4 LEVEL 4

+47'-4"
5 LEVEL 5

+47'-4"
5 LEVEL 5

+58'-8"
6 ROOF

+58'-8"
6 ROOF

+63'-8"
7 T/PARAPET

+63'-8"
7 T/PARAPET

AA B B C

-10'-0"
-1 BASEMENT

-10'-0"
-1 BASEMENT

±0"
1 LEVEL 1

±0"
1 LEVEL 1

+13'-4"
2 LEVEL 2

+13'-4"
2 LEVEL 2

+24'-8"
3 LEVEL 3

+24'-8"
3 LEVEL 3

+36'-0"
4 LEVEL 4

+36'-0"
4 LEVEL 4

+47'-4"
5 LEVEL 5

+47'-4"
5 LEVEL 5

+58'-8"
6 ROOF

+58'-8"
6 ROOF

+63'-8"
7 T/PARAPET

+63'-8"
7 T/PARAPET

ABC

6

2

5

1

1

43

(5) NORTH ELEVATION

(6) SOUTH ELEVATION

KEY PLAN

(A) METAL PANEL (B) METAL PANEL BRICKMETAL PANEL(C) METAL PANEL PERFORATED METAL SCREEN

METAL PANEL @ FRONT FACE = 35.9%
BRICK @ FRONT FACE = 50.2%
OPENINGS @ FRONT FACE = 13.9%

METAL PANEL @ FRONT FACE = 48.3%
BRICK @ FRONT FACE = 38.1%
OPENINGS @ FRONT FACE = 13.6%

-304-

Item
 H

.2.ab. 



COLLEGE HILL
ELEVATIONS 

-10'-0"
-1 BASEMENT

±0"
1 LEVEL 1

+13'-4"
2 LEVEL 2

+24'-8"
3 LEVEL 3

+36'-0"
4 LEVEL 4

+47'-4"
5 LEVEL 5

+58'-8"
6 ROOF

+63'-8"
7 T/PARAPET

ABCC

-10'-0"
-1 BASEMENT

±0"
1 LEVEL 1

+13'-4"
2 LEVEL 2

+24'-8"
3 LEVEL 3

+36'-0"
4 LEVEL 4

+47'-4"
5 LEVEL 5

+58'-8"
6 ROOF

+63'-8"
7 T/PARAPET

CA B

-10'-0"
-1 BASEMENT

±0"
1 LEVEL 1

+13'-4"
2 LEVEL 2

+24'-8"
3 LEVEL 3

+36'-0"
4 LEVEL 4

+47'-4"
5 LEVEL 5

+58'-8"
6 ROOF

+63'-8"
7 T/PARAPET

A BC C

-10'-0"
-1 BASEMENT

±0"
1 LEVEL 1

+13'-4"
2 LEVEL 2

+24'-8"
3 LEVEL 3

+36'-0"
4 LEVEL 4

+47'-4"
5 LEVEL 5

+58'-8"
6 ROOF

+63'-8"
7 T/PARAPET

AB

6

2

5

1

1

43

(4) NORTH ELEVATION - SOUTH BAR

(1) EAST ELEVATION

(3) WEST ELEVATION

(2) SOUTH ELEVATION - SOUTH BAR

KEY PLAN

(A) METAL PANEL (B) METAL PANEL BRICKMETAL PANEL(C) METAL PANEL PERFORATED METAL SCREEN

COLLEGE BRICK: 71%

22ND STREET BRICK: 43%

METAL PANEL @ FRONT FACE = 54.6%
BRICK @ FRONT FACE = 31.5%
OPENINGS @ FRONT FACE = 13.9%

METAL PANEL @ FRONT FACE = 27.5%
BRICK @ FRONT FACE = 36.7%
OPENINGS @ FRONT FACE = 17.5%
CONCRETE @ FRONT FACE = 18.3%

METAL PANEL @ FRONT FACE = 75.3%
BRICK @ FRONT FACE = 13.6%
OPENINGS @ FRONT FACE = 11.1%

METAL PANEL @ FRONT FACE = 23.9%
BRICK @ FRONT FACE = 54.5%
OPENINGS @ FRONT FACE = 21.6%

-305-

Item
 H

.2.ab. 



 



-307-

Item
 H

.2.ab. 



-308-

Item
 H

.2.ab. 



-309-

Item
 H

.2.ab. 



-310-

Item
 H

.2.ab. 



-311-

Item
 H

.2.ab. 



 



-313-

Item
 H

.2.ab. 



 



-315-

Item
 H

.2.ab. 



 



-317-

Item
 H

.2.ab. 



 



 

2018.01.12 

Shane Graham 
City of Cedar Falls  
Planning and Community Services 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

RE: College Hill Project - Exterior Building Lighting  

Shane: 

In follow up to the staff comments on the project, we also wanted to provide a narrative for the exterior lighting 
design of the project.  Two primary strategies will be implemented and are described below. 

First, the faces of the building that front the public streets to the south and east will be washed with vertical, narrow 
beam sconces.  The intent is to light up these active faces of they building to add to the character and safety of the 
neighborhood.  By washing the surfaces of the building, the masonry materiality of the building will be highlighted 
without producing light spill on to other properties. 

For the parking areas, the goal will be to provide safety without producing unnecessary light spilling on to other 
properties or shining into any residential windows of neighboring properties.  The linear fixture will be oriented behind 
beams and soffits so that the light source is concealed while lighting the parking area to an average of approximately 
10 foot candles.  All site lighting of the parking lot will meet minimum requirements and limit the light levels at the 
property line to a maximum of 1 foot candle. 

Cut sheets for each lighting type described above are attached for reference. 

Please let us know if you have any questions on the items above. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

Dan Drendel, AIA 
Slingshot Architecture 

S L I N G S H O T A R C H I T E C T U R E . C O M 
305  EAST COURT AVE, DES MOINES, IA 50309  
T  515-243-0074  

                of  1 1

-319-

Item H.2.ab. 



WET N _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

DIRECT SHIELDING INDIRECT SHIELDING CRI, CCT & OUTPUT LENGTH1

WET - Satine Wet Lens
Shielding pg. 2

N - None 
Shielding pg. 2

_27_ _ - 2700K 
_30_ _ - 3000K 
_35_ _ - 3500K  
_40_ _ - 4000K 
CL_ _ _ _ _ _ - Custom Lumens 
CW_ _ _ _ _ _ - Custom Watts 
Lumen Output pg. 2

_ _ - Individual Fixture
Length pg. 2

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

CIRCUITING BATTERY & EMERGENCY4 FINISH FIXTURE OPTIONS CONTROLS

1 - Single Circuit 
M - Multi Circuit
E -  Emergency (entire fixture)
N -  Night Light (entire fixture)
Circuiting pg. 4

0 - None
_P - Philips Bodine 10W
_I - Iota 10W Integral
_IC - Iota 10W Integral (CEC Listed)
_E - Emergency Section
_N - Night Light Section
_L - Life Safety Section
_G - Philips Bodine GTD
Battery and Emergency pg. 4

W - White 
S - Metallic Silver
BL - Textured Black
BR - Bronze
GR - Graphite
CC - Custom Color
Finish pg. 4

GLR - Internal Fast Blow Fuse
EPF - End Power Feed
CC-C - Custom Color Canopy
CC-P - Custom Color Pendant
Fixture Options pg. 5

Pinnacle is able to accommodate 
different control solutions from different 
manufacturers. Consult Factory for more 
information.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

POSITION2 MOUNTING3 VOLTAGE DRIVER

IND - Individual Fixture
BOR - Beginning of Row
MOR - Middle of Row
EOR - End of Row
Position pg. 3

PP_ _JB - Pendant to J Box 
PP_ _ST - Pendant to Structure
WA - Wall Mount 
S - Surface Mount 
Mounting pg. 3

U -  Universal (120 thru 277V)
1 - 120V 
2 - 277V 
3 - 347V
Voltage pg. 3

OL1 - Osram (10%, 0-10v, standard) 
OL2 - Osram (1%, 0-10v)
OL3 - Osram 347v (10%, 0-10v)
EE1 - eldoLED ECOdrive (1%,  0-10v)
EE3 - eldoLED ECOdrive (1%, DALI)
PL2 - Philips Xitanium (1%, 0-10v)
PS1 - Philips Xitanium (50%/100%)
LH1- Lutron Hi-lume (1%, EcoSystem) 
LH3 - Lutron Hi-lume (1%, 3-wire)
L51 - Lutron 5-Series (5%, EcoSystem)
ND - Non-Dimming
Driver pg. 3

Specifications and dimensions subject to change without notice. Specification sheets that appear on pinnacle-ltg.com are the most recent version and supersede all other previously printed or electronic versions.

Project Name

Date Type

EX3_WET_LED_SPEC_AUGUST2017Designed and Fabricated in Denver, CO • USA | pinnacle-ltg.com | O: 303-322-5570

Example Part #: EX3-WET-N-830HO-8’-IND-AC48G1-U-OL1-1-0-W

EX3 - WET - N - - - - - - - - -
DIRECT 
SHIELDING

INDIRECT 
SHIELDING

CRI, CCT & 
OUTPUT

LENGTH MOUNTING VOLTAGE DRIVER CIRCUITING BATTERY & 
EMERGENCY

FINISH FIXTURE 
OPTIONS

EDGE EX3WET
3” Suspended Direct Linear WET

• Approved for wet location unless otherwise noted. IP65 and IK10 rated
• 6063-T5 Extruded aluminum housing
• Highly reflective die-formed white painted reflector
• All-inclusive module houses all LED system components in one compact unit
• Unit easily releases from the housing for room-side maintenance
• Wiring access available through bottom of housing
• 5-year limited warranty covers LED, driver and fixture
• UL and cUL listed
• Buy American Act compliant

Key Features

LED Product Partner

1 Individual fixtures come in nominal 2’, 3’, 4’, 5’, 6’, 7’, & 8’ lengths, see pg. 2 for actual lengths. 2 Specify position of fixture. Use IND for an individual fixture, use BOR, MOR, or EOR for building connected rows.  
3Specify pendant length of either 12”, 18” or 24”. 4 Enter quantity for Battery and Emergency, Example 2P. 

Example: 830HO is 8 = 80 CRI; 30 = 3000K; 
HO = High Output; Blank = Standard Output

EDGE 3 
EX3WET

5/16”
(8mm)

4-11/16”
(119mm)

3-11/16”
(94mm)

-320-

Item H.2.ab. 



2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Individual Fixture Individual Fixture Individual Fixture Individual Fixture Individual Fixture Individual Fixture Individual Fixture

27-1/8” (689mm)
39” (991mm)

50-3/4” (1289mm)
62-5/8” (1591mm)

74-5/8” (1895mm)
86-1/2” (2197mm)

98-3/8” (2499mm)

EDGE EX3

Specifications and dimensions subject to change without notice. Specification sheets that appear on pinnacle-ltg.com are the most recent version and supersede all other previously printed or electronic versions.

EX3_WET_LED_SPEC_AUGUST2017

• Specify either 80 or 90 CRI
• Longer lead-time may apply for 90 CRI. Consult factory

• 80 CRI = R9≥19 and 90 CRI = R9≥61

Designed and Fabricated in Denver, CO • USA | pinnacle-ltg.com | O: 303-322-5570 F: 303-322-5568

Suspended Linear WET 

Output

Length

WET
Satine Wet Lens

N
None

Direct Shielding Indirect Shielding
EDGE 3 
EX3WET

Custom Output- Lumens OR Wattage
CL_ _ _ _ _ Specify CRI, CCT and desired lumens (i.e. CL835500) Specify lumens between standard offering listed below. Lumens are specified per color temp

CW_ _ _ _ _ Specify CRI, CCT and desired wattage (i.e. CW9407) Specify watts between standard offering listed below

80 CRI
Color Output Watts Shielding

per foot WET
Satine Wet
Lumens/ft LPW

830 3000K Standard 4.7 319 67.9
830HO 3000K High 8.7 593 68.6
835 3500K Standard 4.7 328 69.8
835HO 3500K High 8.7 610 70.5
840 4000K Standard 4.7 335 71.3
840HO 4000K High 8.7 622 71.9

90 CRI
927 2700K Standard 4.7 252 53.6
927HO 2700K High 8.7 469 54.2
930 3000K Standard 4.7 294 62.6
930HO 3000K High 8.7 547 63.2
935 3500K Standard 4.7 295 62.8
935HO 3500K High 8.7 549 63.5
940 4000K Standard 4.7 299 63.6
940HO 4000K High 8.7 555 64.2

pg. 2-321-

Item H.2.ab. 



IND BOR MOR EOR
Individual Fixture Beginning of Row Middle of Row End of Row

• When making rows with EDGE Wet, the rows must be ordered as individual units with a position specified
• Positions can either be “BOR” - Beginning of Row, “MOR” - Middle of Row, or “EOR” - End of Row
• The connection between fixtures is less than 1/8” 
• For single, non-connected units, specify as “IND” for individual

Position

EDGE EX3

Specifications and dimensions subject to change without notice. Specification sheets that appear on pinnacle-ltg.com are the most recent version and supersede all other previously printed or electronic versions.

EX3_WET_LED_SPEC_AUGUST2017

PP_ _JB Pendant Pipe to J-Box
PP_ _ST Pendant Pipe to Structure
WA Wall Mount
S Surface

• 1/2” diameter rigid stem pendant and wall mount available
• Specify overall pendant length of 12”, 18” or 24”
• Specify pendant length in ordering code (PP12JB)
• Utilize Surface Mount for in-wall application. Building surface waterproofing by others
• End trims and power cord attached at factory
• Canopies and pendants are painted white unless otherwise specified
• Canopy and pendant color specified on Fixture Options page
• Approved for wet location unless otherwise noted
• Refer to installation instructions during installation at the jobsite

1-1/8”

PP - Pendant Pipe

S - Surface

WA - Wall

pg. 3
Designed and Fabricated in Denver, CO • USA | pinnacle-ltg.com | O: 303-322-5570 F: 303-322-5568

Suspended Linear WET 

Mounting

• Some EDGE Wet configurations will not accommodate all voltage options; 
consult with factory

• Standard Driver Option = OL1 
• Driver Lifetime: 50,000 hours at 25°C ambient operating conditions
• For more driver options see Pinnacle Resource Guide 
• Some EDGE Wet configurations will not accommodate all driver options; 

consult with factoryU Universal
1 120 volt
2 277 volt
3 347 volt

Voltage Driver

OL1 Osram Optronic 10%, 0-10v
OL2 Osram Optronic 1%, 0-10v, nominal 1% dimming range
OL3 Osram Optronic 347v 10%, 0-10v, requires 347v option
EE1 eldoLED ECOdrive 1%,  0-10v Logarithmic
EE3 eldoLED ECOdrive 1%, DALI Logarithmic
PL2 Philips Advance Xitanium 1%, 0-10v
PS1 Philips Advance Xitanium Step Dimming 50%/100%
LH1 Lutron Hi-lume Soft-on, Fade-to-black 1%, EcoSystem, LDE1
LH3 Lutron Hi-lume 1%, 3-wire, Lutron-L3DA3W
L51 Lutron 5-Series 5%, EcoSystem, LDE5
ND Non-Dimming

-322-

Item H.2.ab. 



EDGE EX3

Specifications and dimensions subject to change without notice. Specification sheets that appear on pinnacle-ltg.com are the most recent version and supersede all other previously printed or electronic versions.

EX3_WET_LED_SPEC_AUGUST2017

How to specify Circuiting, Battery and Emergency

• Select fixture circuiting from options below
• Some EDGE Wet configurations will not accommodate all circuiting options, consult with factory

1 Single Circuit
M Multi Circuit
E Emergency Circuit only
N Night Light Circuit only

Emergency

0 No battery
_P Philips Bodine 10w Integral
_I Iota 10w Integral
_IC Iota 10w Integral CEC Listed

_E Emergency circuit section
_N Night Light circuit section
_L Life Safety circuit section NO THROUGH WIRE
_G Philips Bodine GTD, Generator Transfer Device section

For Approximate Battery Lumen Output
•  Multiply battery wattage X fixture LPW shown on Lumen Table
•  92.3 (LPW)  x 10 (watts) = 923 battery lumen output

Battery OR Emergency Ordering Examples
• Single circuit, 10w Integral Battery      Ordering Code:   1-1P
• Emergency only, 10w Integral Battery      Ordering Code:   E-1P
• Single circuit, GTD required       Ordering Code:   1-1G

Combination Section Ordering Examples
• Single circuit, (1) 10w battery, (1) emergency section Ordering Code:   1-1P1E
• Multi circuit, (2) 10w battery, (2) emergency sections    Ordering Code:   M-2P2E
• Single circuit, (1) night light section                       Ordering Code:   1-1N

• Select battery section type if required, indicate total QTY. Example 2P
• 90 minute battery runtime; test button is integral to fixture
• No battery option available for 2’ lengths  
• Entire direct fixture housing is on battery for lengths up to 5’  
• Half of direct fixture is on battery for 6’, 7’ or 8’ housing lengths  
• For more battery options available, see Pinnacle Resource Guide  

• Select emergency section type if required, indicate total QTY. Example 1E
• Combine battery and emergency section ordering codes if both options 
• are selected

Battery and/or Emergency If Required

Circuiting

+2

1

3 • Battery and emergency section options are available in addition to fixture circuit
• Select battery and emergency section options below; factory shop drawing required
• Some EDGE Wet configurations will not accommodate all circuiting options, consult with factory

0 No battery or specific emergency section required

Battery

Finish
• Standard powder-coat textured white, metallic silver, textured black, graphite or bronze painted finish; consult factory for chip of standard paint finishes
• Selecting a fixture finish other than white may impact lumen output; consult factory for more information

W White
S Metallic Silver
BL Textured Black
GR Graphite
BR Bronze
CC Custom Color

pg. 4
Designed and Fabricated in Denver, CO • USA | pinnacle-ltg.com | O: 303-322-5570 F: 303-322-5568

Suspended Linear WET 

-323-

Item H.2.ab. 



EDGE EX3

Specifications and dimensions subject to change without notice. Specification sheets that appear on pinnacle-ltg.com are the most recent version and supersede all other previously printed or electronic versions.

EX3_WET_LED_SPEC_AUGUST2017

562

422

281

141

Satine Wet Lens
Test # ITL86499
Catalog # EX3-WET-N-840-4
Lumens 1338 lm
Watts 18.8 W
Efficacy 71 LPW

Candela Distribution Luminance Data (cd/sq.m)
Vert 
Angle

Horizontal Angle Angle In 
Degrees

Average 
0-Deg

Average 
45-Deg

Average 
90-Deg

 0 22.5 45 67.5 90 45 3516 3122 2855
0 562 562 562 562 562 55 3086 2690 2436
5 559 558 558 557 557 65 2635 2277 2074
10 547 545 544 541 540 75 2131 1863 1780
15 529 525 522 518 514 85 1625 1615 1669
20 504 495 491 484 479
25 471 461 453 444 438
30 432 423 414 401 395
35 391 382 371 357 351
40 347 339 327 313 307
45 303 296 284 271 265
50 259 254 243 231 225
55 216 212 204 194 190
60 175 173 166 159 156
65 137 137 132 127 125
70 101 103 101 98 97
75 68 72 72 72 73
80 41 45 49 51 52
85 18 24 30 34 35
90 2 8 15 19 21

Construction 6063-T5 extruded aluminum housing with welded ends. Internal lens 
gaskets seal housing to prevent moisture and debris from entering the fixture. Pressure 
equalizing vent allows fixture to “breathe” preventing condensation.

Shielding Solid acrylic diffuse snap-in lens with matte finish with an EPDM gasketed for 
complete wet seal.

Mounting Fixtures can be installed individually or connected for a continuous run 
appearance. IND fixtures are individual fixtures and have no joining holes. IND fixtures 
cannot be joined. BOR fixtures are used for beginning of row and have joining holes 
on non-power end of fixture. MOR fixtures are used for middle of row and have joining 
holes on both ends of fixture. EOR fixtures are used for the end of a row and have no 
joining holes on power end of fixture. Consult factory for detailed installation instruc-
tions. 

LED 25°C test environment. Lumen output/wattage has a margin of +/- 5%. All lumi-
naire configurations tested in accordance with IES LM-79. Diodes tested in accordance 
with IES LM-80. Minimum lifetime greater than 60,000 hours. Lifetime Projection L70 = 
136,200 hours and L90 = 41,100 hours. MacAdam 3-Step Ellipses. Not all products are 
Lighting Facts listed. For all available IES files, please visit our website at pinnacle-ltg.com.

CRI, CCT & Lumen Output Two lumen packages available. Standard and High (HO). 
Custom outputs are available. Specify custom lumens or watts between standard offer-
ing listed on CRI, CCT & Output page. 80 CRI is available for 3000K, 3500K, and 4000K. 
90 CRI is available for 2700K, 3000K, 3500K, and 4000K. 80 CRI = R9≥19 and 90 CRI = 
R9≥61.

Voltage Universal (U), 120 volt (1), 277 volt (2) and 347 volt (3) options available. Must 
specify OL3 in Driver section when 347 volt (3) is selected. Some EDGE Wet configura-
tions will not accommodate all voltage options; consult with factory.

Driver Standard Driver Option is Osram 0-10V, 10% = OL1. Electronic driver, Pow-
er factor is >0.9 with a THD <20%. Driver Lifetime: 50,000 hours at 25°C ambient 
operating conditions. Ambient operating range: -20°F/-30°C to 122°F/55°C. For more 
driver options, see Pinnacle Resource Guide. Some EDGE Wet configurations will not 
accommodate all driver options.

Circuiting Select from single circuit (1), Multi circuit - For multiple circuiting and zone 
control, requires factory shop drawing (M), Emergency circuit (E) or Night Light circuit 
(N). For emergency circuiting situations that require no through wire or circuit sepa-
ration, Life Safety Circuit should be selected. This will provide a separate power feed 
and only the Life Safety Circuit in that section. Some EDGE Wet configurations will not 
accommodate all circuiting options; consult with factory. 

Battery & Emergency Select battery or emergency options if required. If battery or 
emergency option is not required, enter 0. Battery duration is 90 minutes as standard. 
Test button is integral to fixture. For more Battery options, see Pinnacle Resource Guide.

Finish Standard powder-coat textured white, metallic silver, textured black, graphite or 
bronze painted finish; consult factory for chip of standard paint finishes or for additional 
custom color and finish options.

Controls Consult Factory

Labels UL and cUL Listed, approved for wet location unless otherwise noted. IP65 and 
IK10 rated.
Buy American Act Compliant

Warranty EDGE Wet LED offered with a 5-year limited warranty. Covers LED, driver and 
fixture.

Fixture Options

Controls

GLR Internal Fast Blow Fuse
EPF End Power Feed
CC-C Custom Color Canopy
CC-P Custom Color Pendant

pg. 5

• Specify CC-C or CC-P  to match housing. If not specified, canopy will be standard matte white.

• Pinnacle is able to accommodate different control solutions from different manufacturers. Consult Factory for more information.

Designed and Fabricated in Denver, CO • USA | pinnacle-ltg.com | O: 303-322-5570 F: 303-322-5568

Suspended Linear WET 

Photometrics

Applications & Certificates

-324-

Item H.2.ab. 



Fixture Type:

Catalog Number:

Project:

Location:

WAC Lighting retains the right to modify the design of our products at any time as part of the company's continuous improvement program.   JUL 2016

waclighting.com
Phone (800) 526.2588
Fax       (800) 526.2585

Headquarters/Eastern Distribution Center
44 Harbor Park Drive 
Port Washington, NY 11050

Central Distribution Center
1600 Distribution Ct
Lithia Springs, GA 30122

Western Distribution Center 
1750 Archibald Avenue 
Ontario, CA 91760

TUBE ARCHITECTURAL   DS-WS05-U
Ultra Narrow Beam LED Wall Mounts

PRODUCT DESCRIPTION

Precise engineering using the latest energy e�  cient LED technology with a built-
in ultra narrow beam precision optics. An appealing cylinderical pro� le perfect 
for accent lighting.

FEATURES

• High performance facade LED wall mount light
• Can be mounted upwards or downwards
• Solid aluminum construction
• 80,000 hour rated life
• 5 year warranty

PHOTOMETRY

Reads 0.2 footcandle at 15 feet distance

SPECIFICATIONS

Input: 
Dimming:

Standards:
Operating Temp:

120V - 277VAC 50/60Hz
0 - 10V Dimming: 100% - 20%
ELV 100% - 10% (120V only)
IP65 rated, ETL & cETL wet location listed
-40°C to 40°C

DS-WS05-U____B-___

Example: DS-WS05-U30B-WT

ORDERING NUMBER 

Distribution Diameter Watt Beam Color Temp CRI Lumens CBCP Light Direction Finish

Single  DS-WS 05 5” 11W U 6°

27
30
35
40

2700K
3000K
3500K
4000K

85
85
85
85

125
145
150
155

1182
1363
1411
1462

B Towards the wall
     

BK
WT
BZ
GH

Black
White
Bronze
Graphite

4d”

78” 5"

2d"

-325-

Item H.2.ab. 



Fixture Type:

Catalog Number:

Project:

Location:

WAC Lighting retains the right to modify the design of our products at any time as part of the company's continuous improvement program.   JUL 2016

waclighting.com
Phone (800) 526.2588
Fax       (800) 526.2585

Headquarters/Eastern Distribution Center
44 Harbor Park Drive 
Port Washington, NY 11050

Central Distribution Center
1600 Distribution Ct
Lithia Springs, GA 30122

Western Distribution Center 
1750 Archibald Avenue 
Ontario, CA 91760

TUBE ARCHITECTURAL   DS-WD05-U
Ultra Narrow Beam LED Wall Mounts

PRODUCT DESCRIPTION

Precise engineering using the latest energy e�  cient LED technology with a built-
in ultra narrow beam precision optics. An appealing cylinderical pro� le perfect 
for accent lighting.

DS-WD05-U____B-___

Example: DS-WD05-U30B-WT

ORDERING NUMBER 

Distribution Diameter Watt Beam Color Temp CRI Lumens CBCP Light Direction Finish

Double DS-WD 05 5” 22W U 6°

27
30
35
40

2700K
3000K
3500K
4000K

85
85
85
85

125 x2
145 x2
150 x2
155 x2

1182 x2
1363 x2
1411 x2
1462 x2

B Towards the wall

BK
WT
BZ
GH

Black
White
Bronze
Graphite

4d”

122” 5"

2d"

FEATURES

• High performance facade LED wall mount light
• Can be mounted upwards or downwards
• Solid aluminum construction
• 80,000 hour rated life
• 5 year warranty

SPECIFICATIONS

Input: 
Dimming:

Standards:
Operating Temp:

120V - 277VAC 50/60Hz
0 - 10V Dimming: 100% - 20%
ELV 100% - 10% (120V only)
IP65 rated, ETL & cETL wet location listed
-40°C to 40°C

PHOTOMETRY

Reads 0.2 footcandle at 15 feet distance

-326-

Item H.2.ab. 



Fixture Type:

Catalog Number:

Project:

Location:

WAC Lighting retains the right to modify the design of our products at any time as part of the company's continuous improvement program.   JUL 2016

waclighting.com
Phone (800) 526.2588
Fax       (800) 526.2585

Headquarters/Eastern Distribution Center
44 Harbor Park Drive 
Port Washington, NY 11050

Central Distribution Center
1600 Distribution Ct
Lithia Springs, GA 30122

Western Distribution Center 
1750 Archibald Avenue 
Ontario, CA 91760

TUBE ARCHITECTURAL   DS-WS06-U
Ultra Narrow Beam LED Wall Mounts

PRODUCT DESCRIPTION

Precise engineering using the latest energy e�  cient LED technology with a built-
in ultra narrow beam precision optics. An appealing cylinderical pro� le perfect 
for accent lighting.

DS-WS06-U____B-___

Example: DS-WS06-U30B-WT

ORDERING NUMBER 

Distribution Diameter Watt Beam Color Temp CRI Lumens CBCP Light Direction Finish

Single  DS-WS 06 6” 11W U 6°

27
30
35
40

2700K
3000K
3500K
4000K

85
85
85
85

110
130
130
135

1239
1428
1478
1532

B Towards the wall
     

BK
WT
BZ
GH

Black
White
Bronze
Graphite

64"

92”
5"

2d"

FEATURES

• High performance facade LED wall mount light
• Can be mounted upwards or downwards
• Solid aluminum construction
• 80,000 hour rated life
• 5 year warranty

PHOTOMETRY

Reads 0.2 footcandle at 15 feet distance

SPECIFICATIONS

Input: 
Dimming:

Standards:
Operating Temp:

120V - 277VAC 50/60Hz
0 - 10V Dimming: 100% - 20%
ELV 100% - 10% (120V only)
IP65 rated, ETL & cETL wet location listed
-40°C to 40°C

-327-

Item H.2.ab. 



Fixture Type:

Catalog Number:

Project:

Location:

WAC Lighting retains the right to modify the design of our products at any time as part of the company's continuous improvement program.   JUL 2016

waclighting.com
Phone (800) 526.2588
Fax       (800) 526.2585

Headquarters/Eastern Distribution Center
44 Harbor Park Drive 
Port Washington, NY 11050

Central Distribution Center
1600 Distribution Ct
Lithia Springs, GA 30122

Western Distribution Center 
1750 Archibald Avenue 
Ontario, CA 91760

TUBE ARCHITECTURAL   DS-WD06-U
Ultra Narrow Beam LED Wall Mounts

PRODUCT DESCRIPTION

Precise engineering using the latest energy e�  cient LED technology with a built-
in ultra narrow beam precision optics. An appealing cylinderical pro� le perfect 
for accent lighting.

DS-WD06-U____B-___

Example: DS-WD06-U30B-WT

ORDERING NUMBER 

Distribution Diameter Watt Beam Color Temp CRI Lumens CBCP Light Direction Finish

Double DS-WD 06 6” 22W U 6°

27
30
35
40

2700K
3000K
3500K
4000K

85
85
85
85

110 x2
130 x2
130 x2
135 x2

1239 x2
1428 x2
1478 x2
1532 x2

B Towards the wall

BK
WT
BZ
GH

Black
White
Bronze
Graphite

64"

17w” 5"

2d"

FEATURES

• High performance facade LED wall mount light
• Can be mounted upwards or downwards
• Solid aluminum construction
• 80,000 hour rated life
• 5 year warranty

PHOTOMETRY

Reads 0.2 footcandle at 15 feet distance

SPECIFICATIONS

Input: 
Dimming:

Standards:
Operating Temp:

120V - 277VAC 50/60Hz
0 - 10V Dimming: 100% - 20%
ELV 100% - 10% (120V only)
IP65 rated, ETL & cETL wet location listed
-40°C to 40°C

-328-

Item H.2.ab. 



COLLEGE HILL
ENLARGED PLAN 

DRIVEWAY TO STREET

OVERHEAD DOOR TO PARKING

VENT LOUVERS

4 CU YD
DUMPSTER

8' W. OVERHEAD
DOOR

42" MAN DOOR

MASONRY
ENCLOSURE BELOW
BUILDING

4 CU YD
DUMPSTER

TRASH ROOM

-329-

Item
 H

.2.ab. 



 



 

 

 

 

January 24, 2018 

 

 

Planning & Zoning Commission 

City Council and Staff 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

 

 

Dear Planning & Zoning Commission, City Council and Staff, 

 

In February 2011, the Cedar Falls City Council approved a resolution to adopt the College Hill 

Urban Renewal Plan. This plan mentioned the blight and deterioration of the College Hill area 

several times, as well as the need to rehabilitate the area. 

 

Shortly thereafter, the College Hill Partnership conducted a study of what the residents and 

students would like to see in the area. A coffee shop and farmers market were the two most 

popular selections. Two years later, the partnership pushed forward with a farmers market, and 

we started construction at 2215 College Street on the former Stebs site. This building includes a 

coffee shop along with a yoga studio and new residential units. 

 

Since then we completed projects at 2019 Olive Street, 2024 College Street (Domino’s), and 917 

23rd Street. We are proud to have made a significant and positive impact in the College Hill 

area. We are also very excited about the current project and the possibility of continuing the 

vision adopted in the urban renewal plan seven years ago. 

 

Parking is a common issue with new developments, including our proposed project. To gain 

insight on this issue, I believe we should study the effects of parking regulations in other urban 

areas. Cities such as Des Moines, Ames, Iowa City, and Champaign, IL all have areas of town 

with less restrictive parking requirements than Cedar Falls. I look at those cities as models of 

what our neighborhoods and buildings could look like. Champaign has published an informative 

report regarding the effects of eliminating parking requirements. I urge the staff, Planning and 

Zoning Commission, and City Council to read this report and to look at those other cities before 

we decide we want to be unlike all of them regarding our own code. Neighborhoods with front, 

side, and rear parking are not the urban areas that people love. I look at the vastness of the 

College Square parking lot and am reminded that parking does not always equate to success and 

vibrancy of a neighborhood. 

 

Over the past two years, I have watched on the sidelines as many people in our city debated and 

then implemented the new rental code. The vision and purpose of the new code was that we were 

striving to maintain the integrity of our single-family neighborhoods and encourage development 

-331-

Item H.2.ab. 



of higher density buildings in our urban centers. I hope you find this proposed project to be an 

example of how that vision could become a reality. 

 

Our town competes daily against other cities in Iowa and beyond to recruit businesses, families, 

college students, and retirees and to keep the wonderful talent that was born here. We have great 

schools, a safe town, and passionate residents, which make us all proud to call Cedar Falls our 

home. Let us continue to push forward and strive to reach higher heights. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

Brent Dahlstrom 

President 

Echo Development Group 

-332-

Item H.2.ab. 



 

 

 

       

Rent Cedar Valley 
604 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

319-768-7150 

January 11th, 2017 

City of Cedar Falls 

Planning & Zoning Commission 

220 Clay Street  

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

 

 

Planning & Zoning Commission, 

I am the Vice President and Chief of Operations at Rent Cedar Valley.  Rent Cedar Valley 

manages all leasing management and maintenance activities for CV Commercial LLC at 

the property known as Urban Flats located 917 W 23rd St in Cedar Falls. 

Under direct instruction from owners of CV Commercial, Rent Cedar Valley has required 

each tenant of 917 W 23rd St to purchase a UNI parking permit dating back to pre-leasing 

activity in early 2017.  Tenants have also signed an addendum to our standard lease 

agreeing to purchase a UNI parking permit.  I have attached this addendum for your 

reference.  All tenants with vehicles are required to provide proof of permit when keys are 

obtained prior to moving into the property.   

Off campus students are eligible for B-Lot, C-Lot or R-Lot parking passes.  B-Lot parking 

is permitted from 7AM to 1AM.  C-Lot and R-Lot parking is permitted 24 hours a day.  B-

Lot permits also allow users to park in C-Lot and R-Lots. 

This parking agreement will remain in effect at 917 W 23rd St in accordance with CV 

Commercial on all current and future leases.   

 

Sincerely, 

 
Chris Olsen | Vice President  

D.K. Management LLC & Rent Cedar Valley 
604 Clay St.  | Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
Ph: 319-296-6264  
 

-333-

Item H.2.ab. 



DK Management, LLC
PO Box 128 • Cedar Falls, IA 50613
(319) 768-7150

1. Parking Agreement

1.1 PARKING AGREEMENT

All Urban Flats Tenants will be required to purchase a parking permit issued by the University of Northern Iowa. This can be either a "B" or
an "R" permit and must be purchased before tenants move in to the property. CV Commercial will reimburse tenants, in the form of a Rent
Credit, for the UNI Parking Permit with proper receipt from the University.

Initial Here
X

1-334-

Item H.2.ab. 



 

 

 

       

Rent Cedar Valley 
604 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

319-768-7150 

January 23rd, 2017 

City of Cedar Falls 

Planning & Zoning Commission 

220 Clay Street  

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

 

 

Planning & Zoning Commission, 

I would like to clarify one statement in my previous letter regarding parking permits for 

residents of 917 W 23rd St in Cedar Falls.  Off Campus students are eligible for B-Lot or R-

Lot parking passes.  I previously incorrectly stated that off campus students are also 

eligible for C-Lot parking passes.   

Residents of 917 W 23rd St are purchasing B-Lot passes.  This gives them access to B, C 

and R lots (University of Northern Iowa Parking Regulations Section 6.2) 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Chris Olsen | Vice President  

D.K. Management LLC & Rent Cedar Valley 
604 Clay St.  | Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
Ph: 319-296-6264  
 

-335-

Item H.2.ab. 



 

 

 

       

Rent Cedar Valley 
604 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

319-768-7150 

January 11th, 2017 

City of Cedar Falls 

Planning & Zoning Commission 

220 Clay Street  

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

 

 

Planning & Zoning Commission, 

I am the Vice President and Chief of Operations at Rent Cedar Valley.  Rent Cedar Valley 

manages all leasing management and maintenance activities for CV Commercial LLC at 

the property known as Urban Flats located 917 W 23rd St in Cedar Falls. 

Under direct instruction from owners of CV Commercial, Rent Cedar Valley has required 

each tenant of 917 W 23rd St to purchase a UNI parking permit dating back to pre-leasing 

activity in early 2017.  Tenants have also signed an addendum to our standard lease 

agreeing to purchase a UNI parking permit.  I have attached this addendum for your 

reference.  All tenants with vehicles are required to provide proof of permit when keys are 

obtained prior to moving into the property.   

Off campus students are eligible for B-Lot, C-Lot or R-Lot parking passes.  B-Lot parking 

is permitted from 7AM to 1AM.  C-Lot and R-Lot parking is permitted 24 hours a day.  B-

Lot permits also allow users to park in C-Lot and R-Lots. 

This parking agreement will remain in effect at 917 W 23rd St in accordance with CV 

Commercial on all current and future leases.   

 

Sincerely, 

 
Chris Olsen | Vice President  

D.K. Management LLC & Rent Cedar Valley 
604 Clay St.  | Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
Ph: 319-296-6264  
 

-336-

Item H.2.ab. 



 
REPORT TO PLAN COMMISSION 

 

FROM: Bruce A. Knight, FAICP, Planning and Development Director 

 

DATE: October 27, 2017 

 

SUBJECT: UPDATE ON ELIMINATION OF RESIDENTIAL PARKING 

REQUIREMENT IN THE UNIVERSITY DISTRICT, MIDTOWN, AND 

DOWNTOWN — STUDY SESSION 

  

A.  Introduction:  In August 2015, the City of Champaign eliminated residential parking 

requirements throughout the University District, the high density residential neighborhood 

abutting the University of Illinois campus. In October 2016, residential parking requirements 

were eliminated in Midtown and Downtown as well upon the adoption of the new Central 

Business Zoning Districts. This report analyzes the provision of parking in private developments 

in the impacted areas since the elimination of residential parking requirements. 

 

B.  Recommended Action:  This Study Session is for information and discussion purposes. A 

presentation will be given at the November 1, 2017 meeting and the Commission can offer 

comments and suggestions at that time. 

 

C.  Background:  

 

1.  Projected Outcomes of Eliminating Residential Parking Requirements.  The 

recommendation to eliminate residential parking requirements in 2015 arose out of considerable 

research and local outreach. Research of parking requirement reductions in both Champaign and 

other municipalities revealed generally positive outcomes, while staff queried the local 

development and design communities about their anticipated behavior in the absence of parking 

requirements. Having conducted this study, staff projected four outcomes: 

 

• Nearly all developers would provide less parking than previously required, but few to 

none would provide no parking. 

• The design of buildings would generally improve. Specifically, buildings would be much 

more likely to come down to ground level in front, rather than being lifted entirely on 

stilts. 

• Housing would become more affordable as tenants would no longer need to cover the 

construction costs of unused parking spaces. 

• There would be a negligible impact on automobile congestion, as the existing parking 

supply is more than ample to accommodate any overflow parking demand. 

 

The projection that developers would provide less parking than previously required carried a 

high degree of confidence. An analysis of parking provided at University District developments 

-337-

Item H.2.ab. 



 2 

built after the year 2000 showed that nearly every building provided only as much parking as 

required. When every development is built to a minimum standard and no further, it is strong 

evidence that developers would build below that standard if allowed. This inference was backed 

up by developers and architects themselves, who uniformly reported that they would provide less 

parking than existing regulations required. When asked specifically how much less they would 

provide, developers indicated that the answer would vary from site to site. Buildings with zero 

parking were considered unlikely, but one developer mentioned that he could anticipate building 

a zero-parking building under two circumstances: a small, challenging site, or a site immediately 

adjacent to another building under the same management containing a surplus of parking. 

 

Developers and architects also attributed the proliferation of stilt buildings to parking 

requirements. Multiple architects agreed that the design of any project began with the parking 

lot, and that most subsequent design decisions were subservient to the provision of required 

parking. The July 2015 study session staff report projected: 

 

Eliminating parking requirements will not necessarily improve the design of every 

new building in the University Neighborhood.  However, doing so will open the 

design playbook for developers. In some cases, small amounts of parking may be 

tucked behind buildings or only under the rear half on properties where large 

amounts of required parking would be provided at ground level under the entire 

building. 

 

A third projected outcome anticipated better housing affordability due to lower parking 

construction costs. Parking is expensive to provide (underground parking costs exceed 

$15,000/space) and occupies space that could otherwise be rented out to residents as living 

space. One architect, testifying at Plan Commission in favor of the text amendment, projected 

that eliminating parking requirements would allow his client to capture the same profit at a 

proposed development even while lowering rents by 15% to 20%. The July 2015 study session 

staff report projected noted that: 

 

With the University District parking supply artificially inflated, landlords have 

trouble renting out parking spaces at a rate that covers costs. Discussions with a 

local developer revealed that the parking rent for a typical building in his 

company’s portfolio only covers approximately half of the combined construction 

and operational costs of providing parking. The other half of those costs are borne 

by all building tenants in the form of increased rent, whether they rent a parking 

space or not. This hidden cross-subsidy, where non-parkers cover a portion of the 

parking cost for their car-owning neighbors, continues to persist even as the market 

for University District living heats up. Multiple landlords have indicated that they 

have reduced the sticker price of parking rental to maintain occupancy rates, but 

any decrease in direct payment for parking must necessarily be offset by an 

increase in indirect payment for parking. 

 

Finally, staff projected that eliminating parking requirements would not create automobile 

congestion, as the existing parking supply contains significant vacancy and can moderate supply 

surges via price changes. At the time, landlords of University District apartment buildings 

reported that parking vacancy rates of 20%-40% were not uncommon. Additionally, despite 

recently reducing prices, the City’s supply of off- and on-street permit parking was sitting more 

-338-

Item H.2.ab. 



 3 

than 25% vacant. Staff further projected that, even if parking demand should surge sharply in the 

future, this demand could be balanced by an increase in rates for private and public long-term 

parking alike. 

 

During the text amendment adoption process, staff committed to provide periodic assessments of 

these projections to Plan Commission and City Council. 

 

2.  Observed Outcomes of Eliminating Residential Parking Requirements.  Any assessment 

of outcomes must be viewed as preliminary. Residential parking requirements were eliminated 

slightly over two years ago in the University District, and only a year ago downtown. 

Accordingly, the number of buildings proposed under this new regulatory framework is 

relatively low. The number that have finished construction and opened their doors is even 

smaller. Nevertheless, enough information now exists to offer an initial assessment of projections 

made in the past. Since August 2015, fifteen multifamily apartment buildings have been 

proposed, permitted, or constructed in the impacted areas. 

 

First, developers are building less parking than previously required. The now-eliminated 

standard required the provision of one parking space per two bedrooms (or half a space per 

bedroom). An analysis of the buildings developed after this ratio was eliminated reveals that 

developers have provided 2,287 new bedrooms and 614 new parking spaces. Some of these 

parking spaces are located at mixed-use buildings and are unavailable for resident use, reducing 

the number of new residential parking spaces to 562. The ratio of new residential parking spaces 

to new bedrooms is 0.25, half of what the Zoning Ordinance previously required. In other words, 

whereas developers building to code provided one parking space per two bedrooms prior to the 

text amendment, they are now providing one parking space per four bedrooms. 

 

Building-level data reveals some interesting information as well. Only one development (901 S. 

Fourth Street) provides zero parking. This site once contained the Illini Inn, a longstanding and 

popular campus bar that was nevertheless sliding into irreversible decline. The undersized and 

constrained property likely could not have been redeveloped in an economical fashion had it 

been subject to parking requirements. Instead, this site will host a revitalized Illini Inn, along 

with 49 new bedrooms.  The building is beginning construction at this time. 

 

The next lowest parking ratio belongs to 615 S. Wright Street, a mixed use building currently 

under construction on the site of the former Garber’s Cleaners. Located just northwest of the 

Alma Mater, few properties offer a shorter walk to campus. Ten bus lines pass within a block of 

the site, offering excellent access to transit. This building will offer 154 new bedrooms with only 

fifteen parking spaces, three of which will be reserved for commercial tenants. 

 

No buildings have provided parking at the rate formerly required. The building that comes 

closest, 217 S. Neil St., is located on the southern edge of downtown Champaign. This building 

is the farthest of all sampled buildings from the University of Illinois campus and is likely the 

least targeted towards undergraduate tenants. Accordingly, parking demand is likely higher here 

than in the University District. Even so, the building provides only 35 residential parking spaces 

for 84 bedrooms (0.42 spaces/bedroom). Originally designing the building with three stories, the 

architect reported that the elimination of parking requirements allowed his client to add another 

floor of dwelling units without changing any of the ground level site plan. 

 

-339-

Item H.2.ab. 



 4 

Architects have taken advantage of parking flexibility to improve the design quality of their 

projects. Of the fifteen buildings studied, only two have parking visible from the street. In both 

instances, this parking is intended to serve the ground level commercial tenants. Additional 

residential parking is not visible from the street. Apart from the curb cuts and garage doors on 

the front of buildings lacking alley access, residential parking is practically invisible from the 

front street at all projects. Compared to the stilt buildings of previous years, these buildings 

engage with the street and the neighborhood to a much higher degree. 

 

An excellent example of this phenomenon exists on Daniel Street. 307 E. Daniel Street (photo 

below, left) was constructed in 2014, shortly before the residential parking requirement was 

eliminated. It is six stories tall, although the first level is entirely dedicated to 20 parking spaces 

serving 40 bedrooms. Next door at 305 E. Daniel Street (photo below, right), a new building 

completed in 2017 took advantage of parking flexibility to provide 50 bedrooms and 11 parking 

spaces. Just like its neighbor, this building provides five stories of apartments (interior finishes 

are of similar quality). However, the building comes all the way down to the ground in front, 

with two units enjoying direct access from the street. Parking is provided on the ground level in 

the rear half of the building, with access taken via the alley. As the two buildings are built on 

identical lots and with similar bulk and massing, they reveal the impact that removing parking 

requirements can have on the built environment. 

 

-340-

Item H.2.ab. 



 5 

It is too early to discern the impact that eliminating parking requirements has had on housing 

affordability. Only a handful of the fifteen buildings studied are even occupied at present. 

However, the reduced parking ratios undoubtedly have reduced construction costs below what 

they would have been had the buildings provided one parking space per two bedrooms. The 

extent to which developers have passed these cost savings on to their tenants is unknown. 

 

Finally, the construction of buildings with less parking has not had an adverse impact on either 

public or private parking operations. As predicted, some tenants of these new buildings choose to 

park on-site, others choose to rent parking elsewhere, and still others do not have cars. One 

landlord noted that he is finally able to begin filling some of his excess parking supply at older 

buildings with residents of newer buildings who do not mind parking a block or two away. Of 

course, as with housing affordability, it is too early to discern the full impact of parking 

requirement elimination on the larger University District parking supply. 

 

In summary, of the four projected outcomes of eliminating residential parking requirements: 

• As predicted, all developers have provided less parking than previously required. Only 

one building provides no parking due to site constraints. 

• As predicted, the design of buildings has significantly improved, with all buildings 

coming down to the ground in front. 

• While developers have been able to lower their construction costs by providing less 

parking, it is too early to determine whether these cost savings have been passed on to 

tenants. 

• As predicted, there have been no adverse impacts on automobile congestion, as the 

existing parking supply appears to be accommodating any spillover parking. 

 

D.  Next steps:   Staff will deliver this memo, along with any Plan Commission comments, to 

City Council for their review. Additionally, staff will continue to monitor parking dynamics in 

areas lacking residential parking requirements. Staff will update this study in 2019 or 2020, once 

the number of newly constructed buildings has increased. 

 

 

Prepared by:                      Reviewed by:    

     

 

 

Ben LeRoy       Rob Kowalski 

Associate Planner       Planning and Development 

                                                                                         Assistant Director 

 

 

Attachment: Selected Project Profiles 

 

 

-341-

Item H.2.ab. 



SELECTED PROJECT PROFILES 
 

106 E. Armory Avenue 
Bedrooms: 44 
Parking Spaces: 9 
Parking Spaces per bedroom: 0.2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-342-

Item H.2.ab. 



SELECTED PROJECT PROFILES 
 

108 E. Daniel Street 
Bedrooms: 51 
Parking Spaces: 9 
Parking Spaces per bedroom: 0.18 
 

 

  

-343-

Item H.2.ab. 



SELECTED PROJECT PROFILES 
 

212 E. Green Street 
Bedrooms: 428 
Parking Spaces: 81 
Parking Spaces per bedroom: 0.19 

 
 
  

-344-

Item H.2.ab. 



SELECTED PROJECT PROFILES 
 

217 S. Neil St. 
Bedrooms: 84 
Parking Spaces: 35 
Parking Spaces per bedroom: 0.42 
 

 
 
  

-345-

Item H.2.ab. 



SELECTED PROJECT PROFILES 
 

305 E. Daniel Street 
Bedrooms: 50 
Parking Spaces: 11 
Parking Spaces per bedroom: 0.22 
 

 
  

-346-

Item H.2.ab. 



SELECTED PROJECT PROFILES 
 

707 S. Third Street 
Bedrooms: 251 
Parking Spaces: 47 
Parking Spaces per bedroom: 0.19 
 

 
 
  

-347-

Item H.2.ab. 



SELECTED PROJECT PROFILES 
 

908 S. First Street 
Bedrooms: 97 
Parking Spaces: 25 
Parking Spaces per bedroom: 0.26 
 

 
 
 
  

-348-

Item H.2.ab. 



SELECTED PROJECT PROFILES 
 

1008 S. Fourth Street 
Bedrooms: 158 
Parking Spaces: 32 
Parking Spaces per bedroom: 0.2 
 

 

-349-

Item H.2.ab. 



 



FaegreBD.com FftEGRE~R 
~IELS 

USA • UK • CHINA 

Larry James, Jr. 
Partner 
l.arry.jarnes@FaegreBD.com 
Direct +1515447 4731 

Faegre Baker Daniels LLP 
33rd Floor. 801 Grand Avenue 
Des Molnes v Iowa 50309-8003 

Main +l 515 248 9000 
Fax +l 515 248 9010 

January 18, 20 l 8 

Planning & Zoning Commission 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

Re: 2119 Coll~ Street 925 W. 22nd Street, and 1003 W. 22nd Street- College Hill Development 

Dear Commissioners, 

Our firm represents CV Commercial, LLC ("CV") in their proposed real estate development at 925 22nd 
St, 2119 College St, and 1003 22nd St in the College Hill Neighborhood of Cedar Falls (the "Project"). 
The -Project would be a mixed-use building that provides 65 · parking spaces, despite the Code of 
Ordinances for the City of Cedar Falls (the "Code") requiring no parking spaces. We write to clarify 
why no parking spaces are required; and thus why our client's provision of 65 spaces satisfies the Code 
and should receive your approval. 

I. No Parking Spaces Are Required Under the Code 

\Ve agree with City staffs determination in its January 5, 2018, Site Plan Review that no parking spaces 
are required. The Project is located within the C-3 Commercial District and the College Hill 
Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District (the "College Hill Overlay"). The Code sections for these 
districts do not require parking. Section 29-177(a) states parking shall be provided on-site, "except as 
follows: 

(1) For a principal permitted commercial use in the C-3 commercial district; and 

(2) For a residential use established as a permitted secondary, incidental or accessory use to a 
principal permitted commercial use in the C-3 commercial district, such as for a dwelling unit 
or units located on the second or higher floor of a building, the first or lower floor of which 
comprises the principal permitted commercial use, subject, however, to review and approval 
by the planning and zoning commission and city council." (emphasis. added) 

Both these conditions apply to the Project, because it is in the C-3 Commercial District, the principal use 
is comrnercial.and the secondary use is residential. The College Hill Overlay also requires ho parking in 
Section 29-· 160(g)(2), which states that when secondary residential uses are "established on the upper 
floors of principal permitted commercial uses," then "[ o [n-site parking will not be required for 

-351-

Item H.2.ab. 



-2- January 18, 2018 

secondary, accessory residential uses." City staffs January 5 Site Plan Review reaches the same 
conclusion, stating that parking is not required for uses such as for the Project in either the C-3 
Commercial District or College Hill Overlay, but that "[e]ven though parking is not required, the 
developer has shown a total of 65 on-site parking spaces." 

II. The Principal Use for the Project Is Commercial 

The parking requirement-or lack of requirement, in this case-is determined by the principal use. We 
also agree with City staff that the principal use for the Project is commercial. Section 29-2 defines 
"principal use" as "the main use of land or structures, as distinguished from accessory use." The Code 
does not define "secondary use" but employs the term throughout the zoning ordinances. "Main use" is 
also undefined, but it should be based on the ground floor because of past precedent and the contextual 
and logical implications of the Code. 

First, the principal use is commercial because of past precedent. City staff has repeatedly determined 
principal use by evaluating the use at the ground floor, including for mixed-use buildings in the College 
Hill Neighborhood. The staffs Site Plan Review lists projects where this has been the case. For this 
Project, City staff "deem] ed] this to be a principal commercial use" because 64% of the ground floor 
area will be commercial. This approach makes sense: the vast majority of the general public will interact 
with the Project through the commercial space, as it is the most visible from street level. 

Second, the principal use is commercial because of the contextual and logical implications of the code. 
The Code implies that commercial uses are the principal uses on the ground floor, and residential sues 
are secondary uses when on the upper floors. The description of the College Hill Overlay's C-3 district 
states "the district is made up primarily of commercial uses as the principal uses" and that when 
residential uses are "contained within principal commercial uses," then "the residential uses are 
considered to be secondary or accessory uses to the principal commercial use on the property." Sec. 29- 
160(g). It also states that "principal permitted residential uses are to be discouraged" in a C-3 area "due 
to the limited area available for commercial establishments." Id. Finally, the Code refers to "secondary 
or accessory residential uses to be established on the upper floors of principal permitted commercial 
uses" as if it is one term, which implies that what is on the upper floors are secondary uses. Sec. 29- 
160(g)(2). 

If, for some reason, the principal use were determined not based on the ground floor but on the total 
floor area, then a mixed-use building with commercial on the first floor and residential on upper floors 
could never have a principal commercial use. That type of building with principal commercial uses, 
though, is what the College Hill Overlay description and College Hill Revitalization plan explicitly 
prefer. See Sec. 29-160(g), College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan. Taken together, the contextual and 
logical implications are that the ground floor determines the principal use. When commercial use is 
present and on the ground floor, the default seems to be that the principal use is commercial, and the 
secondary use is residential. 

-352-

Item H.2.ab. 



-3- January 18, 2018 

III. Conclusion 

CV seeks to help fulfill the City's College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan by "enhanc[ing] the quality of 
life and aesthetics," "increas[ing] the quality of the housing stock," and promoting a "mixed use" 
neighborhood. College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan. More parking lots will not do that, and we agree 
with City staff and their past practices that this Project is a principal commercial use and does not 
require more parking spaces. The principal use is commercial, and in the C-3 Commercial District and 
College Hill Overlay, no parking spaces are required for principal commercial uses. Nevertheless, the 
Project plans for 65 on-site parking spaces. We respectfully ask for your support in approving this site 
plan. 

/ 

-353-

Item H.2.ab. 



-354-

Item H.2.ab. 



-355-

Item H.2.ab. 



-356-

Item H.2.ab. 



 
 

Tuesday, January 9th 2018 

 

To: Cedar Falls P&Z Commission 

From: College Hill Partnership Board 

 

Re: 22nd and College Mixed-Use Project 

 

The College Hill Partnership is pleased to see the redevelopment and renewal of the College 

Hill district.  Over the last several years many new developments have significantly improved 

College Hill commercial district.  College Hill Partnership is supportive all developments that add 

new possibilities to the Hill and overall enhance the quality life for businesses and residents 

alike. 

 

College Hill Partnership invited input from many residents and businesses regarding this 

proposed project.  While everyone is supportive of the overall idea, the CHP Board had three 

specific concerns which we hope Planning & Zoning Commission can address in its 

deliberations: 

 

1. Parking: Concerns were expressed regarding inadequate number of parking spots in relation 

to the number of people occupying the proposed project.  Board members wanted to see 

consistency applied to this as any other project, and for the city to consider impact on the Hill. 

 

The Board questions the designation of a five-story apartment complex as primarily commercial 

based on first story usage alone and the lower of parking requirements that comes with that 

designation.   

 

2. Height of the proposed project in relation to the character of the surrounding area: 

Board members expressed concerns that the height of the project as is seemed somewhat 

excessive in relation to it surrounding areas and the character of the neighborhood;  board 

members wanted to make sure Planning & Zoning Commission will consider this issue. 

 

3. Study the Parking Impact of Urban Flats Before Proceeding. The Urban Flats mixed use 

multiplex was built with the intention that residents would either not have cars, would be UNI 

students who would park overnight near the Dome, or would park outside of the immediate Hill 

area.  However, there is some evidence that the development has led to increased parking in 

the Hill lots and parking meters with a negative impact on some Hill Businesses.  Before the city 

greenlights another, much larger project, the city should study the parking patterns of Urban 

Flats residents, current parking congestion on the Hill, and analyze the new development using 

that information. 

 

-357-

Item H.2.ab. 



 
Overall, while the board is supportive of all improvements and re-developments such as this, the 

CHP Board simply wanted these issues addressed in a fair manner. 

 

Thanks,  

 

 

College Hill Partnership Board of Directors 

 

-358-

Item H.2.ab. 



-359-

Item H.2.ab. 



-360-

Item H.2.ab. 



-361-

Item H.2.ab. 



-362-

Item H.2.ab. 



Dear Commissioners, 
 
I write to you all in hopes of giving a different perspective to the proposed project at 925 W. 
22nd Street. 
 
I have talked with business owners as well as heard a few concerns from outside parties with 
other priorities when it comes to the proposed project. 
 
Having lived in Cedar Falls since 1999 and having worked for businesses on College Hill since 
2006 and other businesses in Downtown Main Street since 2007 I have been able to see growth 
and obstacles alike in both areas. With all growth provides new opportunities, challenges, and 
obstacles, but none that haven’t been overcome and the areas are better for it. 
 
The opposition that I have heard about this project has been not only short sighted, but also 
dominantly one sided as to motives for the project to not be passed.  
 
The commission has the thankless job of making decisions that have the potential to better our 
Community as a whole and I believe this project would do just that. 
 
This project has invoked a lot of passion, but mostly from the people I’ve talked to that are for 
it. They see the possibilities of helping move College Hill in the right direction.  
 
Parking continues to be a topic that is raised and has been a topic on Main Street ever since 
growth began.  Where would Main Street be if we always deal with potential issues that may or 
may not come? That is not the town I live in or would care to live in. To Hinder growing this 
great community based on unsubstantiated what if’s? 
 
So, if we play that game and vote with that in mind here are a few questions to consider. 
 
What successful area in any town has enough parking for every possible situation?  
IF those exist how many have parking lots that are all with spots directly in front of those 
businesses? 
 
Were Visionary projects like the Streetscape for Main Street and College Hill 100% supported? 
 
After complete what growth and opportunity have they provided to current business and 
future businesses? Did New Businesses follow, property taxes go up, sales tax revenue 
increase? 
  
Has the impact of these projects been negative or positive for these areas? 
 
How is the current parking situation at College Square Mall helping bring new businesses, 
customers, or more traffic to that area? They have substantial parking and yet fewer and fewer 

-363-

Item H.2.ab. 



businesses over the years. To that point has an abundance of parking availability guaranteed 
success? 
 
Have parking studies ever overruled the city’s zoning codes that developers have met? 
 
The market in Cedar Falls I believe will dictate the success of this project but the concerns 
raised I don’t believe would be raised if this development was 100% Commercial. 
 
I am on College Hill and Downtown every single day throughout the entire day and night. I see 
Multiple parking opportunities each and every day, but if I was looking for the one and only 
spot directly in front of a business available all the time the chances of that business still being 
open are very slim if they depend on actual physical customers to frequent their business. 
 
The potential with this project to generate new revenue opportunities with current, new 
students, others that would choose to live in a district like this is great opportunity to increase 
business sales in the area and that would also help sales tax and future property taxes to this 
area. 
 
I’m have no doubt that you as the commission will see a different picture painted by the 
opposition. For instance, the busiest time for College Hill is around the noon hour. Between 
Lunches, running errands with businesses that are located on the hill, classes that are offered at 
this time at the local hot yoga studio this for sure is the busiest time for parking. So, since I have 
no doubt you will see pictures of the area that will be taken at this time I would also like to send 
you some pictures to show the other side. Enclosed you will find 4 pictures from this morning at 
9:00am taken by another supporter of this project Andy Fuchtman.  The rest of the pictures are 
taken by me at 1:35pm today. Notice that they are not only of the College Hill business district 
but some surrounding apartment complexes directly next to College Hill and yet they are not 
even full.  
 
I respectfully ask that you all consider the above and hope that you pass this project and send 
to City Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
Thank You, 
Kyle Dehmlow 
 

-364-

Item H.2.ab. 



 

-365-

Item
 H

.2.ab. 



-366-

Item H.2.ab. 



January 22, 2018 

 

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission: Please allow me to give you two quick 

thoughts, for your consideration, about the proposed apartment construction in the College Hill 

Overlay.  

 Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances: Sec. 29-177 

(2)For a residential use established as a permitted secondary, incidental or accessory use to a 
principal permitted commercial use in the C-3 commercial district, such as for a dwelling unit 
or units located on the second or higher floor of a building, the first or lower floor of which 
comprises the principal permitted commercial use, subject, however, to review and approval 
by the planning and zoning commission and city council.  

Such review and approval shall include consideration of whether the proposed residential use 
is indeed secondary, incidental or accessory to a principal permitted commercial use of the 
structure or property.  

At the last meeting City staff pointed you to this existing ordinance language to assist you in 

evaluating this site plan on its merits.  An 83% residential use is not “secondary, incidental or 

accessory”. 

 

 Precedent-Definition Law: Precedent is a principle when deciding subsequent cases 

with similar facts.  

Facts concerning the building in this case: Five stories - 120 units - 144 required off street 

parking stalls - 83% residential.  

This building is not similar to the three multi-use buildings constructed in the College Hill 

Overlay that are used as “precedence” in your staff report. That’s a fact.    

 

*As a side observation. I’m concerned that Urban Flats moved forward essentially with a   
“gentleman’s agreement” with the developer concerning off-street parking. No matter how 
honest or well- intentioned the petitioner might be, the use of the land is tied to the building 
not the diligence of the owner. Situations change but the building will always be there.     

 
 Thank you, Mary Brammer  
 

-367-

Item H.2.ab. 



-368-

Item H.2.ab. 



-369-

Item H.2.ab. 



-370-

Item H.2.ab. 



-371-

Item H.2.ab. 



-372-

Item H.2.ab. 



-373-

Item H.2.ab. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: February 2, 2018 

 SUBJECT: FY2019 Budget 

 
Attached is the state required notice for the FY19 budget hearing.  The rate on the 
notice is $11.22.  This rate will cause a 1.53% decrease on residential properties, a 
.81% increase on commercial & industrial properties, and a 3.77% decrease on multi-
residential properties.  
 
The Code of Iowa requires that the City have a public hearing and I would request 
that the hearing be set for February 19, 2018. 
 
If you have any questions, about the budget or the budget process, please feel free to 
contact me.  
 
 
 

-375-

Item H.2.ac. 



 



Form 631.1 Department of Management

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

BUDGET ESTIMATE
FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2018 - ENDING JUNE 30, 2019

City of  , Iowa

The City Council will conduct a public hearing on the proposed Budget at 

on 2/19/2018 at 7:00 pm

(Date) xx/xx/xx (hour)

The Budget Estimate Summary of proposed receipts and expenditures is shown below.

Copies of the the detailed proposed Budget may be obtained or viewed at the offices of the Mayor,

City Clerk, and at the Library.

The estimated Total tax levy rate per $1000 valuation on regular property  . . . . . . . . . . $ 11.22169

The estimated tax levy rate per $1000 valuation on Agricultural land is    . .  . . . . . . . . . $ 3.00375

At the public hearing, any resident or taxpayer may present objections to, or arguments in favor of, any part 

of the proposed budget.

319-273-8600
phone number City Clerk/Finance Officer's NAME

Budget FY Re-estimated FY Actual FY

2019 2018 2017

            (a) (b)  (c)

Revenues & Other Financing Sources

Taxes Levied on Property 1 20,820,495 19,527,956 17,895,800

Less: Uncollected Property Taxes-Levy Year 2 0 0 0
   Net Current Property Taxes 3 20,820,495 19,527,956 17,895,800

Delinquent Property Taxes 4 0 0 0

TIF Revenues 5 3,753,970 4,400,916 7,828,894

Other City Taxes 6 5,957,056 5,965,088 6,356,944

Licenses & Permits 7 934,000 1,242,159 1,162,760

Use of Money and Property 8 723,375 1,107,938 1,179,037

Intergovernmental 9 23,111,603 12,738,999 13,609,441

Charges for Fees & Service 10 12,180,850 12,716,367 12,492,111

Special Assessments 11 0 0 24,853

Miscellaneous 12 1,584,333 5,136,398 2,603,806

Other Financing Sources 13 2,986,590 0 9,842,907

Transfers In 14 12,817,790 12,202,422 14,633,477
Total Revenues and Other Sources 15 84,870,062 75,038,243 87,630,030

Expenditures & Other Financing Uses

Public Safety 16 11,601,490 10,673,488 9,891,731

Public Works 17 13,553,020 16,173,373 9,150,521

Health and Social Services 18 20,500 140,500 159,428

Culture and Recreation 19 8,004,550 8,100,458 6,713,757

Community and Economic Development 20 2,915,600 2,506,765 2,460,865

General Government 21 5,023,550 5,097,049 3,916,387

Debt Service 22 1,007,000 2,644,480 1,744,215

Capital Projects 23 26,940,050 18,488,072 16,039,940

Total Government Activities Expenditures 24 69,065,760 63,824,185 50,076,844

Business Type / Enterprises 25 9,865,550 9,714,408 13,358,217
Total ALL Expenditures 26 78,931,310 73,538,593 63,435,061

 Transfers Out 27 12,817,790 12,202,422 14,633,477
Total ALL Expenditures/Transfers Out 28 91,749,100 85,741,015 78,068,538

Excess Revenues & Other Sources Over

(Under) Expenditures/Transfers Out 29 -6,879,038 -10,702,772 9,561,492

Beginning Fund Balance July 1 30 87,393,024 98,095,796 88,534,304
Ending Fund Balance June 30 31 80,513,986 87,393,024 98,095,796

Cedar Falls

Cedar Falls City Hall 220 Clay St

Jennifer Rodenbeck, Dir of Finance & Bus Op

-377-

Item H.2.ac. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
  

 TO: Mayor and Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: January 31, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Easement Vacation and Dedication Request 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Easement Vacation and Dedication 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Kwik Star Convenience Store and Fareway Grocery Store 
 

LOCATION: 
 

Lots 32-34 Pinnacle Prairie Business Center North 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
This property is located on Lots 32-34 of the Pinnacle Prairie Business Center North 
development, which is at the southeast corner of the intersection of S. Main Street and Greenhill 
Road. This item includes the vacation of a utility easement between Lots 32 and 33 and Lots 33 
and 34. The proposal also includes the dedication of an 18-foot wide utility easement in Lot 33.  
 
BACKGROUND 
Kwik Star Inc, and Fareway submitted a site plan for the development of Lots 32-34 in Pinnacle 
Prairie Business Center North. Fareway will occupy all of Lot 32 and the west half of Lot 33. 
Kwik Star will occupy all of Lot 34 and the east half of Lot 33. The existing utility easements 
along the interior lot lines need to be vacated and new utility easements will be dedicated on the 
new lot line between the two projects. These site plans and easements were reviewed by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission on January 10, 2018 and recommended for approval by the 
City Council. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities personnel have no concerns with the proposed 
easement vacation. All CFU services are located in the Bluebell Street right of way. There are 
no utilities (CFU, Mediacom, Century Link, INS) that occupy the easements to be vacated.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
1/10/18 

Vice Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Sturch provided background 
information. He explained that this item was discussed at the previous 

-379-

Item H.2.ad. 



Planning and Zoning meeting and he reviewed the details of the site plan and 
easement vacation. 

There were several members from the public that provided comments on the 
site plans for Kwik Star and Fareway. There were no comments on the 
proposed utility easement and vacation request. 

The comments ended and the Commission approved the easement vacation 
and dedication request.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Department of Community Development recommends that the Council schedule a Public 
Hearing on February 5, 2018 for said utility easement vacation and dedication. 

 

-380-

Item H.2.ad. 


	AGENDA
	A. Call to Order by the Mayor.
	B. Roll Call.
	C. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 15, 2018.
	[180115MINUTES.doc]

	D. Agenda Revisions.
	E. Administration of Oath to Public Safety Officers.
	F. Special Order of Business:
	1. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 Street Construction Project.
	[1. 2018 Recon PSE Memo.docx]
	[2. Exhibit A.pdf]
	[3-2018 Construction Public Hearing.pdf]
	a. Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published January 19, 2018)
	b. Written objections filed with the City Clerk.
	c. Oral comments.

	2. Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 Street Construction Project.
	3. Public hearing on a proposal to undertake a public improvement project for the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project and to authorize acquisition of private property for said project.
	[PH-West 1st Street Reconstruction-Acquisitions.pdf]
	a. Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published January 19, 2018)
	b. Written objections filed with the City Clerk.
	c. Oral comments.

	4. Resolution approving a public improvement for the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project and authorizing acquisition of private property for said project.

	G. Old Business:
	1. Pass Ordinance #2917, amending Chapter 26, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances relative to changing the speed limit on University Avenue from Hudson Road to the east city limits from 45 miles per hour to 35 miles per hour, upon its second consideration.
	[2917-University Ave Speed Limit.docx]


	H. New Business:
	1. Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.)  
	a. Receive and file the resignation of Paul Gray as a member of the Library Board of Trustees.
	[Resignation-Paul Gray.pdf]

	b. Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Kim Kranz to the Board of Rental Housing Appeals, term ending 05/01/2018.
	[1-Appointments Council Memo.docx]
	[2-BORHA - Kranz 01-23-18.pdf]

	c. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of January 15, 2018 relative to the following items:
(1) Capital Improvements Program (CIP) – Joint Meeting with Planning & Zoning Commission.
(2) Bills & Payroll.
	[Comm of the Whole 01 15 18.doc]

	d. Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to a certified list for the position of Traffic Operations Supervisor.
	[TrafficOpsSuprCertList1-2018.pdf]

	e. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of December 2017.
	[Monthly Report - December 2017.pdf]

	f. Receive and file the 2017 Annual Reports of the Planning & Zoning Commission, Board of Adjustment, Historic Preservation Commission, Group Rental Committee/Board of Rental Housing Appeals, and the Bicycle & Pedestrian Advisory Committee.
	[CD Annual Report memo to City Council 1-23-18.pdf]

	g. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
(1) Hy-Vee Gas, 6527 University Avenue, Class C beer - renewal.
(2) AmericInn Lodge and Suites, 5818 Nordic Drive, Class B beer - renewal.
(3) Second State Brewing Company, 203 State Street, Class B beer - renewal.
(4) Cottonwood Canyon, 419 Washington Street, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.
(5) Hy-Vee Tasting Room, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - renewal.
(6) The Hydrant Firehouse Grill, 2002 College Street, Class C liquor - renewal.
	[Liquor Beer.doc]


	2. Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 
	a. Resolution deleting the pay for an employee in the position of Land Surveyor in the Engineering Services Division.
	[TERM CD Land Surveyor.doc]

	b. Resolution deleting the pay for an employee in the position of Inspector in the Inspection Services Division.
	[TERM CD Inspector.doc]

	c. Resolution deleting the pay for an employee in the position of Equipment Mechanic in the Public Works & Parks Division.
	[TERM MOP Equip. Mech.doc]

	d. Resolution deleting the pay for an employee in the position of Firefighter in the Fire Operations Division.
	[TERM PSS Firefighter.doc]

	e. Resolution establishing the pay for a new employee hired in the position of PT-Laborer in the Public Works & Parks Division.
	[new MOP PT Laborer.doc]

	f. Resolution establishing the pay for three new employees hired in the position of Public Safety Officer in the Police Operations Division.
	[new PSS Public Safety Off. (3)doc.doc]

	g. Resolution establishing the pay for an employee assigned to the position of Acting Police Lieutenant-Public Safety Officer in the Police Operations Division.
	[acting Police Lt.doc]

	h. Resolution establishing the pay for an employee reclassified to the position of Maintenance Worker in the Public Works & Parks Division.
	[Reclass MOP Maint Wrk Refuse.doc]

	i. Resolution establishing the pay for an employee reclassified to the position of Public Safety Officer in the Police Operations Division.
	[promote PSS CSOI to Public Safety Off.doc]

	j. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of the renewal of an Advertising Agreement with Lee Enterprises, Incorporated, d/b/a Courier Communications, relative to recruitment advertising.
	[1-WlooCourierAgreeMemo2-18.pdf]
	[2-WlooCourierAgree&RateCard2-2018.pdf]

	k. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an extension of a three-year Agreement for Audit Services with Eide Bailly, LLP.
	[1-AUDIT CONTRACT COUNCIL.MEM.doc]
	[2-audit contract_001.pdf]

	l. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a contract for CLEAR for Law Enforcement Plus with West Publishing Corporation relative to investigations and background checks conducted by the Public Safety Services Department.
	[Memo and CLEAR Contract.pdf]

	m. Resolution approving and authorizing the purchase of a fire rescue pumper apparatus from Toyne, Inc.
	[Rescue Pumper CC 2018.pdf]

	n. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Farm Lease Agreement with Luhring & Luhring Farms relative to agricultural land known as the Belz Farm.
	[1-Mayor-CC Memo.docx]
	[2-Farm Lease 2018.doc]

	o. Resolution approving and accepting a Temporary Easement, in conjunction with the 2017 Levee/Floodwall System Improvements Project.
	[1. Temporary Construction Easement.docx]
	[2. Signed Temp Construction Easement.pdf]

	p. Resolution approving and accepting completion of public improvements in Prairie West 7th Addition.
	[1-memo.pdf]
	[2. Maintenance Bond.pdf]
	[3. Praire West 7th Final Plat.pdf]

	q. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Feldman Concrete for the 2017 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 8.
	[1. 2017 Sidewalk Assessment Final Out.pdf]
	[2. Final Pay Estimate - 2017 Assessment.pdf]
	[3. Bonds.pdf]

	r. Resolution approving the Final Statement of Expenditures for the 2017 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 8.
	[1. 2017 Sidwalk Assessment Project - Final Statement.docx]
	[2. Final Breakdown - 2017 Sidwalk Assessment.pdf]

	s. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the 2017 Street Reconstruction Project.
	[1. 17 Recon Final Out Memo.pdf]
	[2. Final Pay Estimate.pdf]
	[3. Maintenance Bond.pdf]

	t. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Mike Dolan Concrete & Masonry, Inc. for the 2016 Public Sidewalk Repair, Pedestrian Ramp and Patching Project.
	[1. 2016 Sidewalk Patching Final Out Memo.pdf]
	[2. Final Pay Estimate.pdf]
	[3. Maintenance Bond.pdf]

	u. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Mike Dolan Concrete & Masonry, Inc. for the 2016 Permeable Alley Project.
	[1.Memo- 2016 Permeable Alley Final Out.pdf]
	[2. Final Pay Estimate.pdf]
	[3.Maintenance Bond.pdf]

	v. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Mike Dolan Concrete & Masonry, Inc. for the Cedar Falls Industrial Park Street Patching Project.
	[1. CFIP Patching Project - Final Out.pdf]
	[2. Final Pay Estimate.pdf]
	[3. Maintenance Bond.pdf]

	w. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 2 to the Standard Consultant Contract with IIW, P.C. for construction engineering services relative to the West 20th Street Bridge Replacement Project.
	[1. W. 20th Street - Supplemental Agreement #2.docx]
	[2. Supplemental Agreement No. 2.pdf]

	x. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 4 to the Professional Services Agreement with Foth Infrastructure & Environmental, LLC relative to the 2018 Bridge Inspection Project.
	[1. Memo-Foth Supplemental Agreement Bridge Inspection.docx]
	[2. Supplemental Agreement 4.pdf]

	y. Resolution approving the partial release of retainage funds to K. Cunningham Construction Company, Inc. for the University Avenue Reconstruction Project, Phase I.
	[Partial Retainage Release - Memo.docx]

	z. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Cooperative Agreement for Primary Road Project with the Iowa Department of Transportation for reconstruction of ramp terminals relative to the University Avenue Reconstruction Project, Phase 3.
	[1. Ramp Agreement Memo.docx]
	[2. Ramp Agreement.pdf]

	aa. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Assignment and Assumption Agreement relative to an Agreement for Private Development and conveyance of development property by CV Properties Housing Cooperative Association to CV Properties 2, LLC.
	[1_Council Memo for 02-05-18.docx]
	[2_Signed Assignment and Assumption Agreement.pdf]

	ab. Resolution approving a College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District site plan for a commercial/residential mixed use development at 2119 College Street.
	[1_Council Memo for site plan review at 2119 College Street on 02-05-18.pdf]
	[2_ZoningLocationMap.pdf]
	[3_Layout Plan.pdf]
	[4_2017.12.29 COL -R- P+Z.pdf]
	[5_2017.12.29 COL -R- Views.pdf]
	[6_2018.01.19 COL - ELEVATION STUDY.pdf]
	[7_2018.01.10 COL - Street Section.pdf]
	[8_Landscape Plan.pdf]
	[9_Lighting Plan.pdf]
	[10_2018.01.09 COL - Enlarged Plan @ Trash Enclosure.pdf]
	[11_Applicant Letter.pdf]
	[12_Urban Flats Parking.pdf]
	[13_Update on Elmination of Residential Parking Requirements - Champaign, IL.pdf]
	[14_Combined Letters from the Public.pdf]
	[15-Jerry Geisler.pdf]

	ac. Resolution setting February 19, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the proposed FY19 Budget for the City of Cedar Falls.
	[1-budget hearing council.mem.doc]
	[2-fy19citybudget.pdf]

	ad. Resolution setting February 19, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the proposed vacation and dedication of utility easements on Lots 32, 33 & 34 of Pinnacle Prairie Business Center North.
	[Set PH - easement vacation dedication for kwik star and fareway 1-30-18.pdf]



	I. Allow Bills and Payroll.
	J. City Council Referrals.
	K. City Council Updates.
	L. Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City business.)
	M. Adjournment.



